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Reference and administrative information

The Garfield Weston Foundation is a general grant-giving charity endowed by the late W Garfield 
Weston and members of his family, which is registered with the Central Register of Charities, 
registration number 230260. The Foundation is recognised by HM Revenue and Customs as an 
approved charity for tax purposes, the reference number being X96978. 
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Largest ever amount 
donated by the Foundation! 

2,967 grants made
65% increase
on total number of grants 
awarded on previous year

Bumper year for grants in Welfare 
category £28.7 million awarded in 
838 grants

£4.9 million to charities supporting 
people experiencing homelessness

%
increase in total 
funds donated 
on prior year
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9 grants
of £1 million or more

1,731 grants
were for £20,000 or 
under, representing 58% 
of all grants made

142% increase in amount donated 
to Health organisations on prior year

£3.4 million donated to 
organisations supporting people 
impacted by domestic abuse and 
sexual violence

94% of all grants
were regular (under 
£100,000)

%
of all grants
were for core 

costs

+£10million
social investment in Social and 
Sustainable Capital, a fund 
that enables charities to house 
their disadvantaged clients



Chair’s introduction 

I am delighted to introduce the Annual 
Report of the Trustees for the financial year 
to 5 April 2025. It is exciting to report that 
the Foundation has made grant awards and 
social investments this year of almost £140 
million, a record figure.

Since we started 67 years ago, we have 
doubled our donations every five to six years, 
a growth trajectory we are proud of. This 
year’s grant awards take the Foundation’s 
total to nearly £1.7 billion since it was 
established by my grandfather in 1958.

We are steadfastly here for the long-term, 
supported as we are by our permanent 
endowment which is largely comprised of our 
46% indirect shareholding in Associated 
British Foods plc. We strongly hold the view 
that the model of business ownership that 
underpins our endowment is a force for 
good, though we appreciate there are other 
excellent models that are different to ours.

This model of business ownership 
established by our grandfather was very 
deliberate in its intention to build for the 
long-term and it was created with a strong 
sense of personal responsibility and 
community, which we still value. We believe 
he would have been pleased with how his 
vision has developed since, and we aim to 
continue his values and objectives in the 
work we do today.

We respect the skill and hard work of the 
businesses that generated the Foundation’s 
record cash income in the year of over 
£155 million, in the same way that we 

admire and respect the talented people 
across the country in the charitable sector. 
Our aim is to enable those with the best 
understanding of society’s needs to tell us 
their plans and objectives so that we can 
listen and work with them in a flexible way. 

We don’t believe in imposing our point of 
view on others but rather in being responsive 
to those with excellent ideas and plans. This 
deliberate and pragmatic strategy enables 
us to be agile and to ensure that our income 
is spent on good work and not on supporting 
a cumbersome infrastructure.

Our job as Trustees and stewards is to 
remain engaged and up to date, to ensure 
the Foundation continues to support good 
work and people, and to scan the horizon to 
ensure we can respond and adapt to 
changes in society’s needs. With this 
context, I am proud to note that this year we 
made a not-for-profit social investment of 
£10 million in addition to our grant awards, 
a step to respond to charities’ demand for 
affordable loan financing.

I’d like to thank our knowledgeable and 
dedicated staff and especially Flora Craig, 
who stepped into the role of Interim Director. 
We welcome Clare Gough who joined us as 
Director in May 2025.

We are also thankful for the thousands of 
charities we have the privilege to work with 
and we greatly appreciate what they do.

Sir Guy H Weston
Chair of the Trustees

25 September 2025
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Trustees’ report

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the accounting 
policies set out in the notes to the accounts 
and comply with the charity’s governing 
document, the Charities Act 2011 and 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 
Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland published on 16 July 
2014 (FRS102). 

Structure, governance and 
management 

Structure

The operation of the Foundation is governed 
by a Trust Deed dated 10 October 1958.

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the 
investment in the Wittington Investments 
Limited group of companies forms the 
permanent capital endowment of the 
Foundation and the Trustees may not dispose 
of that investment in whole or in part except 
by a unanimous vote of all the Trustees.

At 5 April 2025, the Foundation owned 
79.2% of Wittington Investments Limited, a 
company registered in England. Wittington 
Investments Ltd is the ultimate holding 
company of Associated British Foods plc 
(‘ABF’), which is listed on the London Stock 
Exchange. Via its shareholding in Wittington 
Investments Limited, the Foundation owns 
46.0% of ABF; as required by UK Listing 
Rules, this shareholding is subject to a 
Relationship Agreement entered into by the 
Trustees of the Foundation, Wittington and 
ABF. Other subsidiaries of Wittington 
Investments Limited include Fortnum and 
Mason plc and Heal’s plc. 

Governance and management

In accordance with the Trust Deed, after the 
death of Mr W Garfield Weston and his  wife, 

their descendants became Trustees. The 
number of Trustees is limited to ten but must 
be at least five. If the number of Trustees 
drops below five, new Trustees fall to be 
appointed from among the lineal 
descendants of W Garfield Weston.

Being family members, incoming Trustees 
are aware of the aims and objectives of the 
Foundation and the manner in which the 
Trustees carry out their responsibilities. 
Nearly all of the Trustees are on the board of 
other charitable entities either in the UK, the 
United States or Canada. The Foundation is 
a member of the Foundations Forum and the 
Association of Charitable Foundations and 
the Trustees receive charity sector updates 
from both their Secretary, a practising lawyer 
with expertise in the charity sector, and from 
their auditors UHY Hacker Young LLP. This 
ensures that the Trustees are well placed to 
keep up to date with developments in charity 
practice and regulations.

The Trustees are directly responsible for the 
management of the Foundation and hold 
regular meetings in order to consider grant 
applications for £100,000 or more and to 
ratify smaller grants which have been 
awarded since their previous meeting. 
Additional meetings are scheduled as 
required to deal with any time-sensitive 
funding requests. The initial processing of 
grant applications is dealt with by an 
experienced team and every funding 
decision is made by at least one of the 
Trustees. The Trustees also actively 
participate in meetings with, and visits to, 
applicants. The Trustees hold an annual 
meeting in order to review and approve the 
Annual Report and Accounts and to carry out 
a formal annual review of performance 
against the Foundation’s aims, objectives 
and policies as well as the performance of 
its investments over the year. 

Key management personnel, in charge of 
directing and controlling the Foundation and 
in charge of operating the Foundation on a 
day-to-day basis, comprise the board of 
Trustees and the Director respectively. 
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All Trustees give of their time freely and no 
trustee remuneration was paid in the year. 
Details of Trustee expenses and related 
party transactions are disclosed in note 5 
and 7. In accordance with the Trust’s policy, 
Trustees are required to disclose all relevant 
interests and register them with the 
Company Secretary and to withdraw from 
decisions where a conflict of interest arises.

The Director’s remuneration is reviewed 
annually by the Chair of Trustees and is also 
benchmarked with grant-making charities of 
a similar size to ensure that the 
remuneration set is fair and not out of line 
with that of generally similar roles.

Risk management and policies

The Trustees are satisfied that appropriate 
policies, protection, systems and checks 
remain in place in order to mitigate exposure 
to major risks and to ensure that the 
Foundation operates in accordance with 
ethical and environmental guidelines and 
protections. The Director and Secretary 
regularly review the Foundation’s risk 
register; the risk register is reviewed with the 
Trustees at their Annual Meeting. The 
principal risks include: investment 
performance; breaches of IT security; 
breaches of financial controls; fraudulent 
applications; conflicts of interest; and 
reputational risks relating to the 
Foundation’s relationship with the underlying 
trading activities of companies held through 
Wittington Investments Limited. Key controls 
have been identified for each principal risk 
area as follows:

Investment performance The Trustees 
regularly review the performance of the 
underlying assets and their shareholding in 
the Wittington Investments Limited group 
and receive reports directly from those who 
are managing the businesses. The non- 
Wittington investments are also managed in 
accordance with an investment policy which 
seeks to achieve an appropriate balance of 
risk and return.

Breaches of IT security The IT system and 
security measures, including authorised 
signatories, are regularly updated and 
reviewed and all grant applicants are 
screened by a skilled grants administration 
team.

Breaches of financial controls Bank 
mandates specifying authorised signatories, 
segregation of duties and financial limits are 
regularly reviewed and maintained. 

Fraudulent applications Registered charity 
status, financial statements and bank 
statements are independently validated for 
all grants awarded prior to any transfer of 
funds.

Conflicts of interest The Trustees maintain a 
documented Conflict of Interest policy which 
encompasses both their grant-making 
decisions and (where relevant) their roles as 
directors of Wittington group companies.

Reputation Members of the Trustee board 
are directors of Wittington group companies, 
enabling them to be fully apprised of events 
which might give rise to reputational risk.

Ethical and environment The Trustees have 
oversight of the ethical and environmental 
practices of the Wittington group companies 
as well as those of their independent 
investment managers. In relation to its staff 
secondees, the Foundation adheres to the 
policies of Wittington Investments Limited 
and Associated British Foods with respect to 
the Modern Slavery Act and corporate 
responsibility. For more details see 
www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/ModernSlavery
HumanTraffickingStatement2023.pdf 
www.abf.co.uk/responsibility

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Addressing 
disadvantages and ‘levelling the playing 
field’ for all has been a central theme of the 
Foundation for over six decades as the 
Foundation values diversity in its widest 
sense. The Foundation aims to be 
accessible, transparent and straightforward 
in its approach to grant-making and actively 

6  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2025

http://www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/ModernSlaveryHumanTraffickingStatement2023.pdf
http://www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/ModernSlaveryHumanTraffickingStatement2023.pdf
http://www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/ModernSlaveryHumanTraffickingStatement2023.pdf
http://www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/ModernSlaveryHumanTrafficking%20Statement2023.pdf
http://www.abf.co.uk/responsibility


supports charities which in turn support 
diverse groups and communities, including 
those suffering discrimination in all its forms. 

Safeguarding The Trustees have a 
safeguarding policy which is aimed at 
protecting their own staff secondees as well 
as vulnerable beneficiaries. The Trustees 
also require grant applicants to confirm that 
they have appropriate safeguarding policies 
in place to protect their staff, volunteers and 
beneficiaries. 

Income and grant-making aims 
and objectives

The Trust Deed contains broad charitable 
objects which allow the Trustees, at their 
discretion, to pay or apply the income and 
(subject to certain restrictions) the 
expendable capital of the Trust Fund to, or 
for, the benefit of any charitable bodies, 
trusts, associations, institutions or 
organisations.

Despite continuing challenges to the global 
economy total cash income for the year rose 
to just over £155 million (2024: £110 
million). The Trustees have once again been 
able to draw on this increase in income to 
make total grants and social investments of 
just under £140 million in support of 2,967 
appeals (2024: £101 million in support of 
1,797 appeals). The total outstanding 
forward commitments at the end of the 
financial year were £84 million as compared 
with just over £63 million in 2024. 
Commitments consist of future payments of 
£32 million (2024: £27 million) due to 
charities under existing multi-year grant 
arrangements, and pledges of just under 
£33 million (2024: £36 million) that require 
charities to fulfil specific prerequisite 
obligations.

The Trustees were pleased to be able to 
make some substantial pledges including £5 
million for the restoration of Birmingham’s 
Botanical Gardens, and grants including £1 
million over three years to the Parkinson’s 
UK, to deliver specialist care through their 
Parkinson’s nurse programme, and 

£300,000 to the Bournemouth Symphony 
Orchestra towards their Participate 
programme. The Trustees were pleased to 
continue to support charities’ core costs, 
which can be challenging for them to raise, 
and to support vital frontline charities that 
are supporting communities across the UK. 
In addition, the Trustees were pleased to 
make a not-for-profit social investment of 
£10 million in addition to grant expenditure, 
a step by the Foundation to respond to 
charities’ demand for affordable loan 
financing.  See full list of grants made for 
more details.

Grant-making policy

The Foundation continues to accept only 
applications from UK registered charities. No 
applications from individuals are considered 
and the Trustees do not typically fund 
projects outside the UK, nor do they fund 
animal welfare charities, unless for the 
purpose of supporting a specific 
environmental project or where to do so 
assists with other charitable purposes, such 
as providing assistance for those with 
disabilities.

The Trustees’ aim is to keep the application 
process as simple and streamlined as 
possible. Step-by-step guidelines as to how 
to make a grant application (more than 98% 
of which are now submitted online), together 
with helpful details of the criteria which are 
taken into consideration when assessing 
applications and the information which 
should be submitted with an application, are 
available on the Foundation’s website 
www.garfieldweston.org

These guidelines are also published in Welsh 
(although applications from Welsh charities 
must still be made in English). All 
applications are considered on an individual 
basis; the Trustees do not consider funding 
requests made within a minimum of 12 
months of the outcome of a previous 
application but, in relation to funding for core 
and project costs, they will consider 
providing funds to be spread over a period of 
years. Whenever possible, visits and/or 
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meetings are made by Trustees and/or the 
Director or one of the other members of the 
Foundation’s grants team in order to gain a 
better understanding of applicants’ 
requirements. Regular contact is maintained 
with recipients of grants for monitoring 
purposes, while also taking care to minimise 
the reporting burden on the recipient 
charities.

In order to provide further transparency in 
the grant-making process, the Foundation 
publishes its grants through 360Giving. It 
also commissions independent reviews of 
grant-giving initiatives in order to assess 
their effectiveness and to improve the 
experience for both successful and 
unsuccessful applicants. These findings are 
published and shared openly and made 
accessible on the website.

Public benefit

The Trustees have complied with section 
2(1)(b) of the Charities Act 2011, having due 
regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance 
on public benefit when reviewing the 
Foundation’s aims and objectives, when 
setting the grant-making policy and in 
making awards. 

Achievements and performance

Despite the current economic uncertainty, 
Wittington Investments Limited has 
managed to increase its dividend payments 
to the Foundation so that the Foundation 
has been able to provide grant funding of 
nearly £130 million across a broad range of 
charitable purposes at a time when the 
sector, and those whom it supports, 
continue to be in need.

Some of the valuable charities and projects 
which have been funded by the Foundation 
are described in more detail in the case 
studies from page 13. 

Investment performance

The Trustees are satisfied with the 
performance of the Foundation’s financial 
investments.

The Trustees are satisfied that the 
investment structure represented by the 
Wittington group of companies (which was 
contributed by Garfield W Weston to the 
Foundation in 1958) remains a sustainable 
long-term model, particularly in terms of 
providing a regular and reliable income 
stream to enable the Foundation to fulfil its 
charitable purposes.

The value of the Wittington group of 
companies (which is heavily influenced by 
the share price of Associated British Foods) 
continues to fluctuate in line with equity 
markets generally, but the Trustees remain 
confident that any such fluctuations will not 
have a lasting effect on the Foundation’s 
ability to provide support to grant applicants.

As at 5 April 2025, the Rathbone portfolio 
was valued at over £73.2 million (2024: 
£76.8 million). The five year annualised 
returns (net of fees) of 7.0% per annum were 
below the portfolio return target of RPI plus 
4% (10.5%), but the Trustees recognise the 
challenges posed by this target in the 
current period of inflation.

Moreover, the portfolio performed in line 
with the ARC (Asset Risk Consultants) 
Charity Steady Growth Index which returned 
6.9% per annum over the same period. The 
annual income distributions to the 
Foundation from the Rathbone portfolio 
totalled £1.6 million (2024: £1.7 million).

The Oxford University Endowment 
Management (OUem) fund offers an 
alternative form of investment in a broad 
range of asset classes, focusing on real 
returns in excess of inflation and therefore 
fits well with the Trustees’ target return for 
financial investments. As at 5 April 2025, 
the Foundation’s investment in the fund was 
valued at £27.1 million (2024: £25.7 
million). The five-year annualised return for 
the fund to 31 March 2025 was 9.4% per 
annum – also below the portfolio return 
target of RPI plus 4% (10.5%).

The value of the Foundation’s investment in 
the Savills’ Charities Property Fund was 
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£5.78 million as at 5 April 2025 (2024: 
£5.65 million), with an income yield of 4%.

The Trustees are satisfied with the 
performance of the Foundation’s social 
impact investments. As at 5 April 2025, its 
investment in Social and Sustainable Capital 
Trust was valued at £20 million (2024: £nil), 
with 7,000 vulnerable tenants housed to 
date in 607 properties purchased by 20 
borrower charities.

Further analysis of the financial and social 
impact investment assets can be found in 
Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

A copy of Wittington Investments Limited’s 
accounts for the year to 14 September 2024 
can be obtained from Companies House.

Financial review

In accordance with the required accounting 
policy, grants are recognised in the 
statement of financial activities when 
approved by the Trustees and communicated 
to the recipients, irrespective of the future 
period over which payments are to be made, 
and the obligations outstanding at the year-
end are recognised as creditors.

The Foundation does not currently actively 
fundraise and so the requirements of 
section 13 of the Charities (Protection and 
Social Investment) Act 2016, which requires 
that the Trustees provide a statement on 
specific areas of their fundraising, do not 
apply.

Costs

These continue to be very low in relation to 
the levels of income and grants made and 
are kept under review by the Director and 
Trustees to ensure they remain lean as a 
proportion of grant expenditure.

Reserves

The Trustees’ policy is to maintain reserves 
of approximately 50% of the Foundation’s 
annual income bearing in mind the general 
timing of income receipts, their general 

pattern of giving and the current economic 
climate. At £70.1 million (2024: £32.1 
million), total income reserves at the end of 
the year represented 42% of the 
Foundation’s income in the year – below the 
Trustees’ 50% policy – and this will be taken 
into account when assessing levels of grant-
making for the following financial year.

Investment objectives

The Trustees’ investment objectives in 
relation to their non-Wittington group assets 
as set out in the policy statement are to 
preserve the ‘real’ (i.e. inflation-adjusted) 
value of its financial investments. This 
involves adopting a relatively conservative 
investment strategy, investing in a balanced 
portfolio without geographical, currency or 
sector restriction, subject to the terms of a 
Charity Commission Order dated 19 
September 2001. The primary benchmark 
for investment performance remains at RPI 
plus 4% over a rolling three-year period, 
although comparison is also made on an 
annual basis with the ARC (Asset Risk 
Consultants) Charity Steady Growth Index for 
Rathbone and, in the case of OUem, the 
MSCI All Country World Index.

The Trustees are satisfied that the two 
investment managers have suitable policies 
in place regarding their stock selection to 
ensure that this complies with the latest ESG 
practices and they continue to keep this 
under review. The Trustees’ principal 
financial investment, namely Associated 
British Foods plc, is a highly diversified 
global company with an extensive and 
practical approach to responsible business.

The Trustees have a direct line of sight into 
this business, making the Foundation’s 
approach to responsible investment more 
transparent and with a higher degree of 
clarity than other models might afford.
The Trustees’ financial objectives in relation 
to their social impact investments are to 
preserve their ‘nominal’ (i.e. non inflation-
adjusted) value in order to allow the capital 
to be redeployed once the social impact is 
achieved. This involves a strategy of 

Garfield Weston Foundation  9



investing alongside foundations with similar 
financial objectives; of selecting investments 
which have direct line of sight to social 
impact; and of mitigating the transfer of risk 
to borrowers by ensuring that the 
investments are secured against tangible 
assets. 

Plans for future periods

Rising levels of inflation continue to have a 
significant impact on all areas of the sector, 
but with particular significance for charities 
which support the most vulnerable in our 
society as well as for those undertaking 
capital projects. The Foundation will 
continue to do its best to react to the 
changing needs of the charitable sector and 
to provide support where it is most needed 
and can be utilised most effectively to make 
a difference.

The Trustees will continue to maintain their 
ability to respond promptly and effectively to 
the requests in support of a broad range of 
charitable causes, relying upon the 
consistent performance of the Foundation’s 
endowment and upon prudent management 
of its income reserves.

Trustees’ responsibilities for the 
financial statements

The Trustees are responsible for preparing 
the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England 
and Wales requires the Trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year 
which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the charity and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources of 

the charity for that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to:

■ select suitable accounting policies and 
then apply them consistently

■ observe the methods and principles in 
the Charities SORP

■ make judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent

■ state whether applicable accounting 
standards have been followed, subject to 
any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the financial statements

■ prepare the accounts on a going concern 
basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the charity will continue in 
business

The Trustees are responsible for maintaining 
sufficient accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the charity and which 
enable them to ensure that the accounts 
comply with the Charities Act 2011, the 
Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 
2008 and the provisions of the Trust Deed. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the charity and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

Sir Guy H Weston
Chair of the Trustees

Sophia Weston, OBE
Deputy Chair of Trustees

25 September 2025
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Director’s report 

In 2024–2025, the Garfield Weston 
Foundation delivered a record level of 
funding to charities, with over £129 million 
awarded to almost 3,000 organisations 
across the country, in addition to £10 million 
in social investments to strengthen the 
sector in other ways. I joined the Foundation 
after the end of this financial year, in May 
2025, so these impressive figures are down 
to the hard work of my valued colleagues. 
They reflect the success of the Foundation’s 
endowment model of business ownership in 
generating increased returns for the 
Foundation to distribute. The grants awarded 
respond to the substantial need faced by the 
charitable sector, as well as the quality of 
the projects charities are leading.

The Foundation admires the dedication and 
commitment of our charity partners to make 
such a positive difference within their 
communities. We are particularly conscious 
of the extra challenges that charities are 
facing today with pressures both from 
abroad and at home and an increasingly 
difficult financial landscape. We could not do 
our work without them and thank them for 
their hard work and resilience in these 
challenging times. Within this context, the 
Foundation is pleased to be able to remain 
steadfast in our support for the sector, 
building on our history of 67 years of grant-
making. We remain very much ‘open for 

business’ and keen to support charities the 
length and breadth of the UK, from the 
small, grassroots charities to the large, 
national organisations, and across a wide 
variety of projects, from the tried and tested 
to innovative new approaches. 

With over 2,900 grants made during the 
year, we can only highlight a small selection 
in this report. This year, we have picked out 
examples that we hope give a taste of the 
breadth of initiatives we support, across a 
full spectrum of sectors up and down the 
country. However, each grant represents the 
work of a dedicated team and we are 
delighted to list – as we do each year – every 
charity to whom we have made a grant.

In addition to our charity partners, I would 
like to thank the team at the Foundation who 
have worked so hard to deliver this impact – 
the Trustees who bring great experience and 
insight to each decision, and the small, 
professional team of staff who apply real 
care to all applicants. In particular I would 
like to thank Flora Craig, who has led the 
team as Interim Director throughout the year.

I am delighted to join the Foundation team 
and look forward to working with our charity 
partners to deliver even greater impact in 
the year to come – a year in which we can 
see that the need remains acute. 

Clare Gough
Director (joined 19 May 2025)
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In2scienceUK

In2scienceUK is a social mobility charity 
dedicated to helping young people from low 
socioeconomic and underrepresented 
backgrounds to access education and 
careers in science, technology, engineering 
and maths (STEM). The charity aims to 
improve access to better-paid jobs and boost 
inclusion within the UK STEM sector – 80% 
of its participants are the first in their 
families to pursue higher education and 65% 

are female. The charity’s programmes 
include in-person work placements, 
mentoring, skills training and research 
placements, and careers support for young 
professionals from disadvantaged 
backgrounds transitioning into STEM.

The charity has developed strong 
relationships with university and industry 
partners and could demonstrate a broad 
range of funding sources. The Trustees were 
delighted to award a core cost grant of 
£150,000 over two years to help 
In2ScienceUK increase its reach.

O Ddrws i Ddrws
O Ddrws i Ddrws (From Door to Door) is one 
of the thousands of local organisations 
providing vital support to local people that 
the Trustees value. O Ddrws i Ddrws is a 
community transport charity that operates 
on the Llyn peninsula, a remote area in 
Wales far from services such as hospitals, 
GPs and even shops. Many people cannot 
afford their own vehicle or are unable to 
access the limited public transport due to 
age, illness or disability; without O Ddrws i 
Ddrws, which also organises social activities 
and events, many people would be isolated.

The Garfield Weston Foundation’s 
generous grant towards In2scienceUK’s 
core costs has been pivotal in 
helping us continue to deliver 
transformative STEM opportunities 
for young people from the UK’s lowest 
income households. By funding the 
vital backbone of our organisation, 
the Foundation has ensured that we 
have the capacity to deliver life-
changing STEM experiences. 

Stephen Hancock, CEO

In2ScienceUK
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Last year, O Ddrws i Ddrws and its volunteer 
drivers provided over 4,200 journeys for 
almost 7,700 passengers.

The organisation provided compelling case 
studies that demonstrated the impact of its 
work and a good range of income sources 
including earned income, local donations 
and grants from trusts and public sources. 
The Trustees were happy to make a grant of 
£20,000 to support the charity’s core costs.

Streetbikes

Streetbikes delivers inclusive and accessible 
cycling activities in Kirklees, West Yorkshire. 
Its twice-weekly sessions take place with a 
large range of adapted bikes so that anyone 
can attend regardless of age or ability, 
supported by the charity’s volunteers. 
Streetbikes works in partnership with 
schools, care providers and local charities to 
ensure they are reaching people who would 
otherwise face barriers to participating due 
to health issues, disability or poverty, 
reaching over 5,000 people last year. 
Streetbikes also refurbishes donated bikes 
and sells them to the community at an 
affordable price which generates a vital 
source of income and enables the charity to 
give bikes as gifts to local children each 
Christmas. 

Streetbikes included a case study from a 
local Dementia support group that 
demonstrates how the sessions enabled 
many of its users to cycle for the first time in 

We’ve made it work for the past 
20-plus years with immense gratitude 
to the Garfield Weston Foundation 
for its indispensable help to deliver a 
vital service that’s experiencing ever-
increasing demand.

Wil Parry, Project Manager

O Ddrws i Ddrws
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40 years with multiple mental, physical and 
social benefits. It also included details of an 
impact report conducted by a university 
partner that shows that Streetbikes’ work is 
unparalleled in the UK in terms of its ability 
to provide regular and inclusive cycling 
opportunities for people of all abilities. The 
Trustees were delighted to make a core cost 
grant of £20,000 over two years to this local, 
high impact charity.

Bright Green Nature

The Foundation supports a wide range of 
environmental charities working on differing 
scales, from a global to hyperlocal focus. 
Bright Green Nature is an example of a 
small, mainly volunteer run local nature 
restoration charity in the Scottish Borders. 
Big Green Nature was gifted Selkirk Deer 
Park, a biodiverse habitat which the charity 
is restoring. It is also a base for its research 
and education work, connecting people of all 
ages with hands-on ecological restoration, 
practical conservation skills, and confidence 
building activities. 

Its microgrant programme helps people to 
restore nature where they live, including the 
creation of wildflower gardens, improvements 
to tree orchards, hedgerows, wildlife ponds 
and school grounds. The Trustees 
appreciated the practical nature of the 
charity’s work and what it achieves on a 
relatively lean budget, and were happy to 
make a core cost grant of £8,000.

Streetbikes

The grant from Garfield Weston 
has been invaluable in 
extending the sustainability of 
our work, as, year on year, 
people attending the cycling 
sessions and bikes we return to 
the community increases.

Clare Taylor, Fundraising Officer 

The support of Garfield 
Weston has enabled us to 
expand our community 
rewilding programmes, restore 
threatened habitats, and 
inspire young people to lead 
nature recovering in their own 
communities. Our grant is 
helping us to build a powerful, 
grassroots rewilding 
movement across the Scottish 
Boarders.

Jason Dyer, 
Fundraising Manager
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Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra

Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra (BSO) is 
the largest cultural organisation in the South 
West, based at the Lighthouse, Poole. Last 
year, over 144,000 people experienced its 
performances, either in person in the 
region’s towns, cities and isolated costal 
communities, or online via their digital 
concerts. A further 47,000 engaged with 
BSO Participate, the orchestra’s award 
winning outreach programme that takes 
pioneering music projects into schools, 
community groups, care homes and 
healthcare settings in over 200 locations 
across the region.

The Trustees appreciated the breadth of the 
orchestra’s outreach work and its efforts to 
diversify its income in anticipation of reduced 
statutory funding. The Trustees were delighted 
to make a grant of £300,000 over three 
years to support BSO Participate, enabling 
the orchestra to plan with confidence for 
following years.

Hull Minster

Hull Minster has been a place of Christian 
worship and hospitality for over 700 years. 
The Minster is not only a church but provides 
a wide range of community activities and 
events aimed at low-income families, and a 
range of volunteering opportunities. Its café 
provides support and meals to up to 200 
people each week, its choral and music 
programme provides music workshops to 
over 1,000 young people from local schools 
in deprived communities, and its outreach 
programme supports over 2,000 children, 
young people and adults. In total, the 
Minster welcomes over 100,000 visitors 
each year. 

The Trustees appreciated the wide range of 
local partnerships the Minster has 
developed to ensure it is reaching those 
most in need and its clear fundraising plan 
to meet the costs of its outreach work, giving 
them confidence to make a grant of 
£50,000 over two years.

Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra

The Foundation’s grant will supercharge our learning, 
participation and creative-health programme for three 
years: from schools’ concerts and mentoring for our young 
musicians, to a growing network of recovery and wellbeing 
orchestras. I’m especially delighted that, with the 
Foundation’s help, we can expand our work in hospitals 
into new counties, taking the healing power of music to 
the people who need it most.

Dougie Scarfe OBE DL, Chief Executive
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Empire Fighting Chance

Empire Fighting Chance (EFC) uses the 
power of non-contact boxing to fight the 
impact of social disadvantage and inequality 
for young people in over 40 locations across 
the UK. In total, EFC works with 10,000 
young people each year who are 
experiencing poor mental health and those 
who engage in destructive behaviours 
including violence and self-harm and who 
feel excluded from many mainstream 
services. 

Despite considerable growth over the past 
few years, the charity was hampered by its 
physical base. To address this, EFC applied 
to the Foundation for its capital project to 

Hull Minster

Thanks to the support of 
the Garfield Weston 
Foundation, we’ve been 
able to continue offering a 
warm welcome to the 
thousands who pass 
through our doors each 
year.

Our grant from Garfield Weston 
enabled us to transform our 
boxing gym. Expanding The Mill’s 
footprint is going to be game 
changing for us. We’ll be able to 
work with hundreds more young 
people each year, improve the 
quality of our psychologically 
charged boxing programmes 
and create a vital community 
hub in inner city Bristol.

 Martin Bisp, CEO
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build a two-storey extension to its Bristol 
base. The charity had planning permission in 
place and had raised over 50% of the total 
project cost when it applied, and could 
demonstrate how the charity would absorb 
the additional running costs of its expanded 
footprint. The Trustees were happy to make a 
major grant of £250,000 to help EFC with 
this capital project.

Bangladesh Youth Movement

Bangladesh Youth Movement (BYM) was 
established in 1976 to support young 
people from Bangladeshi communities and, 
over the years, has expanded to support 
people of all ages from any ethnically diverse 
community. Tower Hamlets is characterised 
by extreme deprivation, high levels of child 
poverty and is an area where 54% of 
residents are from ethnically diverse 
communities. The charity delivers a wide 
range of support including a drop-in advice 
service, a targeted debt support project, a 
weekly youth club, a Saturday school, and a 
women and girls project. 

BYM partners with a wide range of local 
organisations including Job Centres, GPs, 
family centres and tenants associations and 
could demonstrate the impact of its work as 
a result of its monitoring and evaluation. The 
charity provided a clear breakdown of its 
anticipated expenditure and its income 
broken down by source including statutory 
funding, earned income, community 
fundraising and trusts. The Trustees 
appreciated the practical support the charity 
provides and how it has adapted to respond 
to local need, and were happy to make a 
core cost grant of £30,000 over two years.

Bangladesh Youth Movement

Empire Fighting Chance
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Without grant funding, people who are excluded 
from community services on an ongoing basis 
would quite simply have no-one to turn to, losing 
their health, money and homes; BYM is a 
sanctuary in the most deprived of areas, thanks 
to the Garfield Weston Foundation.

Fanu Miah, BYM Chief Officer

Parkinson’s UK

Parkinson’s UK is the leading charity 
dedicated to supporting and empowering the 
166,000 people living with Parkinson’s in 
the UK, ensuring access to high-quality care, 
and driving the search for better treatments 
and a cure. The charity identified that 20% of 
people with the disease still have no or 
limited access to specialist nursing and, with 
the number of people affected by this 
neurological condition projected to increase 
by 20% in the next five years, launched a 
£12 million appeal to seed fund at least 20

nurses and 30 allied health professionals 
over four years.

When Parkinson’s UK applied to the 
Foundation, it had secured over £5 million 
and could clearly show what grants of 
varying levels would achieve; every 
£100,000 would deliver around 3,000 hours 
of vital specialist care. The Trustees were 
delighted to make a grant of £1 million over 
three years to help the charity achieve its 
target.

Parkinson’s UK

The Foundation’s generous 
grant is transforming access 
to specialist care for people 
with Parkinson’s across the UK. 
By funding, training and 
supporting new Parkinson’s 
nurses and allied health 
professionals, the Foundation 
is helping to ensure thousands 
more people receive the life-
changing support they need to 
live well with the condition. 
Together, we’re creating a 
future where no one faces 
Parkinson’s alone.

Paul Jackson-Clark, Director of 
Fundraising and Experience
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Dacorum Heritage Trust

Dacorum Heritage Trust is an accredited 
museum and archive for the Borough of 
Dacorum, Hertfordshire. It cares for over 
131,000 items from prehistoric hand axes 
and Roman paw prints preserved in roof tiles, 
to 20th century artwork, and provides access 
to its collection via creative engagement 
opportunities within the local community, 
such as pop-up exhibitions and handling 
sessions. When Garfield Weston established 
the Foundation in 1958, he endowed it with 
shares in the family business, Wittington 
Investments. Today, Wittington Investments’ 
largest investment is in Associated British 
Foods (ABF) which makes some of the best-
known food brands in the UK, including 
Ovaltine. In 2022, ABF transferred the 
ownership of the Ovaltine Collection, over 

10,000 items relating to the history of the 
production of Ovaltine at its former factory in  
nearby Kings Langley, to Dacorum Heritage 
Trust, making it one of the largest archives 
owned by the trust.

Dacorum Heritage Trust had plans to 
conserve fragile artwork and to digitise 
damaged advertising film, to record the 
memories of former Ovaltine employees and 
to develop a public engagement programme. 
Dacorum Heritage Trust presented a very 
clear proposal with detailed timescales, 
budgets and anticipated outcomes and the 
Trustees were delighted to make a project 
grant of £90,000 to help conserve a part of 
local Herfordshire – and ABF’s – heritage.

Dacorum Heritage Trust

As we work more on the 
Ovaltine Collection, we realise 
how important an employer and 
supportive of the community 
the Ovaltine factory was to the 
area. The continued support of 
the Garfield Weston Foundation 
means that we can continue to 
care for and share the 
wonderful artwork of the 
Ovaltine brand. 

Melissa Maynard-Linsey, 
Museum Manager
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SafeLives

SafeLives is the UK-wide charity working to 
end domestic abuse, for everyone, for good. 
It works with government and organisations 
across the UK to transform the response to 
domestic abuse (DA), a pervasive and 
complex issue that over 2 million people in 
the UK experience each year. SafeLives has 
a track record for innovating and placing 
victims of abuse at the heart of its approach, 
holds the largest dataset on DA in the UK 
and is the largest single provider of 
specialised DA training. 

SafeLives aims to continue to influence 
large-scale systemic change and clearly 
communicated their priority areas in their 
application. The charity has a varied range of 
income sources, however, similar to most 
charities, requires unrestricted funding in 
order to adapt to need. SafeLives was clear 

about its future strategy and the Trustees 
were happy to make a three-year grant of 
£450,000 to support the charity’s important 
work.

In addition to the systems-wide work that 
SafeLives undertakes, the Foundation made 
79 grants in the last financial year to local 
organisations working to support victims of 
DA as well as to deliver preventative 
education programmes and train 
professionals in how to work in a trauma-
informed way. The Trustees continue to value 
these vital, local support services in the 
knowledge of the lifeline they provide to 
many vulnerable people. Grant recipients 
span the UK and include Perthshire 
Women’s Aid, Cornwall Refuge Trust, 
Crossroads Derbyshire, Birmingham Crisis 
Centre, Women’s Aid Armagh Down and 
Phoenix Domestic Abuse Services in Wales.

SafeLives

Thanks to the Garfield Weston 
Foundation’s support, we’re reaching 
more professionals and communities 
with the tools they need to prevent, 
intervene and respond effectively to 
DA. Together, we’re making sure every 
adult and child affected by abuse 
gets the right help, at the right time – 
no matter how they are or where they 
live. Your support helps us to find 
what works and help it happen, and 
we’re grateful for your belief in this 
mission.

Ellen Miller. Chief Executive
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Summary of grants awarded in the year ended 5 April 2025

Category
Over

£20,000
No. of

grants
£20,000

and under
No. of

grants
Total

amount £
Total no.
of grants

Arts  9,904,500 164 2,835,000 188 12,739,500 352

Community 8,913,000 142 2,740,500 233 11,653,500 375

Education 5,756,000 62 962,500 83 6,718,500 145

Environment 18,430,000 75 618,500 48 19,048,500 123

Faith 3,003,000 74 3,348,675 325 6,351,675 399

Health 22,352,000 127 2,375,500 170 24,727,500 297

Museums & 
Heritage 7,389,000 49 494,000 36 7,883,000 85

Welfare 22,400,000 376 6,326,000 462 28,726,000 838

Youth 8,340,000 161 2,539,500 185 10,879,500 346

Other 622,000 6 2,000 1 624,000 7

Totals 107,109,500 1,236 22,242,175 1,731 129,351,675 2,967

22  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2025

Arts £12,739,500

Community £11,653,500

Education £6,718,500
Welfare £28,726,000

Faith £6,351,675

Environment £19,048,500Museums & Heritage
£7,883,000

Youth £10,879,500

Other £624,000

Total amount by category

Health £24,727,500



North East £3,338,500

Non-UK £665,000

East Midlands £3,567,000

Eastern £5,899,000

National (inc. London) 
£52,838,000

North West £9,195,500

West Midlands £11,144,675

Yorkshire & The Humber £7,370,500

Wales £3,573,500

South West £9,061,000

Northern Ireland £2,687,500

Scotland £9,249,000

South East £10,762,500
Total amount by region
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Scotland 301 Northern Ireland 87 

East Midlands 142 

Eastern 200 

National (inc. London) 618 

North East 123

Non-UK 4 

North West 274

South East 380

Yorkshire & The Humber 211

West Midlands 190

Wales 133

South West 304

Number of grants by region

Health 297

Arts 352

Community 375

Education 145

Environment 123

Welfare 838

Faith 399
Museums & Heritage 85

Youth 346

Other 7

Number of grants by category



Independent auditors’ report to the Trustees of the Garfield Weston 
Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Garfield Weston Foundation (the charity) for the 
year ended 5 April 2025 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance 
Sheet, the Cashflow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

■ give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 5 April 2025 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended

■ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice

■ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISA (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.  

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the 
other information contained within the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charity and its environment obtained in 
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ report. 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

■ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us

■ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

■ certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made

■ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Trustees 

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 10, the 
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to 
liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in 
accordance with the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located 
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities 
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures 
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the charity and the industry in which it operates, we identified 
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the acts by the 
charity, which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and we 
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial 
statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the 
preparation of the financial statements such as the Charities Act 2011. 

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial 
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risk 
related to the valuation of the unquoted investment in Wittington Investments Limited 
(‘Wittington’) of which the Foundation owns 683,073 50p ordinary shares (79.2%). 

The valuation of Wittington requires significant estimation as it is an unquoted company and 
there is no readily identifiable market price for its shares. Accordingly, the value of the 
Foundation’s investment has been assessed by the Trustees on the basis of the share of the 
value of the underling net assets of Wittington attributable to the Foundation’s holding as at 5 
April 2025. As Wittington’s financial statements are audited as at 14 September 2024, there is 
a varying degree of estimation required to assess the net asset value as at 5 April 2025 and 
therefore there is more potential for misstatement in this area. 

We assessed Management’s valuation methodology and considered whether it was in 
accordance with the accounting policies of the Foundation, applicable accounting standards 
and industry practice. Wittington’s principal asset is a majority holding (58.1%) in Associated 
British Foods plc. Therefore, the value of the Foundation’s investment in Wittington is driven 
predominantly by the Associated British Foods plc share price as at 5 April 2025. As the shares 
are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the value of this holding can be determined easily. 

Other audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to 
underlying supporting documentation to assess compliance with relevant laws and regulations, 
review of minutes of meetings held by those charged with governance, enquiries of 
management and testing of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the 
Trustees that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed 
non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the 
financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional 
misrepresentations, or through collusion.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charity’s Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 8 of the Charities Act 2011 and regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity’s Trustees those matters we 
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
charity and the charity’s Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.

25 September 2025
UHY Hacker Young LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the 
Companies Act 2006.

UHY Hacker Young
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor 

Quadrant House
4 Thomas More Square 
London E1W 1YW
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Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2025

All recognised gains and losses have been included in the Statement of Financial Activities and 
the amounts included are derived entirely from the continuing activities of the Foundation.

Unrestricted funds

N
ot

es

Income
funds
£’000

Expendable
capital
£’000

Permanent 
endowment

funds
£’000

Total funds
2025

£’000

Total funds
2024

£’000

Income and 
endowments from

Financial 
investments 2a) 152,294 3,149 - 155,443 110,302

Cash income 152,294 3,149 - 155,443 110,302

Social investments 
(non-cash) 2b) 10,000 - - 10,000 -

Total income 162,294 3,149 - 165,443 110,302

Expenditure

Costs of generating 
funds:

Raising funds (95) (211) - (306) (261)

Charitable activities:

Grant making 
activities 4 (130,533) - - (130,533) (101,731)

Total expenditure (130,628) (211) - (130,839) (101,992)

Net income 31,666 2,938 - 34,604 8,310

Other recognised 
gains and losses

Gains/(losses) on 
revaluation and 
disposal of 
investment assets 4,424 (2,867) (1,360,199) (1,358,642) 1,801,693

Net movement in 
funds before 
transfers between 
funds 36,090 71 (1,360,199) (1,324,038) 1,810,003

Gross transfers 
between funds 12 1,873 (1,873) - - -

Net movement in 
funds 37,963 (1,802) (1,360,199) (1,324,038) 1,810,003

Reconciliation of 
funds 

Total funds brought 
forward 32,127 110,302 9,984,375 10,126,804 8,316,801

Total funds carried 
forward 70,090 108,500 8,624,176 8,802,766 10,126,804
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Balance sheet as at 5 April 2025

The financial statements on pages 28 to 86 were approved by the Trustees on 25 September 
2025 and were signed on their behalf by:

Sir Guy Weston, Chair

Sophia Weston, OBE, Deputy Chair

         2025         2024

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed assets

Investments 9 8,751,783 10,093,969

Current assets

Debtors: amounts falling due 
within one year:

Investments 9 102,229 85,202

Debtors 10 1,545 678

Cash at bank 31,916 10,968

135,690 96,848

Creditors: amounts falling 
due within one year 11(a) (84,707) (64,013)

Net current assets 50,983 32,835

Net assets 8,802,766 10,126,804

Permanent endowment 
funds 12 & 13 8,624,176 9,984,375

Unrestricted funds

Expendable capital funds 12 & 13 108,500 110,302

Income funds 12 & 13 70,090 32,127

8,802,766 10,126,804
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 5 April 2025

Notes
2025

£’000
2024

£’000

Cashflows from operating activities

Net (expense)/income for the reporting period (as per 
the Statement of financial activities) (1,324,038) 1,810,003

Adjustments for

Other income – social investments (non-cash) (10,000) -

Losses/(gains) on investments 1,358,642 (1,802,666)

Dividends and interest from investments (155,443) (110,302)

Increase in debtors (867) (352)

Increase in creditors 20,694 11,043

Net cash used in operating activities (111,012) (92,274)

Cash flow from investing activities

Dividends and interest from investments 155,443 110,302

Proceeds from disposal of investments 253,106 143,270

Purchase of financial investments (263,240) (184,631)

Purchase of social investments (10,000) -

Net cash provided by investing activities 135,309 68,941

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14 24,297 (23,333)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 14 12,167 35,500

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14 36,464 12,167
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 5 April 2025

1 Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting 
standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 
FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic 
of Ireland’ (“FRS 102”). In particular, they comply with the Charities Act 2011 and the 
Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities (the “SORP”).

The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have departed 
from the Charities (Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to 
provide a ‘true and fair’ view. This departure has involved following the Charities SORP (FRS 
102). 

Garfield Weston Foundation (‘the Foundation’) constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by 
FRS 102. The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that certain 
financial instruments are stated at fair value. 

The financial statements have been prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the 
Foundation. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to £’000s.  

The particular accounting policies adopted by the Trustees are described below:

a Going concern

After making enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Foundation 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For 
this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements.

Having reviewed the best estimate of future cash flows to October 2026, and having 
applied reverse stress tests, the possibility that the financial headroom could be exhausted 
is considered to be extremely remote. The Trustees understand the risks, sensitivities and 
judgements included in the cash flow forecast and have a high degree of confidence in 
these cash flows. There is substantial financial headroom between this cash flow forecast 
and the cash on hand and funding available to the Foundation over the period.

b Fund structure

 Permanent endowment
The permanent endowment funds comprise the original capital fund, and gains thereto, 
established to provide income for grant payments in accordance with the objectives of the 
Foundation. The capital may not be converted into income. The funds are represented by 
the unquoted investments included in fixed assets. Unrealised gains on revaluation of 
these investments are credited to the funds.

 Unrestricted expendable capital
In accordance with the authority given to the Trustees under an Order of the Charity 
Commission dated 19 September 2001, £65,747,000 was transferred to an expendable 
capital fund in relation to which income and capital are distributable at the discretion of 
the Trustees. £5 million was invested in 2001/02 in the Charities Property Fund and £60 
million was invested in 2002/03 with investment managers in balanced portfolios on a 
discretionary total return basis. Income and investment gains and losses are taken to this 
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fund and the amount allocated to income by the Trustees, £1,873,047 (2024: 
£2,142,625), is shown as a transfer to the income fund.

 Unrestricted income funds
The income of the Foundation is expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in 
furtherance of the objects of the Foundation. Gains on investments held in the income 
funds are credited to these funds.

c Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Foundation’s accounting policies, the Trustees are required to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only 
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects 
both current and future periods.The estimates and assumptions which have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are 
outlined below:

 Investment valuation
The Foundation’s financial investments are stated at market value. Financial investments 
comprise both quoted and unquoted investments and are initially measured at transaction 
price, excluding transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value at each 
reporting date. Changes in fair value are recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the 
year. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Valuations are obtained from investment 
managers. The Trustees do not believe that there is any inherent uncertainty in the 
presentation of these amounts, and that in their judgement, market value and fair value 
may be regarded as identical for the purposes of these accounts. 

Social investments are investments made directly in pursuit of the Foundation’s charitable 
purposes and are stated at the amount invested less impairment.

d Incoming resources

Dividends are included when received. Interest receivable on fixed interest securities and 
bank deposits is included on an accruals basis. All incoming resources are recognised 
once the Charity has entitlement to the resources, it is probable that the resources will be 
received, and the monetary value of incoming resources can be measured with sufficient 
reliability. 

e Resources expended and irrecoverable VAT

Liabilities are recognised as resources expended as soon as there is a legal or constructive 
obligation committing the Charity to the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an 
accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related to 
the category.

Grants awarded are charged in the year when formally awarded by the Trustees and 
communicated to the recipient irrespective of the period covered by the donation as they 
are regarded by the Trustees as financial obligations.
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Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended, for which it was 
incurred. 

f Allocation of overhead and support costs

Overhead and support costs are allocated first between charitable activity and governance. 
Overhead and support costs relating to charitable activities have been apportioned based 
on the value of individual grant awards made as it is considered that more is spent 
awarding, monitoring and assessing grants of greater value. The allocation of overhead 
and support costs is analysed in note 5.

g Costs of generating funds

The costs of generating funds consist of investment management fees and commissions.  

h Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities include grants made and an apportionment of overhead and 
support costs as shown in notes 3, 4 and 5.

i Governance costs

Governance costs comprise all costs involving the public accountability of the Charity and 
its compliance with regulation and good practice. These costs include costs related to 
statutory audit and legal fees together with an apportionment of overhead and support 
costs.

j Interest in Wittington Investments Limited

At 5 April 2025 the Foundation owned 79.2% (2024: 79.2%) of Wittington Investments 
Limited (‘Wittington’), a company registered in England. Wittington is the ultimate holding 
company of Associated British Foods plc (‘ABF’), and a wide range of investments including 
Fortnum & Mason plc and Heal’s plc, one hotel, a real estate portfolio and significant 
financial investments. ABF is listed on the London Stock Exchange. The Foundation 
receives its income from Wittington Investments Limited by way of dividends and records 
its investment in that company at the Trustees’ valuation.

As the activities of Wittington and its subsidiaries are fundamentally different from the 
activities of the Foundation, consolidated accounts have not been prepared as the 
Trustees are of the opinion that the adopted policy gives a true and fair view of the 
Foundation’s assets and sources of income. Details of the value of the Foundation’s 
interest in Wittington and its subsidiaries are shown in note 9 to these accounts. The 
Trustees have agreed this policy of not consolidating the assets and liabilities of Wittington 
and its subsidiaries with the Charity Commission. 

k Investments

Non-current and current financial investments are stated at market value as at the balance 
sheet date and include cash held for future investment. The statement of financial 
activities includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluation and disposals throughout 
the year. Certain bonds are classified as current investments as they are expected to be 
realised within 12 months of the reporting date.

Social investments are investments made directly in pursuit of the Foundation’s charitable 
purposes and are stated at the amount invested less impairment.
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l Realised gains and losses

All gains and losses are taken to the statement of financial activities as they arise. 
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales 
proceeds and opening market value. Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the 
difference between the market value at the year end and opening market value. Realised 
and unrealised gains are not separated in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

m Fund accounting

Details of the nature and purpose of each fund are set out in note 12.

n Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are shown in note 8 to these accounts and are 
recognised when the Foundation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

Financial assets which qualify as basic financial instruments, including trade and other 
receivables and cash, are subsequently valued at amortised cost and assessed for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

Other financial assets, including investments, are subsequently valued at fair value.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at 
transaction price including transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as 
at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. If an 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of 
interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised only when either the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or are settled or all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are substantially transferred to another party.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial investments are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. The market 
values of the managed portfolios are advised by the portfolio managers. The statement of 
financial activities includes the net gains and losses arising in revaluation and disposals 
through the year. 

■ Quoted investments comprise publicly quoted, listed securities including shares, bonds 
and units. Quoted investments are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. 

■ Unquoted investments are valued at the Trustees’ best estimate of fair value as 
explained in note 9.

Social investments are investments made directly in pursuit of the Foundation’s charitable 
purposes and are stated at the amount invested less impairment.
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2 Income

a) Investment income

The unlisted investment income comprises dividends received from Wittington Investments 
Limited.

 Investment income – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2024

b) Other income – social investments

A payment previously treated as a grant payment has been reclassified as a social investment 
following an agreement with the recipient during the current year. 

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Unlisted equities - - 151,698 151,698 106,560

Listed equities 1,133 - - 1,133 1,134

Listed unit trusts 192 273 - 465 538

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 435 - - 435 575

Endowment Fund 1,088 - - 1,088 1,016

2,848 273 151,698 154,819 109,823

Cash deposits – interest 624 479

155,443 110,302

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

2024
£’000

2023
£’000

Unlisted equities - - 106,560 106,560 87,092

Listed equities 1,134 - - 1,134 1,167

Listed unit trusts 167 371 - 538 443

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 575 - - 575 356

Endowment Fund 1,016 - - 1,016 949

2,892 371 106,560 109,823 90,007

Cash deposits – interest 479 346

110,302 90,353

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Social investments (non-cash) 10,000 -
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3 Grant-making activities

The list of individual grants made during the year is set out in note 16 and grants paid during 
the year are summarised by category in note 11.

Significant aspects of the grant activity during the year are described on pages 13 to 21 of the 
Trustees’ report.

4 Analysis of charitable expenditure

The Charity undertook no direct charitable activities but awarded grants to a number of 
institutions in furtherance of its charitable activities. As a consequence of supporting charitable 
organisations, the Foundation achieves public benefit. The Foundation’s grant policy is to 
accept only appeals from UK registered charities. Registration provides an element of 
assurance of public benefit, although for charities registered before the implementation of the 
Charities Act 2006 the public benefit was a presumption.

Grant 
funded 
activity 

£’000

Support 
costs

 £’000

Governance 
costs
£’000

2025
Total

£’000

2024
Total

£’000

Arts 12,740 182 59 12,981 18,032

Community 11,654 166 54 11,874 10,345

Education 6,719 96 31 6,846 18,423

Environment 19,048 272 89 19,409 15,332

Faith 6,352 91 29 6,472 4,047

Health 24,727 353 115 25,195 10,474

Museums & Heritage 7,883 112 37 8,032 7,319

Welfare 28,726 410 134 29,270 12,771

Youth 10,879 155 51 11,085 6,272

Other 624 9 3 636 -

129,352 1,846 602 131,800 103,015

Return relating to grants 
made in prior years (881) - - (881) (90)

Expired commitments (386) - - (386) (1,194)

128,085 1,846 602 130,533 101,731

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Grants awarded and associated costs (note 4) 130,533 101,731
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 Analysis of charitable expenditure – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2024

5 Allocation of support costs and overheads

The costs relating to grant-making activity represent costs incurred in assessing applications, 
administration of the grants awarded and post grant monitoring.  

The Foundation does not employ any staff. Staff costs comprise charges of £983,626 (2024: 
£818,609) from Wittington in respect of the work undertaken by its employees for the 
Foundation.

Included within other support costs and overheads are amounts relating to accountancy of 
£68,527 (2024: £67,669), computing and IT costs of £334,698 (2024: £226,193) and 
accommodation costs of £472,988 (2024: £444,552). 

Governance
costs
£’000

Grant-
making
activity 

£’000

Total
2025

£’000

Total
2024

£’000
Basis of 

Apportionment

Legal & professional 
fee costs 114 - 114 27 N/A

Staff costs 197 787 984 819 Staff time

Other costs 291 1,059 1,350 1,533 Staff time

602 1,846 2,448 2,379

Grant 
funded 
activity 

£’000

Support 
costs

 £’000

Governance 
costs
£’000

2024
Total

£’000

2023
Total

£’000

Arts 17,615 302 115 18,032 18,817

Community 10,106 173 66 10,345 9,873

Education 17,997 309 117 18,423 7,147

Environment 14,977 257 98 15,332 12,586

Faith 3,954 67 26 4,047 4,116

Health 10,232 175 67 10,474 10,684

Museums & Heritage 7,151 122 46 7,319 5,333

Welfare 12,477 213 81 12,771 15,883

Youth 6,127 105 40 6,272 8,574

Other - - - - 420

100,636 1,723 656 103,015 93,433

Return relating to grants 
made in prior years (90) - - (90) (378)

Expired commitments (1,194) - - (1,194) (1,302)

99,352 1,723 656 101,731 91,753
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Nine (2024: 9) Trustees received expenses totalling £16,907 (2024: £17,383) relating to travel 
and subsistence. 

The total support cost attributable to charitable activities is then apportioned pro rata to the 
value of grants awarded in the year as set out in note 4.

 Allocation of support costs and overheads – comparatives for the year   
 ended 5 April 2024

6 Analysis of governance costs

The governance costs comprise costs of running the Foundation and planning for future 
developments, including audit fees and costs of complying with constitutional and statutory 
requirements, such as Trustees’ meetings and the preparation of accounts satisfying public 
accountability.

Governance
costs
£’000

Grant-
making
activity 

£’000

Total
2024

£’000

Total
2023

£’000
Basis of 

Apportionment

Legal & professional 
fee costs 27 - 27 57 N/A

Staff costs 179 640 819 910 Staff time

Other costs 450 1,083 1,533 1,327 Staff time

656 1,723 2,379 2,294

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Auditors’ remuneration – audit services 31 30

Staff costs 197 179

Other support costs 374 447

602 656
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7 Trustees’ remuneration

a Trustees’ remuneration 

No remuneration was paid to the Trustees for their services to the Foundation. 

b Directors’ remuneration

As stated in notes 1(j) and 9, the Foundation owns 79.2% of Wittington which in turn holds 
58.1% of ABF and 100% of Fortnum & Mason plc plus a number of other wholly owned 
subsidiaries.

Three of the Trustees, Guy Weston, George Weston and Anna Catrina Hobhouse are 
directors of Wittington. Of these three Guy Weston and Anna Catrina Hobhouse received 
remuneration from Wittington Investments Limited. 

George Weston is Group Chief Executive Director of ABF and received remuneration from 
the company in that capacity. Anna Catrina Hobhouse is chairperson and a director of 
Fortnum & Mason plc and received remuneration from Wittington in that capacity.

Remuneration (comprising salary, fees, bonus and benefits) paid to Trustees in their 
capacity as directors of these companies, which is authorised by clause 13 of the Trust 
Deed, as set out in the most recently available accounts of the relevant companies, was as 
follows: 

Note: full details of George G Weston’s remuneration, pension and options are set out in the 
Remuneration Report contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2024 of Associated British 
Foods plc.

Year ended
14 September 2024

£’000

Year ended
16 September 2023

£’000

Anna Catrina Hobhouse – 
as a non- executive director of Wittington 
Investments Limited 42 42

as a chairperson and director of Fortnum 
& Mason plc 173 165

Alannah Weston –
as a non-executive director of Wittington 
Investments Limited 12 42

Guy H Weston – 
as a director of Wittington Investments Limited 454 433

George G Weston – 
as a director of Associated British Foods plc 
(note below) 6,053 4,316
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c  Key management remuneration

Key management personnel’s remuneration constituted the total aggregate amount of 
£382,772 (2024: £417,933).

d Related party transactions

As at 5 April 2025, the Foundation holds 683,073 shares (2024: 683,073) in Wittington 
representing 79.2% (2024: 79.2%) of the issued share capital and is therefore Wittington’s 
ultimate controlling party. During the year, the Foundation received dividends of 
£151,642,000 (2024: £106,559,000) from Wittington. Wittington recharges staff costs in 
respect of the work undertaken by its employees for the Foundation, rent and other office 
expenses relating to the Foundation, all recharges of £1,848,077 (2024: £1,657,705) 
were made at arm’s length. There were no other related party transactions.

8 Financial instruments

9 Investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Social 
invesments

£’000
Total

£’000

At valuation 
Non-current investments

At 6 April 2024 102,461 5,655 9,985,853 - 10,093,969

Additions 30,097 - - 20,000 50,097

Disposals (32,806) - - - (32,806)

Valuation movement 503 124 (1,360,104) - (1,359,477)

At 5 April 2025 100,255 5,779 8,625,749 20,000 8,751,783

At cost*

At 6 April 2024 68,500 5,000 4,745 - 78,245

Movement in year - - - 20,000 20,000

68,500 5,000 4,745 20,000 98,245

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 1,545 678

Instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 8,854,012 10,179,171

8,855,557 10,179,849

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost 84,707 64,013

84,707 64,013
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* The cost at 5 April 2025 and 6 April 2024 is the historical cost of the investment in the  
managed funds and the charities property fund or, in the case of unlisted investments, the 
valuation at the date of the gift to the Foundation.

 Investments – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2024

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

At valuation 
Non-current investments

At 6 April 2023 136,265 5,990 8,192,596 8,334,851

Movement in year (33,804) (335) 1,793,257 1,759,118

At 5 April 2024 102,461 5,655 9,985,853 10,093,969

At Cost*

At 6 April 2023 108,500 5,000 4,745 118,245

Movement in year (40,000) - - (40,000)

At 5 April 2024 68,500 5,000 4,745 78,245

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

At valuation 
Current investments

At 6 April 2024 85,202 - - 85,202

Addition 233,143 - - 233,143

Disposal (220,300) - - (220,300)

Valuation movement 4,184 - - 4,184

At 5 April 2025 102,229 - - 102,229

At Cost*

At 6 April 2024 82,762 - - 82,762

Addition 233,143 - - 233,143

Disposal (220,300) - - (220,300)

At 5 April 2025 95,605 - - 95,605
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 Analysis of value of investment assets at 5 April 2025 by type

Current investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 102,159 - - 102,159

Cash held within the portfolio 70 - - 70

102,229 - - 102,229

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

At valuation 
Current investments

At 6 April 2023 - - - -

Movement in year 85,202 - - 85,202

At 5 April 2024 85,202 - - 85,202

At Cost*

At 6 April 2023 - - - -

Movement in year 82,762 - - 82,762

At 5 April 2024 82,762 - - 82,762

Non-current investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Social 
investments

£’000
Total

£’000

Unlisted securities - - 8,625,749 - 8,625,749

Listed equities 57,690 5,779 - - 63,469

Listed unit trusts 1,580 - - - 1,580

Listed corporate bonds and 
gilts 8,341 - - - 8,341

Unlisted property funds 1,076 - - - 1,076

Charitable unauthorised unit 
trust 27,090 - - - 27,090

Cash held within the portfolio 4,478 - - - 4,478

Financial investments 100,255 5,779 8,625,749 - 8,731,783

Social investments - - - 20,000 20,000

100,255 5,779 8,625,749 20,000 8,751,783
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 Analysis of value of investment assets by type – comparatives for the year  
 ended 5 April 2024

The managed funds are managed on a discretionary total return basis.

The charities property fund comprises units in the Savills Charities’ Property Fund.

Unlisted investments

The unlisted investments comprise 683,073 50p ordinary shares (79.2%) of Wittington 
Investments Limited, an unquoted company, see note 1 (j).

The business of Wittington is the management of investments in a wide range of assets. As it is 
an unquoted company there is no readily identifiable market price for its shares. Accordingly, 
the value of the Foundation’s investments has been assessed by the Trustees on the basis of 
the share of the value of the underlying net assets of Wittington attributable to the 
Foundation’s holding.

At 5 April 2025, Wittington’s principal asset is a holding of 58.1% (2024: 56.2%) of the issued 
ordinary capital of ABF which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. In assessing the value of 
the underlying net assets of Wittington, the value of its investment in ABF has been based on 
the closing price as at 5 April 2025. 

Current investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 84,861 - - 84,861

Cash held within the portfolio 341 - - 341

85,202 - - 85,202

Non-current investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Unlisted securities - - 9,985,853 9,985,853

Listed equities 47,742 5,655 - 53,397

Listed unit trusts 19,148 - - 19,148

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 8,232 - - 8,232

Unlisted property funds 780 - - 780

Charitable unauthorised unit trust 25,701 - - 25,701

Cash held within the portfolio 858 - - 858

102,461 5,655 9,985,853 10,093,969
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In addition, Wittington holds a wide range of other assets managed in three different business 
segments:

■ Retail: comprising the 100% ownership of Fortnum & Mason and Heal’s, two long 
established retailers.

■ Real estate: investing in high-quality investment properties in the retail, office, distribution 
and hotel sectors across the UK. Wittington also takes strategic positions in selective 
development opportunities, alongside local partners or sector specialists.

■ Financial investments: investing both directly and via externally managed funds in private 
equity, private debt and fixed income markets. Other investments are principally composed 
of liquid investments in short-dated investment grade bonds and listed equities

The most recent financial year end for Wittington was 14 September 2024. As such, aside from 
the investment in ABF, Wittington’s remaining investments have been valued using net asset 
values in the 31 March 2025 management accounts, which are considered to be their fair 
values. At 5 April 2025, the fair value of Wittington including ABF is considered to be £10.88 
billion and the Foundation’s share of this (79.2%) is £8.62 billion. 

The Trustees have no current intention of disposing of the interest in Wittington.

10 Debtors

11 a Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Grants payable 84,005 63,149

Accrued expenses 423 405

Trade creditors 279 459

84,707 64,013

2025
£’000

2024
£’000

Debtor: amounts falling due within one year

Accrued interest 605 296

Amount due from investment managers 940 382

1,545 678
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 b Total grants payable 

Grants payable includes future payments of £32 million (2024: £26.8 million) due to charities 
under existing multi-year arrangements, and pledges of £32.9 million (2024: £35.7 million) that 
require charities to fulfil specific prerequisite obligations.

 Total grants payable – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2024

Grants 
payable 

b’fwd 
£’000

Grants 
awarded 

£’000

Grants
paid

£’000
Grants 

lapsed £’000

Grants
payable 

c’fwd
£’000

Arts 3,261 17,615 (10,620) - 10,256

Community 3,527 10,106 (9,726) (95) 3,812

Education 4,607 17,997 (8,359) (593) 13,652

Environment 6,901 14,977 (9,569) (50) 12,259

Faith 2,415 3,953 (4,557) (205) 1,606

Health 13,587 10,232 (15,757) (140) 7,922

Museums & 
Heritage 4,210 7,152 (7,387) (25) 3,950

Welfare 6,573 12,477 (14,036) (40) 4,974

Youth 7,093 6,127 (8,676) (46) 4,498

Other 370 - (150) - 220

52,544 100,636 (88,837) (1,194) 63,149

Grants 
payable 

b’fwd 
£’000

Grants 
awarded 

£’000

Grants
paid

£’000

Grants
lapsed 
£’000

Grants
payable 

c’fwd
£’000

Arts 10,256 12,740 (11,687) (45) 11,264

Community 3,812 11,654 (10,149) (143) 5,174

Education 13,652 6,719 (7,035) (50) 13,286

Environment 12,259 19,048 (12,281) - 19,026

Faith 1,606 6,352 (5,575) (35) 2,348

Health 7,922 24,727 (27,468) (33) 5,148

Museums & 
Heritage 3,950 7,883 (779) - 11,054

Welfare 4,974 28,726 (23,174) (15) 10,511

Youth 4,498 10,879 (9,508) (65) 5,804

Other 220 624 (454) - 390

63,149 129,352 (108,110) (386) 84,005
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12 Analysis of charitable funds

Permanent endowment

The permanent endowment funds comprise the original capital fund, and gains thereto, 
established to provide income for grant payments in accordance with the objectives of the 
Foundation. The capital may not be converted into income. The funds are represented by the 
unquoted investments included in fixed assets. Unrealised gains on revaluation of these 
investments are credited to the funds.

Unrestricted expendable capital

In accordance with the authority given to the Trustees under an Order of the Charity 
Commission dated 19 September 2001, £65,747,000 was transferred to an expendable 
capital fund in relation to which income and capital are distributable at the discretion of the 
Trustees. £5 million was invested in 2001/02 in the Charities Property Fund and £60 million 
was invested in 2002/03 with investment managers in balanced portfolios on a discretionary 
total return basis. Income and investment gains and losses are taken to this fund and the 
amount allocated to income by the Trustees, £1,873,047 (2024: £2,142,625), is shown as a 
transfer to the income fund.

Unrestricted income funds

The income of the Foundation is expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of 
the objects of the Foundation. Gains on investments held in the income funds are credited to 
these funds.

Analysis 
of fund 
movements

Balance at 
6 April 

2024
£’000

Incoming 
resources 

£’000

Resources 
expended 

£’000
Transfers 

£’000

Gains and 
losses 
£’000

Balance at 
5 April 

2025
£’000

Permanent 
endowment 9,984,375 - - - (1,360,199) 8,624,176

Unrestricted 
expendable 
capital 110,302 3,149 (211) (1,873) (2,867) 108,500

Unrestricted 
income fund 32,127 162,294 (130,628) 1,873 4,424 70,090

Total 10,126,804 165,443 (130,839) - (1,358,642) 8,802,766
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 Analysis of charitable funds – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2024

13 Analysis of net assets between funds

 Analysis of net assets between funds – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2024

Fund balances at 5 April 2024 are 
represented by

Income
fund

£’000

Expendable 
capital

fund
£’000

Endowment 
funds
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Non-current asset investments - 109,594 9,984,375 10,093,969

Current asset investments 85,202 - - 85,202

Other current assets 11,124 522 - 11,646

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year (64,199) 186 - (64,013)

Total net assets 32,127 110,302 9,984,375 10,126,804

Fund balances at 5 April 2025 are 
represented by

Income
fund

£’000

Expendable 
capital

fund
£’000

Endowment 
funds
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Non-current asset investments 20,000 107,607 8,624,176 8,751,783

Current asset investments 102,229 - - 102,229

Other current assets: amounts falling 
due within one year 32,306 1,155 - 33,461

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year (84,445) (262) - (84,707)

Total net assets 70,090 108,500 8,624,176 8,802,766

Analysis 
of fund 
movements

Balance at 
6 April 

2023
£’000

Incoming 
resources 

£’000

Resources 
expended 

£’000
Transfers 

£’000

Gains and 
losses 
£’000

Balance at 
5 April 

2024
£’000

Permanent 
endowment 8,191,398 - - - 1,792,977 9,984,375

Unrestricted 
expendable 
capital 103,359 3,151 (218) (2,142) 6,152 110,302

Unrestricted 
income fund 22,044 107,151 (101,774) 2,142 2,564 32,127

Total 8,316,801 110,302 (101,992) - 1,801,693 10,126,804
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14 Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year 

 Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year –
 comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2024

Cash held for future investment is classified within Investments on the Balance Sheet. 
(See note 9)

2023
£’000

Cash flow 
£’000

2024
£’000

Cash at bank 34,594 (23,626) 10,968

Cash held for future investment 906 293 1,199

35,500 (23,333) 12,167

2024
£’000

Cash flow 
£’000

2025
£’000

Cash at bank 10,968 20,948 31,916

Cash held for future investment 1,199 3,349 4,548

12,167 24,297 36,464
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15 Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2024

All recognised gains and losses have been included in the Statement of Financial Activities and 
the amounts included are derived entirely from the continuing activities of the Foundation.

Unrestricted funds

N
ot

es

Income
funds
£’000

Expendable
capital
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total funds
2024

£’000

Total funds
2023

£’000

Income and 
endowments from

Investments 2 107,151 3,151 - 110,302 90,353

Total income 107,151 3,151 - 110,302 90,353

Expenditure

Costs of generating 
funds:

Raising funds (43) (218) - (261) (187)

Charitable activities:

Grant making activities 4 (101,731) - - (101,731) (91,753)

Total expenditure (101,774) (218) - (101,992) (91,940)

Net income/
(outgoings) 5,377 2,933 - 8,310 (1,587)

Other recognised 
gains and losses

Gains on revaluation 
and disposal of 
investment assets 2,564 6,152 1,792,977 1,801,693 1,125,905

Net movement in funds 
before transfers 
between funds 7,941 9,085 1,792,977 1,810,003 1,124,318

Gross transfers 
between funds 12 2,142 (2,142) - - -

Net movement in funds 10,083 6,943 1,792,977 1,810,003 1,124,318

Reconciliation of 
funds 

Total funds brought 
forward 22,044 103,359 8,191,398 8,316,801 7,192,483

Total funds carried 
forward 32,127 110,302 9,984,375 10,126,804 8,316,801
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Grants over £20,000

Arts  £
English National Opera London 500,000 
Royal Northern 
College of Music Manchester 300,000  
Edinburgh Festival 
Fringe Society Edinburgh            300,000 * 
Bournemouth Symphony 
Orchestra Poole           300,000  
Bradford Culture 
Company Bradford           250,000  
Orange Tree Theatre Richmond           250,000  
London Symphony 
Orchestra London           200,000  
Walk to the Horizon London           200,000 * 
The Roundhouse London           150,000  
The Wordsworth Trust Ambleside           150,000  
Artis Foundation London           150,000  
National Youth Orchestra 
of Great Britain London           150,000  
Scarborough Theatre 
Trust Scarborough           150,000  
Pitzhanger Manor 
& Gallery Trust London           150,000  
Backlit Nottingham           150,000  
Chichester Festival 
Theatre Chichester           150,000  
Britten Sinfonia Cambridge           150,000  
City of London 
Sinfonia Bermondsey           150,000  
Creative Land Trust London           150,000  
Whitechapel Gallery London           150,000  
The Royal School 
of Church Music Salisbury           100,000  
Orange Tree Theatre Richmond           100,000 * 
More Music 
in Morecambe Morecambe    90,000  
Thames Festival Trust London    84,000  
Koestler Trust London    80,000  
Our Big Picture Grimsby    80,000  
Lowther Gardens Lytham Lytham St Annes    75,000 * 
Theatre503 London    75,000 * 
Yorkshire Sculpture Park Wakefield    75,000  
Alnwick District 
Playhouse Trust Alnwick    70,000  
Beatroute Arts Glasgow    70,000  
The Ministry of Stories London    70,000  
Liverpool and Merseyside 
Theatres Trust Liverpool    60,000  
Aurora Orchestra London    60,000  
Middle Child Theatre Hull    60,000  
New Adventures Charity Farnham    60,000  
JW3 Trust London    60,000 

Awards for 
Young Musicians Bristol    60,000  
The Mozartists London    60,000  
Project Art Works Hastings    60,000  
Volcano Theatre 
Company Swansea    60,000  
Sistema Scotland Stirling    60,000  
Equal Arts Newcastle    60,000  
Theatre Porto Ellesmere Port    60,000  
English Touring Opera Sheffield    60,000  
British Youth 
Music Theatre London    50,000  
The Ashton Group 
Theatre Barrow-in-Furness    50,000  
Cockpit Arts London    50,000  
National Youth Choirs 
of Great Britain Durham    50,000  
Todmorden Amateur Operatic 
and Dramatic Society Todmorden    50,000 * 
Burnley Youth Theatre Burnley    50,000  
The Nucleo Project London    50,000  
The Courtyard Trust Hereford    50,000  
Outside Edge 
Theatre Company London    50,000  
The National Youth 
Theatre of Great Britain London    50,000  
The Nerve Centre Derry    50,000 * 
Toonspeak Young 
People’s Theatre Glasgow    50,000  
Academy for Contemporary 
Circus and Physical 
Theatre Bristol    50,000  
Southbank Centre London    50,000  
Tara Arts Group London    50,000  
The Academy of 
Ancient Music Cambridge    50,000  
Wysing Arts Centre Cambridge    50,000  
Llenyddiaeth Cymru
– Literature Wales Cricieth    50,000  
The Kendal Brewery 
Arts Centre Trust Kendal    50,000  
London Youth Choir London    50,000  
Papatango Theatre 
Company Cirencester    50,000  
Almeida Theatre 
Company London    50,000 * 
Accidental Theatre Belfast    50,000 * 
Lyric Theatre 
Hammersmith London    48,000  
HighTide London    45,000  
Park Theatre London    40,000  
Gabrieli London    40,000  
Hastings Contemporary Hastings    40,000  
Delight Caterham    40,000
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16 Grants awarded

The grants highlighted with * indicate pledges made during the year which are accounted for in 
the year they are awarded, although the cash grant may not be released for up to two years.



The Bright Umbrella 
Drama Co Belfast    40,000  
Newhampton Arts Centre Wolverhampton    40,000  
Trinity Community Arts Bristol    40,000  
Woking Museum and Arts 
and Crafts Centre Woking    40,000  
Making Space 
for Crafts Havant    40,000  
The Orchestra 
of the Swan Warwick    40,000  
In Your Space Circus Derry    40,000  
London Bubble 
Theatre Company London    40,000  
Cartwheel Arts Heywood    40,000  
Frantic Theatre 
Company London    40,000  
Theatre Royal Plymouth    40,000  
Centre for Contemporary 
Arts Glasgow    30,000  
Golden-Oldies Radstock    30,000  
Victor Batte-Lay 
Foundation Colchester    30,000  
Access All Areas London    30,000  
Indepen-dance Glasgow    30,000  
Soft Touch Arts Leicester    30,000  
Theatr na nÓg Neath    30,000  
ActionSpace London    30,000  
Leicester Theatre  Leicester    30,000  
Circusful Belfast    30,000  
Open School East Margate    30,000  
Viva Chamber Orchestra Derby    30,000  
Artis Cymuned  Pontypridd    30,000  
Forward Arts Foundation London    30,000  
Mahogany Opera Group Whitehaven    30,000  
Saffron Hall Trust Saffron Walden    30,000  
The Thornton and Allerton 
Community Association Bradford    30,000  
Cheshire Dance 
Workshop Winsford    30,000  
Welsh Dance Theatre  Cardiff    30,000  
London Philharmonic 
Orchestra London    30,000  
Tramshed Arts London    30,000  
Aire and Calder 
Methodist Circuit Normanton    30,000  
Chapter (Cardiff) Cardiff    30,000  
ThickSkin Theatre Wigan    30,000  
Zion Arts Centre Manchester    30,000  
Fairbeats Music London    30,000  
Frozen Light Norwich    30,000  
Liberdade Community 
Development Trust Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000  
Readipop Reading    30,000  
Paintings in Hospitals London    30,000  
Ratby Co-operative Band Ratby    30,000  
Vision Mechanics Edinburgh    30,000  
Bermondsey Artists’ 
Group London    30,000  
Carousel Project Brighton    30,000 

Glasgow Sculpture 
Studios Glasgow    30,000 
The Gate Theatre 
Company London    30,000 
Compton Verney 
House Charity Compton Verney    30,000 *
The National Youth 
Choir of Scotland Glasgow    30,000 
Move Momentum Winchester    30,000 
Opera North Leeds    30,000 
Ensemble Reza Haywards Heath    30,000 
The Theatre Shed Chesham    30,000 
Tron Theatre Glasgow    30,000 
Fusion Plus Havant    30,000 
Peut-Etre Theatre London    30,000 
The Culture House Grimsby    30,000 
National Youth 
Arts Wales Cardiff    30,000 
Finding Rhythms London    27,500 
ORA Singers London    25,000 
Take A Part Plymouth    25,000 
Riot Ensemble London    25,000 
Dancers’ Career 
Development Manchester    25,000 
NAGAS Newcastle upon Tyne   25,000 
Future Talent London    25,000 
Box of Tricks 
Theatre Company Manchester    25,000 
Face Front Inclusive 
Theatre London    25,000 
Arcola Theatre 
Production Company London    25,000 
Create (Arts) London    25,000 
Pan Intercultural Arts London    25,000 
Apollo Music Projects London    25,000 
Candoco Dance 
Company London    25,000 
Amscordi London    25,000 
Strathearn ArtSpace Crieff    25,000 
Skylight Circus 
in Education Rochdale    25,000 
Artlink Centre 
for Community Arts Hull    25,000 
Reachout With 
Arts In Mind Alloa    25,000 
Utopia Theatre Sheffield    25,000 
Curious Directive Norwich    25,000 
Yorkshire Youth 
and Music Huddersfield    25,000 
Prism Arts Carlisle    25,000 
John Armitage 
Memorial Trust London    25,000 
Dunoon Burgh Hall Trust Dunoon    25,000 
The Sixteen London    25,000 
Common Wealth 
Theatre Bradford    25,000 
DanceWest London London    25,000 
Eastgate Theatre Peebles    25,000 
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Curzon Clevedon Community 
Centre for the Arts Clevedon    25,000  
The NewBridge Project Newcastle upon Tyne   25,000  
Manchester Camerata Manchester    25,000  

Total for Arts 9,904,500
(Total number of grants: 164)

Community  £
Crystal Palace Park Trust London           500,000 * 
Pause Creating Space 
for Change London           300,000  
Royal Voluntary Service Cardiff           300,000  
Hidden Treasure Trust Manchester           300,000  
Linkage Spilsby           250,000 * 
Hubbub Foundation UK London           225,000  
The Media Trust London           225,000  
Mencap Bishop’s Stortford       200,000  
Acorn Venture Farm Knowsley           200,000  
Paul’s Place (South West) Bristol           200,000 * 
Comann Eachdraidh 
Eirisgeidh Outer Hebrides           170,000  
The Boston Preservation 
Trust Boston           150,000  
Corbenic Camphill 
Community Dunkeld           150,000 * 
Sofea Didcot           150,000  
Gasworks Dock 
Partnership London           150,000  
Hampton Pool Trust Hampton           150,000 * 
One25 Bristol           150,000  
The Eric Liddell 
Community Edinburgh           150,000  
The Proud Trust Manchester           150,000  
Horsecross Arts Perth           120,000  
Prenton RUFC Prenton           100,000  
The Kent Autistic Trust Kent    99,000  
Great Britain Wheelchair 
Basketball Association Loughborough    90,000  
Reach Volunteering London    85,000  
Willowfield Parish 
Community Association Belfast    70,000  
The Change Foundation Wallington    70,000  
The Pavillion 
(Greater Easterhouse) Glasgow    60,000  
Leafair Community 
Association Derry    60,000  
St Ethelburga’s Centre for 
Reconciliation and Peace London    60,000  
Trowbridge Town Hall Trowbridge    60,000 * 
Open Door Exmouth Exmouth    60,000  
Provision House Dudley    60,000  
Barlow Moor Community 
Association Manchester    60,000  
Three13 Training 
and Enterprise Stockton-on-Tees    60,000  
Trowbridge Community 
Area Future Trowbridge    60,000  
Rock Community Church Dumbarton    60,000  

Freedom Community 
Project Bolsover    54,000  
York Vineyard Church York    50,000 * 
Sufra NW London London    50,000  
The North Tyneside 
Carers Centre Wallsend    50,000  
Gellideg Foundation 
Community Association Merthyr Tydfil    50,000  
St George’s Lupset Wakefield    50,000  
Made In Hackney London    50,000  
Pecan London    50,000  
Kingsgrove 
Community Hub Wantage    50,000  
Bentilee Volunteers Stoke-on-Trent    50,000  
Hessle Road Network Hull    50,000  
FareShare Midlands Wigston    50,000  
Leeds Gypsy and 
Traveller Exchange Leeds    50,000  
Shrublands 
Community Trust Great Yarmouth    50,000  
Barrow Hill 
Community Trust Chesterfield    50,000  
The Russell Martin 
Foundation Southwick    50,000  
ICT Community 
Development Inverness    50,000 * 
Cullercoats Watch House Cullercoats    40,000  
Foyle Womens Aid Derry    40,000  
Stanleys Community 
Centre Morecambe    40,000  
The Money Charity London    40,000  
Khayaal Theatre 
Company Luton    40,000  
Back on Track Manchester    40,000  
Diversity Matters 
North West Hyde    40,000  
Work Rights Centre London    40,000  
Havering Asian Social 
and Welfare Association Hornchurch    40,000 * 
Thanet Community 
Development Trust Ramsgate    40,000  
Southside Partnership Balham    40,000  
Ethnic Youth 
Support Team Swansea    40,000  
Bolton Wanderers 
Community Trust Bolton    40,000  
Margaret Clitherow Trust Henley-on-Thames    40,000  
Saintfield Community 
Association Saintfield    40,000 * 
Vauxhall (City) Farm London    40,000  
Suffolk County Football 
Association Stowmarket    40,000 * 
Pennywell Neighbourhood 
Centre Sunderland    40,000  
The Marsh 
Community Centre Lancaster    40,000  
Growing Works Holmfirth    40,000  
Developmentplus Lincoln    30,000  
EFA London London    30,000  
Falcon Support Services Loughborough    30,000  
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Meriden Adventure 
Playground Association Solihull    30,000  
Tempo Time Credits Cardiff    30,000  
BEfriend Hanwell    30,000  
Cambrian Village Trust Tonypandy    30,000  
Children on the Autistic 
Spectrum Parents’ 
Association Bromley    30,000  
Empty Kitchens 
Full Hearts Edinburgh    30,000  
Home-Start Banbury 
& Chipping Norton Banbury    30,000  
Footprints in 
the Community Redcar    30,000  
Skipton Community 
Sports Hub Skipton    30,000  
Oasis Community Hub, 
Waterloo London    30,000  
The Chittlehampton 
Village Hall Chittlehampton    30,000 * 
Education and Skills 
Development Group Greater London    30,000  
Glossop and District 
Volunteer Bureau Glossop    30,000  
Gordon Rural Action Huntly    30,000  
Rotherham Federation of
Communities Rotherham    30,000  
St Mary’s (Bramall Lane) 
Community Centre Sheffield    30,000  
Bath City Farm Bath    30,000  
Feeding Coventry Coventry    30,000 * 
Cumnock & District 
Men’s Shed Kilmarnock    30,000 * 
Heeley City Farm Sheffield    30,000  
Signpost (Colchester) Colchester    30,000  
Ashreigney Village Hall Chulmleigh    30,000 * 
Impact Network 
(in Communities) NI Randalstown    30,000  
London Gypsies 
and Travellers London    30,000  
Loughborough Junction 
Action Group London    30,000  
Venture Community 
Association North Kensington    30,000  
Crewe FC Crewe    30,000 * 
Lister Steps Liverpool    30,000  
LING New Galloway    30,000  
Adwick Park Communities 
and Sports Academies Doncaster    30,000  
Conwy District Citizens 
Advice Bureau Llandudno    30,000  
Mid Sussex District 
Scouts Lindfield    30,000 * 
Roses Theatre Trust Tewkesbury    30,000  
Swan Advice Network Radstock    30,000  
Partnerships For 
Wellbeing Inverness    30,000  
Pat Benson Community 
Sports Foundation Birmingham    30,000  
Gilfach Goch 
Community Association Porth    30,000  
Higham Hill Hub London    30,000  

Rotunda Liverpool    30,000 
Rackets Cubed London    30,000 
Newcastle Community 
Cinema Newcastle    30,000 
Kingsley Hall Church and 
Community Centre Dagenham    30,000 
Scholemoor Beacon Bradford    30,000 
Mothers for Mothers Bristol    25,000 
Brighton & Hove LGBT 
Switchboard Brighton    25,000 
North Norfolk 
Community Transport North Walsham    25,000 
Village Hall and Walled 
Garden Charity,
Lambeage Hall Helston    25,000 
Brixton Advice Centre London    25,000 
Clifton Learning 
Partnership Rotherham    25,000 
Emergency Exit Arts London    25,000 
Culbokie Community 
Trust Inverness    25,000 *
Bridgend Farmhouse Edinburgh    25,000 
Hartlepower Hartlepool    25,000 *
Friends Families 
and Travellers Brighton    25,000 
Caritas Diocese 
of Shrewsbury Wirral    25,000 
TravellerSpace Penzance    25,000 
UKHarvest Chichester    25,000 
R-Evolution Cottingham    25,000 
Big Local Works 
Bermondsey London    25,000 
Campsie Memorial 
Hall Trust Lennoxtown    25,000 
Sennen Cove 
Recreation Centre Penzance    25,000 
Linkes Glasgow    25,000 
Glusburn Community 
& Arts Centre Glusburn    25,000 *
Grassington Devonshire 
Institute Skipton    25,000 
Women’s Equality 
Network Wales Cardiff    25,000 
Metro Sports and Social
Club of Vision 
Impaired People London    25,000 

Total for Community  8,913,000
(Total number of grants: 142)

Education  £
LSE London           500,000 
Royal High School 
Preservation Trust Pitlochry           500,000 
City Year UK London           300,000 
Council for At 
Risk Academics London           300,000 
Baker Dearing 
Educational Trust London           250,000 
Hartpury University and 
Hartpury College Gloucester           250,000 
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MCC Foundation London           250,000  
Anglia Ruskin University Chelmsford           250,000  
London Business School London           250,000  
The Engineering 
Development Trust Southampton           150,000  
Working Rite Edinburgh           150,000  
In2scienceUK London           150,000  
Action Tutoring London           150,000  
Coram Beanstalk London           150,000  
Aston University Birmingham           106,000  
The Royal Drawing 
School London           100,000  
Garsington Opera High Wycombe    90,000  
Waddesdon CE School Waddesdon    75,000  
Stanley Grange 
Community Association Samlesbury    60,000  
Schoolreaders Bedford    60,000  
St Edmunds Society Norwich    60,000  
Safe New Futures Southampton    60,000  
East Kent Education 
Business Partnership Ramsgate    60,000  
Nova New Opportunities London    60,000  
RAW Workshop Oxford    50,000  
Helen Arkell 
Dyslexia Charity Farnham    50,000  
Phoenix Enterprises Swindon    50,000  
School of Hard Knocks Edinburgh    50,000  
Guildhall School Trust London    50,000  
GASP Motor Project Guildford    50,000  
The No Way Trust Hull    50,000  
Chailey Heritage 
Foundation Lewes    50,000  
Coleraine Grammar 
School Coleraine    50,000  
The Jon Egging Trust Redditch    50,000  
Ariel Trust Liverpool    50,000  
Apps for Good London    50,000  
Arvon London    50,000  
East London Advanced 
Technology Training London    40,000  
National Star Foundation Cheltenham    40,000  
Seaview Sailing Trust Seaview    40,000  
London Village Network London    40,000  
The Economist 
Educational Foundation London    40,000  
The Guardian Foundation London    40,000  
Adult Training 
Network London    30,000  
Quaker Social Action London    30,000  
Team Up for 
Social Mobility Wallingford    30,000  
Learning with Parents Bristol    30,000  
The Volunteer Tutors 
Organisation Glasgow    30,000  
Warning Zone Leicester    30,000  
Southport Learning Trust Southport    30,000 * 
Blind in Business Trust London    30,000  
Solutions Not Sides London    30,000  
The Literacy Pirates London    30,000  

Rosemount Lifelong 
Learning Glasgow    30,000  
Twyford Church of England 
Academies Trust London    30,000 * 
Mencap Liverpool Liverpool    25,000  
Talk The Talk Bristol    25,000  
The Saturday Club Trust London    25,000  
Edinburgh Science 
Foundation Edinburgh    25,000  
FIRST UK London    25,000  
The Foundation Charity 
of Bishop Vesey’s 
Grammar School Sutton Coldfield    25,000  
The MGGS 
Development Trust Maidstone    25,000 * 

Total for Education 5,756,000
(Total number of grants: 62)

Environment  £
Birmingham Botanical 
Gardens Birmingham        5,000,000 * 
The National Trust Swindon        5,000,000  
University of East Anglia Norwich        1,000,000  
WWF UK Woking        1,000,000  
The Royal Horticultural 
Society London           575,000  
University of Plymouth Plymouth           500,000  
The Big Give London           500,000  
The Royal Parks London           450,000  
Blue Marine Foundation London           450,000  
Tir Natur Pennant           240,000  
Garden Museum London           175,000 * 
University of Leeds Leeds           150,000  
Bumblebee Conservation 
Trust Eastleigh           150,000  
Yorkshire Wildlife Trust York           150,000  
The Soil Association 
Land Trust Bristol           100,000 * 
CleanConscience Slough    95,000  
CHEM Trust London    90,000  
The 2 Minute Foundation Croyde    90,000  
Conservation Education 
& Research Trust Oxford    90,000  
The Climate Movement London    90,000  
Knepp Wildland 
Foundation Horsham    90,000  
Another Way Penrith    82,000  
Buglife Peterborough    80,000  
Environmental Funders 
Network Aylesbury    80,000  
Royal Zoological Society 
of Scotland Edinburgh    80,000  
Ulster Wildlife Trust Belfast    75,000  
Northern Roots Oldham    75,000  
Garden Museum London    75,000  
The National Lobster 
Hatchery Padstow    75,000  
Swansea Community 
Farm Swansea    60,000  
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Petit Miracle Interiors London    60,000  
Thousand Year Trust Bodmin    60,000  
Herefordshire Wildlife 
Trust Leominster    60,000  
Plymouth Marine 
Laboratory Plymouth    50,000 * 
CleanupUK Tetbury    50,000  
Ocean Generation London    50,000  
St Peter’s Immaculata 
Youth Centre Belfast    50,000  
The Froglife Trust Peterborough    50,000  
Amphibian and Reptile 
Conservation Trust Bournemouth    50,000  
SCOTLAND: 
The Big Picture Kingussie    50,000  
City Gate Community 
Projects Brighton    50,000  
The Henry Doubleday 
Research Association Coventry    50,000  
United Kingdom Antarctic 
Heritage Trust Cambridge    50,000  
Cymdeithas Eryri 
Snowdonia Society Caernarfon    50,000  
Whale & Dolphin 
Conservation Society Chippenham    50,000  
The Environment 
Centre Swansea    50,000  
The Lune Rivers Trust Carnforth    50,000  
The Eden Rivers Trust Penrith    47,000  
Avon Wildlife Trust Bristol    45,000  
Remake Scotland Crieff    40,000  
Keep Northern 
Ireland Beautiful Belfast    40,000  
FWAG South West Wellington    40,000  
The Conservation 
Volunteers Doncaster    40,000  
Earth Trust Abingdon    40,000  
The Fore London    36,000 * 
The Lancashire 
Wildlife Trust Preston    35,000  
Northumberland 
Rivers Trust Newcastle upon Tyne  30,000  
Wilts & Berks Canal Trust Chippenham    30,000  
The National Forest 
Company Swadlincote    30,000  
Forest School Swansea, 
Neath and Port Talbot Swansea    30,000  
Avon Needs Trees Bristol    30,000  
The Parks Foundation Bournemouth    30,000  
LEAP Lochwinnoch    30,000  
The Ecology Centre Kinghorn    30,000  
Beaver Trust Kington    30,000  
ORCA Portsmouth    25,000  
The Springhead Trust Shaftesbury    25,000  
Bedfordshire Great Ouse Valley 
Environmental Trust Bedford    25,000  
Ecobirmingham Birmingham    25,000  
The Friends of Oxford Botanic 
Garden & Arboretum Oxford    25,000 * 
Greener and Cleaner Bromley    25,000  

Northumberland National 
Park Foundation Hexham    25,000 
Carymoor 
Environmental Trust Castle Cary    25,000 
Maxwelltown Information 
Centre Dundee    25,000 
The Heather Trust Dumfries    25,000 

Total for Environment 18,430,000
(Total number of grants: 75)

Faith  £
The Westminster 
Abbey Foundation London           500,000 
Worcester Cathedral Worcester           150,000 
St Giles Church Oxford    68,000 
Sinclair Seamen’s 
Presbyterian Church Belfast    50,000 
Faith in Later Life London    50,000 
Mount Zion 
Apostolic Church Nottingham    50,000 
PCC of the Most Holy 
and Undivided Trinity Hull    50,000 
PCC of Holy Trinity 
Cookham Maidenhead    50,000 
PCC of Mudeford Christchurch    50,000 *
Cathedral Church of 
St Mary the Virgin Blackburn    50,000 
Bible Reading Fellowship Abingdon    50,000 
PCC of St Stephen 
Walbrook London    50,000 
PCC of Nantwich Nantwich    40,000 *
Gillingham Community 
Church Gillingham    40,000 
St Michael’s Church, 
Barford St Michael Banbury    40,000 
Lymm Methodist Church Lymm    40,000 *
Bishop Monkton 
Methodist Church Harrogate    40,000 *
St Mary’s Church, 
Headington Oxford    40,000 *
Derg Parish Church Castlederg    40,000 *
St Peter’s Church North Tawton    35,000 *
St Paul’s Church 
in the JQ Birmingham    30,000 *
PCC of All Saints, 
Fulham London    30,000 
St Mary’s Church Totnes Totnes    30,000 *
Bognor Regis 
Baptist Church Bognor Regis    30,000 
PCC St Philip’s Parish, 
Litherland Liverpool    30,000 *
St Paul’s Church, 
Colwyn Bay Conwy    30,000 
Stebbing PCC Stebbing    30,000 
Paisley Abbey Paisley    30,000 *
The Association of Friends 
of St Mary and St Peter,
Tidenham Chepstow    30,000 
PCC of St Luke 
the Evangelist Maidstone    30,000 
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PCC of St Philip 
and St James Ilfracombe    30,000 * 
Stirling Methodist Church Stirling    30,000 * 
Melksham PCC Melksham    30,000  
Kings Fellowship Bangor    30,000  
St Marks Episcopal Church, 
Portobello Edinburgh    30,000  
Twynham Church for 
the Community Christchurch    30,000  
Celestial Church of Christ Jehovah 
Emmanuel Parish Manchester    30,000 * 
Ashbourne Methodist 
Church Ashbourne    30,000  
Jubilee Church Hull Hull    30,000 * 
PCC of St George and 
All Saints, Tufnell Park London    30,000 * 
Welwyn Garden City 
URC Charity Welwyn Garden City    30,000  
St Martin’s Church Liskeard    30,000 * 
RC Diocese Of Dunkeld Dundee    30,000  
PCC of St Michael and 
All Angels Church Macclesfield    30,000  
PCC of Wigan South Wigan    30,000  
St Michael and All Angels’ 
Church, Bartley Green Birmingham    30,000 * 
St Pauls Church, 
Cliftonville Margate    30,000  
PCC of St Peter & 
St Paul, Bassingbourn Royston    30,000  
Chapel-en-le-Frith 
Methodist Church High Peak    30,000 * 
PCC of St James Elstead    30,000  
PCC of St Mary 
the Virgin Godmanchester    30,000 * 
Carrubbers Christian 
Centre Edinburgh    30,000  
Carntyne Parish Church Glasgow    30,000 * 
Wadebridge Methodist 
Church Wadebridge    30,000  
PCC of St Peter’s,
Parr St Helens    25,000  
St Alban’s Church, 
Earsdon Tyne and Wear    25,000  
St Helen, Thorney Newark    25,000 * 
Restored Teddington    25,000  
Dunbarney & Forgandenny 
Parish Church Bridge of Earn    25,000 * 
Elgin Baptist Church Elgin    25,000  
PCC of St Mary 
Magdalene Woodstock    25,000 * 
All Saints Church Canterbury    25,000  
St Mary’s Church Beaminster    25,000  
St Peter’s Church Brighton    25,000  
Holy Trinity Sunningdale    25,000 * 
St Barnabas Church and 
Community Centre, 
Clarksfield Oldham    25,000 * 
PCC of St Eustachius Tavistock    25,000  

St Andrew’s Church, 
Castle Combe Chippenham    25,000  
Clifton Diocese Bristol    25,000  
Jubilee Church Teesside Stockton-on-Tees    25,000  
Sulby Methodist Church Isle of Man    25,000  
The Friends of the Church 
of St John the Baptist Bromsgrove    25,000  
St Andrew’s Church, 
Great Cornard Sudbury    25,000  
Elland Christian Centre Elland    25,000  

Total for Faith 3,003,000
(Total number of grants: 74) 

Health  £
Cancer Research UK London      10,000,000  
Prostate Cancer UK London        1,000,000  
Parkinson’s UK London        1,000,000  
University of Sheffield Sheffield        1,000,000  
The Institute of Cancer 
Research London           580,000  
Royal Hospital for 
Neuro-Disability London           500,000  
St George’s Hospital 
Charity London           500,000 * 
RNIB London           300,000  
Cure Leukaemia Birmingham           300,000  
Sense London           250,000  
Prevent Breast Cancer Manchester           250,000  
The Children’s Hospital 
Charity Sheffield           250,000  
Teenage Cancer Trust London           236,000  
Dementia UK London           225,000  
St John Ambulance Meadowfield           225,000  
Cystic Fibrosis Trust London           225,000  
The Royal Free Charity London           200,000 * 
Horatio’s Garden Salisbury           150,000  
The Auditory Verbal 
Centre London           150,000  
The Anna Freud Centre London           150,000  
Wallace and Gromit’s 
Children’s Foundation Bristol           150,000 * 
Growing Well Kendal           120,000  
Shift.ms Leeds           100,000  
Hampshire Hospitals 
Charity Winchester           100,000 * 
Cornwall Hospice Care St Austell           100,000 * 
Marie Curie London    95,000  
The Listening Place London    90,000  
St David’s Hospice Llandudno    90,000  
Back Up London    90,000  
International Spinal 
Research Trust London    90,000  
The Living Paintings Trust Newbury    90,000  
Crohn’s and Colitis UK Hatfield    80,000  
Carers UK London    80,000  
Society for Horticultural 
Therapy Reading    75,000  

56  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2025



Integrated Neurological 
Services London    70,000  
Action Cancer Belfast    60,000  
Womankind Bristol    60,000  
Women’s Health Matters Leeds    60,000  
Compass Therapy 
Support Community Edinburgh    60,000  
Transforming Choice Liverpool    60,000  
E:merge (UK) Bradford    60,000  
Acacia Family Support Sutton Coldfield    60,000  
Self Injury Support Bristol    60,000  
Trust Links Westcliff-on-Sea    60,000  
St Margaret’s Centre Durham    60,000  
Willen Hospice Milton Keynes    60,000 * 
National Axial 
Spondyloarthritis Society London    60,000  
The British Allergy 
Foundation Dartford    60,000  
The Brain Charity Liverpool    60,000  
Starlight Children’s 
Foundation London    51,000  
Kingston Carer’s Network Surbiton    50,000  
Cardiac Risk in the Young Leatherhead    50,000  
The Parent Rooms Belfast    50,000  
Newlife the Charity for 
Disabled Children Cannock    50,000  
Merlin Neuro Therapy 
Centre St Austell    50,000  
Good Morning Project Glasgow    50,000  
Royal Osteoporosis 
Society Bath    50,000  
Antibiotic Research UK York    50,000  
Caudwell Children Newcastle-
 under-Lyme  50,000  
Manchester Action on 
Street Health Manchester    50,000  
Alex, The Leukodystrophy 
Charity London    40,000  
Hyperlipidaemia Education & 
Atherosclerosis Research 
Trust UK Maidenhead    40,000  
Walthew House 2017 Stockport    40,000  
Stick ‘n’ Step Wallasey    40,000  
SeeSaw Oxford    40,000  
Escape Intervention 
Services South Shields    40,000  
Elizabeth Finn Care London    40,000  
Rekindle Home Newtown    40,000  
Scottish Huntington’s 
Association Paisley    40,000  
Beatson Cancer Charity Glasgow    40,000 * 
Getting Better Together Shotts    40,000  
Dementia Concern London    40,000  
The Space Cheddar    40,000  
Dementia Forward Harrogate    40,000  
Mudlarks Hertford    35,000  
Support to Recovery Huddersfield    35,000  
Bristol Mind Bristol    30,000  
South East London Arts 
Network London    30,000  

Cerebral Palsy Scotland Glasgow    30,000 
Headway Norfolk and 
Waveney Norwich    30,000 
Soundwell Music 
Therapy Trust Bristol    30,000 
Brainstrust York    30,000 
InterAct Stroke Support London    30,000 
Quetzal Leicester    30,000 
Target Ovarian Cancer London    30,000 
Ashgate Hospicecare Chesterfield    30,000 *
West Kent Mind Sevenoaks    30,000 
The Cardiff Institute 
for the Blind Cardiff    30,000 
Tyneside and 
Northumberland Mind Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000 
Wild Young Parents 
Project Redruth    30,000 
Megan Baker House Ledbury    30,000 
Perth & Kinross Society 
for the Blind Perth    30,000 
Harbour (Ayrshire) Ayr    30,000 
Mind in Furness Barrow-in-Furness    30,000 
The Sickle Cell Society London    30,000 
Berkshire Multiple Sclerosis 
Therapy Centre Reading    30,000 
Swansea Carers’ Centre Swansea    30,000 
Body and Soul London    30,000 
Dose of Nature London    30,000 
Acorns Children’s 
Hospice Trust Birmingham    30,000 
Havering Mind Hornchurch    30,000 
Neath Port Talbot 
Mind Association Neath    30,000 
Steel Bones Isleham    30,000 
Neuro Therapy Centre Chester    30,000 
The Pace Centre Aylesbury    30,000 
The Mulberry Centre Isleworth    25,000 
Paul for Brain Recovery Hull    25,000 
The Dystonia Society London    25,000 
The Eikon Charity Surrey    25,000 
The Ehlers-Danlos 
Support UK Borehamwood    25,000 
The Ryan MS Therapy 
Centre Coulsdon    25,000 
Limbless Association Billericay    25,000 
Lincoln & Lindsey 
Blind Society Louth    25,000 
The Include Project Redhill    25,000 
Off The Record Havant    25,000 
Red Balloons Stockton-on-Tees    25,000 
The Masic Foundation Nottingham    25,000 
The Sleep Charity Doncaster    25,000 
Beeston Community 
Resource Beeston    25,000 
Derbyshire Mind Derby    25,000 
Wolo Foundation Seaford    25,000 
Living Options Devon Exeter    25,000 
Our Time Cottingham    25,000 
The Brain Tumour Charity Fleet    25,000 
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Adfam National London    25,000 
Health for All  Leeds    25,000 
Evelina Children’s 
Heart Organisation London    25,000  

Total for Health 22,352,000
(Total number of grants: 127)

Museums & Heritage  £
Royal Air Force Museum London        2,000,000 * 
Mary Rose Trust Portsmouth           534,000  
Dundee Heritage Trust Dundee           500,000 * 
Tullie House Museum 
& Art Gallery Trust Carlisle           400,000 * 
Derby Museums Derby           400,000  
Dundee Museum 
of Transport Dundee           300,000 * 
Chiswick House and 
Gardens Trust London           250,000 * 
National Spitfire Project Southampton           250,000  
Chatham Historic 
Dockyard Trust Chatham           250,000  
Royal Armouries Leeds           150,000  
Trent Park Museum Trust London           150,000  
Isles of Scilly Museum and 
Cultural Centre Isles of Scilly           150,000  
Rother Valley Railway 
Heritage Trust Robertsbridge           150,000  
The British Council London           150,000 * 
The Gurkha Museum 
Trust Winchester           100,000 * 
Delapré Abbey 
Preservation Trust Northampton           100,000  
Horniman Museum 
and Gardens London           100,000  
The Egypt Exploration 
Society London           100,000 * 
Techniquest Cardiff    90,000 * 
Dacorum Heritage Trust Berkhamsted    90,000  
Ripon Museum Trust Ripon    75,000 * 
The Boleskine House 
Foundation Inverness    75,000  
Benjamin Franklin House London    60,000  
PK Porthcurno Penzance    50,000  
Chiltern Open Air 
Museum Chalfont St Giles    50,000  
Stow Maries Great War 
Aerodrome Trust Chelmsford    50,000  
Birmingham Conservation 
Trust Birmingham    50,000  
The Story Museum Oxford    50,000 * 
Clyne Heritage Society Brora    50,000  
The Arkwright Society Cromford    50,000  
Folkestone Leas Lift 
Company Folkestone    50,000  
The Underfall Yard Trust Bristol    40,000  
Royal West of England 
Academy Bristol    40,000  
The Gloucester (1682) 
Charitable Trust Norwich    40,000  

Nottingham Roman Catholic 
Diocesan Trustees Nottingham    40,000 * 
Catalyst Science 
Discovery Centre and 
Museum Trust Widnes    35,000 * 
St Andrews 
Preservation Trust St Andrews    30,000  
Vagina Museum London    30,000  
The Gardeners House Penzance    30,000  
Friends of Friendless 
Churches London    30,000  
Chawton House Library Alton    30,000  
National Library 
of Scotland Edinburgh    30,000  
The Faversham Municipal 
Charities 2010 Faversham    30,000  
Swandro-Orkney Coastal 
Archaeology Trust Orkney    30,000  
Ditchling Museum 
of Art + Craft Ditchling    30,000  
Class 45/1 
Preservation Society York    25,000  
The Blake Cottage Trust Bognor Regis    25,000  
Culmore Community 
Partnership Derry    25,000 * 
Alford and District 
Civic Trust Alford    25,000  

Total for Museums & Heritage 7,389,000
(Total number of grants: 49)  

Welfare  £
Buttle UK London           525,000  
The Royal British Legion London           500,000  
SafeLives Bristol           450,000  
The Fern Partnership Rhondda           450,000  
Arise Foundation London           300,000  
Bethany Christian Trust Edinburgh           300,000  
Centrepoint Soho London           300,000  
Embassy Manchester           250,000  
Christian Action & 
Resource Enterprise Cleethorpes           250,000  
North East Autism 
Society Durham           250,000  
Sunfield Children’s 
Homes Stourbridge           250,000  
5Rights Foundation London           250,000  
Embassy Manchester           250,000  
Providence Row Charity London           225,000  
My Sisters Place Middlesbrough           225,000  
One Small Thing London           225,000  
St Petrocs Truro           225,000  
Kids Matter London           210,000  
Re-engage London           200,000  
Mustard Tree Manchester           200,000  
St Vincent de Paul Society 
(England and Wales) London           200,000  
Sunnyside Rural Trust Berkhamsted           180,000  
Handcrafted Projects Durham           180,000  
Breaking Barriers London           150,000  
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St Martin-in-the-Fields London           150,000  
Homeless Connect Belfast           150,000  
Royal Norfolk Agricultural 
Association Norwich           150,000  
Human Rights Watch London           150,000  
Yellow Door Southampton           150,000  
Caring in Bristol Bristol           150,000  
Children and Families Kent           150,000  
Helen Bamber 
Foundation London           150,000  
The Matthew Project Norwich           150,000  
HARP Southend Southend-on-Sea       100,000  
Seamab Kinross           100,000  
St Clement & St James Community 
Development Project London           100,000  
Working Chance London           100,000  
The Ark-T Centre Oxford    90,000  
Level Trust Luton    90,000  
Ivison Trust Leeds    90,000  
The Booth Centre Manchester    90,000  
Prison Advice and 
Care Trust London    90,000  
Refugee Education UK London    90,000  
Northumbria 
Calvert Trust Hexham    80,000  
Woman’s Trust London    80,000  
Fylde Coast 
Women’s Aid Blackpool    80,000  
PeacePlayers 
International Belfast    80,000  
The NOAH Enterprise Luton    80,000  
Oswin Projects Morpeth    80,000  
Together Collective Brighton    80,000  
Bow Foodbank London    80,000  
Hackney Doorways London    80,000  
Transformation CPR Pool    80,000  
Carney’s Community London    80,000  
SCRATCH Southampton    80,000  
Christians Against 
Poverty Bradford    80,000  
Tinnitus UK Sheffield    80,000  
Beating Time Woolwich    75,000  
Derby City Mission Derby    70,000  
Anawim Women 
Working Together Birmingham    70,000  
Veterans Aid London    70,000  
AF&V Launchpad Lochgilphead    70,000  
A Way Out Stockton-on-Tees    70,000  
Housing for Women London    70,000  
Emmaus Oxford Oxford    65,000 * 
Bath Area Play Project Bath    60,000  
Crossroads Derbyshire Glossop    60,000  
Edinburgh Women’s Aid Edinburgh    60,000  
Save The Family Chester    60,000  
VOICES Bath    60,000  
A Band of Brothers Eastbourne    60,000  
CHARIS Taunton    60,000  
EVA Women’s Aid Redcar    60,000  

Mentoring Plus Bath and 
North East Somerset Bath    60,000 
The Challenging 
Behaviour Foundation Chatham    60,000 
Home-Start Hertfordshire Stevenage    60,000 
Synergy Theatre Project London    60,000 
The Larder West Lothian Livingston    60,000 
Together Dementia 
Support Manchester    60,000 
FoodCycle London    60,000 
Abigail Housing Leeds    60,000 
PEEK Glasgow    60,000 
Lambeth Elfrida 
Rathbone Society London    60,000 
Salford Loaves 
and Fishes Salford    60,000 
The Markfield Project London    60,000 
White Lodge Centre Chertsey    60,000 
Cherry Trees Guildford    60,000 
Hear Me Out Music London    60,000 
Crystal Palace 
Community Trust London    60,000 
Fulham Good 
Neighbour Service London    60,000 
LifeCare (Edinburgh) Edinburgh    60,000 
Forest Churches Emergency 
Night Shelter London    60,000 
Sensory Trust St Austell    60,000 
Acts Trust Lincoln    60,000 
Ormiston Families Ipswich    60,000 
West India Committee Dover    60,000 
Maundy Relief Accrington    60,000 
Ray Ceredigion Aberaeron    60,000 
Westbourne Park 
Family Centre London    60,000 
Peterborough Women’s 
Aid Peterborough    60,000 
Churches Housing 
Action Team Tiverton    60,000 
Children Heard and Seen Oxford    60,000 
Dartmouth Caring Dartmouth    50,000 
Hackney Playbus London    50,000 
Nottingham Arimathea 
Trust Nottingham    50,000 
Chichester Diocesan 
Association for Family 
Support Work Brighton    50,000 
The Moses Project Stockton-on-Tees    50,000 
The Thomley Hall Centre Aylesbury    50,000 
Poole Waste Not 
Want Not Poole    50,000 
Search: Services for 
Older People Newcastle upon Tyne   50,000 
The Nehemiah Project London    50,000 
Age UK Sutton Sutton    50,000 
Insight Bedworth    50,000 
The Choir with No Name Sheffield    50,000 
Galop London    50,000 
FareShare North East Newcastle upon Tyne   50,000 
Women@thewell London    50,000 
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Key4Life Bristol    50,000  
Spitalfields Crypt Trust London    50,000  
Changing Tunes Bristol    50,000  
Aid Box Community Bristol    50,000  
Asylum Link Merseyside Liverpool    50,000  
The Louise Project Glasgow    50,000  
Ashford Place London    50,000  
Trent Compassion Trust Nottingham    50,000  
Emmaus Hertfordshire St Albans    50,000 * 
Three Spires Family 
Support Trust Coventry    50,000  
The Parish Trust Caerphilly    50,000  
InSpire Walworth London    50,000  
Women’s Aid 
Armagh Down Newry    50,000 * 
Farnworth Baptist Church Bolton    50,000  
Include Me 2 Club Barrhead    50,000  
Reach Community 
Projects Haverhill    50,000  
The Separated Child 
Foundation London    50,000  
Blue Cabin Gateshead    50,000  
Somerset and Avon 
Rape and Sexual 
Abuse Support Bristol    50,000  
Launchpad Reading Reading    50,000  
Alice Stoke-on-Trent    50,000  
The Snowdrop Project Sheffield    50,000  
Staffordshire Pathway 
Project Lichfield    50,000  
Home-Start Kernow Bodmin    50,000  
St Augustine’s 
Community Care Trust Twickenham    50,000  
Wyre Forest and South 
Worcestershire Nightstop 
and Mediation Service Kidderminster    50,000  
Shrewsbury Christian 
Centre Association Shrewsbury    50,000  
Courtyard Pantry 
Enterprise Glasgow    50,000  
The Katherine Low 
Settlement London    50,000  
Holbeck Together Leeds    50,000  
Tailor Ed Foundation Edinburgh    50,000  
Humans MCR Stockport    50,000  
Bierley Community 
Association Bradford    50,000  
Rowan Humberstone Cambridge    50,000  
SOS Bus NI Belfast    50,000  
Hope Support Services Ross-on-Wye    45,000  
The Cyril Flint 
Volunteering Charity Sale    45,000  
Herefordshire Vennture Hereford    45,000  
Suffolk Refugee Support Ipswich    45,000  
Home-Start Stirling Stirling    40,000  
inHope Bristol    40,000  
The East Manchester 
Community Association Gorton    40,000  
The Motherhood Plan York    40,000  

Crossroads Care 
Richmond and Kingston 
upon Thames Teddington    40,000  
ENYP Norwich    40,000  
HENRY Witney    40,000  
Love, Amelia Sunderland    40,000  
Moor Allerton 
Elderly Care Leeds    40,000  
Rising Sun 
Domestic Violence 
and Abuse Service Canterbury    40,000  
Shepherds Bush 
Families Project 
& Children’s Centre London    40,000  
The Mustard Tree 
Foundation Reading    40,000  
Jericho Road Project Nottingham    40,000  
SocietyLinks 
Tower Hamlets London    40,000  
Afghanistan and Central 
Asian Association Feltham    40,000  
Perthshire Women’s Aid Perth    40,000  
Home-Start Arun, 
Worthing & Adur Arundel    40,000  
Reading Force Kingston 
 upon Thames    40,000  
Women’s Community 
Matters Barrow-in-Furness    40,000  
CHESS Homeless Chelmsford    40,000  
Rentstart (UK) Walton-on-Thames    40,000  
Home-Start Lambeth London    40,000  
Carlisle Key Carlisle    40,000  
Home-Start Barnet London    40,000  
Home-Start Camden 
and Islington London    40,000  
CPotential Trust London    40,000  
Home-Start Watford 
and Three Rivers Watford    40,000  
Barnabus Manchester    40,000  
Genesis Trust Bath Bath    40,000  
Home-Start Bristol and 
South Gloucestershire Bristol    40,000  
Home-Start Erewash Ilkeston    40,000  
Lighthouse Women’s Aid Ipswich    40,000  
Young & Inspired London    40,000  
Ryders Green Methodist 
Day Centre West Bromwich    40,000  
The Old Quarry Adventure 
Playground Knottingley    40,000  
The Bridge 
(East Midlands) Loughborough    40,000  
Blaydon Youth 
& Community Centre Blaydon-on-Tyne    40,000  
Brandon Carrside Youth 
and Community Project Brandon    40,000  
Wellspring Settlement Bristol    40,000  
BookTrust Leeds    40,000  
Justlife Foundation Manchester    40,000  
Family Support 
Derbyshire Derby    40,000  
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Kirknewton Community 
Development Trust Kirknewton    40,000  
Street Storage London    40,000  
Amaze Brighton    40,000  
BD4 Community Trust Bradford    40,000  
The Chamwell 
Centre Charity Gloucester    40,000  
The Birmingham 
Settlement Birmingham    40,000  
North Tyneside 
Disability Forum Shiremoor    40,000  
Perth & Kinross Association 
of Voluntary Service Perth    40,000  
Ymddiriedolaeth Gofalwyr 
Gogledd Cymru Colwyn Bay    40,000  
Gravesham Sanctuary Gravesend    40,000  
Project Colt Elland    40,000  
Room to Heal London    40,000  
Life Centre Chichester    40,000  
London Play London    40,000  
Spencer Contact Northampton    40,000  
Dentaid Southampton    40,000  
Hastings Furniture 
Service Hastings    40,000  
Sifa Fireside Birmingham    40,000  
Oasis Cardiff Cardiff    35,000  
Borderlands 
(South West) Bristol    35,000  
Community Housing 
Advocacy Project Ardrossan    35,000  
The Porch Oxford    35,000  
Community Drug and Alcohol 
Recovery Services London    35,000  
Age Concern Mid Mersey St Helens    30,000  
Age UK Northumberland Ashington    30,000  
Brighton Women’s Centre Brighton    30,000  
Freedom Community 
Alliance Barnstaple    30,000  
Home-Start Hampshire Wickham    30,000  
Home-Start Knowsley Liverpool    30,000  
Let Me Know London    30,000  
The Hamlet Centre Trust Norwich    30,000  
The Poppy Factory Richmond 
 upon Thames    30,000  
Homeplus NI Belfast    30,000  
The Friary Nottingham    30,000  
Ascension Community 
Trust London    30,000  
Craigmillar Literacy Trust Edinburgh    30,000  
Emmaus Bolton Bolton    30,000 * 
Home-Start Edinburgh Edinburgh    30,000  
Nottingham Women’s 
Centre Nottingham    30,000  
SPACE Hertfordshire Stanstead Abbotts    30,000  
Upbeat Communties Derby    30,000  
Rotherham United 
Community Trust Rotherham    30,000 * 
Bournemouth Foodbank Bournemouth    30,000  
Luminary Stoke Newington    30,000  
Step by Step London London    30,000  

Phoenix Domestic 
Abuse Services Abertillery    30,000 
SAY Women Glasgow    30,000 
Sussex Nightstop Brighton    30,000 
Churn Project Cirencester    30,000 
Coventry Rape and 
Sexual Abuse Centre Coventry    30,000 
Emmaus Village Carlton Carlton    30,000 *
Bloody Good Period London    30,000 
Community InfoSource Glasgow    30,000 
Prisoners’ Advice Service London    30,000 
Shropshire Supports 
Refugee Shrewsbury    30,000 
WHISC Liverpool    30,000 
Support and Grow 
North East Tyne and Wear    30,000 
Refugees at Home London    30,000 
Tender Education 
and Arts London    30,000 
Age UK Wakefield District Castleford    30,000 
The North of England 
Refugee Service Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000 
Manor After School 
and Kids Klubs Sheffield    30,000 
Greener Kirkcaldy Kirkcaldy    30,000 
Addiction Family Support High Wycombe    30,000 
The Honeypot 
Children’s Charity London    30,000 
The Survivor’s Network Brighton    30,000 
Home-Start 
Glasgow South Glasgow    30,000 
One Parent Families 
Scotland Edinburgh    30,000 
The Parent House Trust London    30,000 
Watford Women’s Centre Watford    30,000 
Children’s Integrated 
Playschemes Hertford    30,000 
Age UK Camden London    30,000 
Project 6 Keighley    30,000 
Hope After Harm Aylesbury    30,000 
Caring Together Charity St Ives    30,000 
Down’s Syndrome 
Scotland Glasgow    30,000 
ETHOS Hereford    30,000 
First Love Foundation London    30,000 
Broughton House Greater Manchester    30,000 
Restart Lives London    30,000 
Sanctus Chelmsford    30,000 
Anxious Minds Wallsend    30,000 
The Together Project London    30,000 
Wheely Tots London    30,000 
CYCA  Llanelli    30,000 
Dimobi Children 
Disability Trust Manchester    30,000 
Recovery Cymru 
Community Cardiff    30,000 
Ella’s Home London    30,000 
Salcare Heanor    30,000 
Apex Charitable Trust St Helens    30,000 
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Cape Community 
Care Day Centre Smethwick    30,000  
Home-Start 
Perth and Kinross Perth    30,000  
Age UK Exeter Exeter    30,000  
Watford New Hope Trust Watford    30,000  
Live Life 
Social Enterprises Lisburn    30,000 * 
Bangladesh Youth 
Movement London    30,000  
Broxtowe Womens 
Project Nottingham    30,000  
Crossroads Care Rotherham    30,000  
Halton Carers Centre Runcorn    30,000  
Her Centre London    30,000  
Home-Start 
North Wiltshire Pewsey    30,000  
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
Refugee Forum Nottingham    30,000  
Refugee Action London    30,000  
Age Concern 
North Norfolk Sheringham    30,000  
Leeds Women’s Aid Leeds    30,000  
Smart Criminal 
Justice Services Bedford    30,000  
Urban Partnership Group London    30,000  
Empowerment Charity 
Lancashire Blackpool    30,000  
Little Miracles Peterborough    30,000  
Birmingham Rape and 
Sexual Violence Project Birmingham    30,000  
SAHWR St Albans    30,000  
Bristol After Stroke Bristol    30,000  
Dens Hemel Hempstead    30,000  
National Ugly Mugs Manchester    30,000  
Bridgend Carers Centre Bridgend    30,000  
Centre for Action 
on Rape and Abuse Colchester    30,000  
Portsmouth Down 
Syndrome Association Portsmouth    30,000  
Feast With Us Epsom    30,000  
Kyffin Place 
Community Centre Bradford    30,000  
Treasures Foundation London    30,000  
Canterbury and District 
Early Years Project Canterbury    30,000  
Pembrokeshire Care 
Society Haverfordwest    30,000  
Women Acting in 
Today’s Society Birmingham    30,000  
Christian Family Concern South Croydon    30,000  
St Lukes Advice Service Brighton    30,000  
Age Concern 
Southend-on-Sea Westcliff-on-Sea    30,000 * 
Home-Start Teesside Middlesbrough    30,000  
LinkAble Woking Woking    30,000  
Northumberland 
Domestic Abuse Services Hexham    30,000  
First Steps 
Women’s Centre Dungannon    30,000  

The Association of Visitors 
to Immigration Detainees Nottingham    25,000  
The Happy Baby 
Community London    25,000  
Whitehaven Community 
Trust Whitehaven    25,000  
Swings & Smiles Thatcham    25,000  
Canaan Trust Long Eaton    25,000  
Kissing It Better Aston Cantlow    25,000  
Somerset Sight Taunton    25,000  
The Purfleet Trust 
Resettlement Project Kings Lynn    25,000  
Kingston Churches  Kingston  
Action on Homelessness upon Thames    25,000  
Wag & Company North East 
Friendship Dogs Hexham    25,000  
Flourish (NI) Belfast    25,000  
Home-Start  Newcastle-
Newcastle Borough under-Lyme    25,000  
Mind Mosaic Child 
and Family Therapies Greenock    25,000  
LandWorks Totnes    25,000  
User Voice London    25,000  
Action For Refugees 
in Lewisham London    25,000  
Home-Start 
Crawley, Horsham 
and Mid-Sussex Crawley    25,000  
Steps 2 Recovery London    25,000  
Larkhall and District 
Volunteer Group Glasgow    25,000  
Leeds Mencap Leeds    25,000  
Sanctuary in Chichester Chichester    25,000  
Asylum Welcome Oxford    25,000  
Safety Centre 
(Hazard Alley) Milton Keynes    25,000  
Hope for Children 
and their Families Bromyard    25,000  
Bristol Refugee Rights Bristol    25,000  
Hackney Migrant Centre London    25,000  
Home-Start Southwark London    25,000  
The Food Train Dumfries    25,000  
700 Club Darlington    25,000  
Refugee Action Kingston London    25,000  
The Bike Project Brixton    25,000  
British Refugee Council London    25,000  
Plymouth Age Concern Plymouth    25,000  
Cleethorpes Community 
Sports and Education Cleethorpes    25,000  
Coronation Day Centre Stranraer    25,000  
Access Adventures Staines    25,000  
Play Midlothian Dalkeith    25,000  
St Luke’s Community and 
Regeneration Enterprises Leeds    25,000  
The Harbour Project 
for Swindon Refugees 
and Asylum Seekers Swindon    25,000  
The National Association 
for Children of Alcoholics Bristol    25,000  
Ability Shetland Lerwick    25,000  
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Ayr United 
Football Academy Ayr    25,000  
We Belong London    25,000  
Barnsley Sexual Abuse 
& Rape Crisis Services Barnsley    25,000  
International Care 
Network Bournemouth    25,000  
Be Enriched Elements London    25,000  
Citizens Advice Swale Sittingbourne    25,000
Shepway Sports Trust Folkestone    25,000  

Total for Welfare 22,400,000
(Total number of grants: 376)

Youth  £
The Sutton Trust London           500,000  
Empire Fighting Chance Bristol           250,000 * 
Children’s Discovery 
Centre East London London           250,000  
Youth Initiatives NI Belfast           225,000  
Youth Sport Trust Loughborough           200,000  
Coram’s Fields and 
the Harmsworth 
Memorial Playground London           150,000  
Whizz-Kidz London           150,000  
The Rock Trust Edinburgh           150,000  
Young Lewisham 
Project (Workshop) London           100,000  
Circle Community London    90,000  
The Clock Tower 
Sanctuary Brighton    90,000  
In2Out Wetherby    90,000  
Brighton Youth Centre Brighton    90,000  
Art Against Knives London    80,000  
Arundel Castle 
Cricket Foundation Arundel    80,000  
Bolton Lads and Girls 
Club Bolton    80,000  
PCC of Woking 
Christ Church Woking    75,000 * 
Settle Support London    75,000  
Team Domenica Brighton    70,000  
YMCA North Tyneside North Shields    70,000  
The Foyer Federation Manchester    70,000  
London Tigers London    60,000  
The Caxton Youth 
Organisation London    60,000  
Auckland Youth and 
Community Centre Bishop Auckland    60,000  
The Welsh Association 
of Youth Clubs Pontypridd    60,000  
Bumpy Birstall    60,000  
Edmonton Community 
Partnership London    60,000  
Young People First 
(Midlands) Warwick    60,000  
Uprising Youth 
and Community Ashford    60,000  
London Youth 
Games Foundation London    60,000  

Castlemilk Youth 
Complex Glasgow    60,000 
Youth Concern Aylesbury    60,000 
The Mix Stowmarket    60,000 
Shrewsbury House Liverpool    60,000 
Youthscape Luton    60,000 
Margaret Carey 
Foundation Shipley    60,000 
Playskill Hemel Hempstead    60,000 
People and Drugs Blyth    50,000 
Ablaze Bristol    50,000 
Allsorts Gloucestershire Stroud    50,000 
Durham City Centre 
Youth Project Framwellgate Moor    50,000 
Power The Fight London    50,000 
Scottish Sports Futures Glasgow    50,000 
The Cooke E-Learning 
Foundation Leicester    50,000 
The Hideaway 
Youth Project Manchester    50,000 
YKids Bootle    50,000 
Llamau Cardiff    50,000 
Ochil Youths Community 
Improvement Tillicoultry    50,000 
The Pump 
(East Birmingham) Birmingham    50,000 
Sister System London    50,000 
Cramlington Voluntary 
Youth Project Cramlington    50,000 
Golddigger Trust Sheffield    50,000 
Bangladesh Youth 
League Luton    50,000 
Nightsafe Blackburn    50,000 
Family Action London    50,000 
The Hunslet Club Leeds    50,000 *
North Worcestershire 
Basement Projects Bromsgrove    50,000 
The Feast Youth Project Birmingham    50,000 
Marches Family Network Hereford    50,000 
Milton Keynes YMCA Milton Keynes    50,000 
Prifysgol Aberystwyth Aberystwyth    50,000 
St John Ambulance 
Cymru Cardiff    50,000 
iheart Principles London    50,000 
Superkidz Community 
Trust London    50,000 
Nottingham County 
Scout Council Linby    45,000 *
Cheshire Young Carers Chester    40,000 
Pilton Youth and 
Children’s Project Edinburgh    40,000 
Resurgo London    40,000 
Wester Hailes 
Youth Agency Edinburgh    40,000 
Children’s Sailing Trust Helston    40,000 
Carmarthen Youth 
Project Carmarthen    40,000 
Level Water Kent    40,000 
The Willows Centre 
Troedyrhiw Merthyr Tydfil    40,000 
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The Advocacy Academy London    40,000  
The Social Mobility 
Foundation London    40,000  
Urban Devotion Birmingham    40,000  
33rd Norwich 
Scout Group Norwich    40,000 * 
Alt Valley Community 
Trust Liverpool    40,000  
The Matrix Trust Guildford    40,000  
Petty Pool Northwich    40,000  
Charnwood 20:20 Loughborough    40,000  
Boxing Futures Peterborough    40,000  
Kennington Association London    40,000  
Canongate Youth Edinburgh    40,000  
Fumble Sheffield    40,000  
Cardiff Young Men’s 
Christian Association Cardiff    40,000  
Harborough District 
Children and Young 
People’s Charity Market Harborough    40,000  
The Providence 
House Trust London    40,000  
Harmony Youth Project Bolton    40,000  
Lancashire Youth 
Challenge Lancaster    40,000  
The Cart Shed Charity Hereford    40,000  
Cambridge Acorn Project Cambridge    35,000  
Pure Insight 1628 Stockport    35,000  
Hope in Haringey London    30,000  
SkyWay Charity London    30,000  
One-Eighty Oxford    30,000  
Swan Youth Project Downham Market    30,000  
Youth Action Alliance London    30,000  
Blue Smile Project Cambridge    30,000  
Door 84 Youth 
and Community Centre York    30,000  
Positive Futures 
North Liverpool Liverpool    30,000  
Shelford and Stapleford 
Youth Initiative Cambridge    30,000  
St Christopher’s 
Family Centre Bradford    30,000  
St Andrew’s Club London    30,000  
Warwickshire Young 
Carers Balsall Common    30,000  
Girvan Youth Trust Girvan    30,000  
Stride UK Foundation Salford    30,000  
King’s Arms Project Bedford    30,000  
People’s Economy London    30,000  
Sparkle (South Wales) Newport    30,000  
PCC of Preston St John 
and St George the Martyr Preston    30,000  
Sheffield Young Carers Sheffield    30,000  
Ferrywell Youth Project Edinburgh    30,000  
Pie Factory Music Ramsgate    30,000  
Live UnLtd London    30,000  
77th Glasgow Disabled 
Scout Group Glasgow    30,000  
Guide Association 
Buckinghamshire Aylesbury    30,000  

Fet-Lor Youth Club Edinburgh    30,000  
Positive Youth 
Foundation Coventry    30,000  
Youth Options Eastleigh    30,000  
BOSP Pitsea    30,000  
FAST London London    30,000  
Go! Youth Trust Falkirk    30,000  
The Outrunners Charity London    30,000  
Felixstowe Youth 
Development Group Felixstowe    30,000  
Coach Core Foundation London    30,000  
The Bath Rugby 
Community Foundation Bath    30,000  
Ocean Youth Trust 
Scotland Greenock    30,000  
Space4Autism Macclesfield    30,000  
Whitton Youth 
Partnership Ipswich    30,000  
Yes Futures London    30,000  
North Paddington 
Youth Club London    30,000  
Gorse Hill Studios 
Creative Community Stretford    30,000  
Edinburgh Young Carers Edinburgh    30,000  
The Young Urban 
Arts Foundation London    30,000  
Diana Award London    30,000  
Gateshead District 
Scout Council Gateshead    30,000 * 
Prospex Islington    30,000  
Rekindle School Manchester    30,000  
Base 25 Wolverhampton    30,000  
Big Hearts 
Community Trust Edinburgh    30,000  
Just Like Us London    25,000  
Gautby Road Play, Youth 
& Community Centre Wirral    25,000  
Hayle Youth Project Hayle    25,000  
LASC Childcare Services Loanhead    25,000  
Re:work Bristol    25,000  
The Kids Network London    25,000  
Mosaic LGBT+ Young 
Persons’ Trust London    25,000  
Grow Sheffield    25,000  
The Viney Hill Christian 
Adventure Centre Lydney    25,000  
A4S Bedford    25,000  
The Bradfield Club London    25,000  
Ardrossan & Largs Unit 
(No 612) of the Sea 
Cadet Corps Saltcoats    25,000 * 
Y Services for 
Young People Waterlooville    25,000  
1st Nanpantan 
Scout Group Loughborough    25,000  
Growing Resilience 
in Teens Hitchin    25,000  
Menphys Leicester    25,000  
YMCA St Helens St Helens    25,000  
Area 43 Cardigan    25,000 * 
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GISDA Cyfyngedig Caernarfon    25,000 * 
Cocoon  Richmond
– Care After Care upon Thames    25,000  

Total for Youth 8,340,000
(Total number of grants: 161) 

Other
Royal Institute of 
International Affairs London           200,000 
Global Leadership 
Foundation London           150,000 
Association of Charitable 
Foundations London           100,000 
Glencraft Aberdeen    95,000 
The Ethical Property 
Foundation London    40,000 
Association of Chairs London    37,000  

Total for Other 622,000
(Total number of grants: 6)  

Grants of £20,000 and less

Arts  £
Bloomin’ Arts Lingfield     20,000  
Blue Apple Theatre Winchester     20,000  
Drake Music NI Newry     20,000  
Futures Theatre Company London     20,000  
Hijinx Cardiff     20,000  
James Menzies-Kitchin 
Memorial Trust Newbold on Stour     20,000  
Minerva Arts & Wellbeing Sunderland     20,000  
Leeds Grand Theatre 
and Opera House Leeds     20,000  
The Rodolfus Foundation London     20,000  
Phoenix Dance Theatre Leeds     20,000  
Plymouth Arts Cinema Plymouth     20,000  
The Diss Corn Hall Trust Diss     20,000  
Royal College of Music London     20,000  
Abram Wilson Foundation 
for Creative Arts Manchester     20,000  
Bromley Youth 
Music Trust Bromley     20,000  
Customs House Trust South Shields     20,000  
Escape Community 
Art in Action Stratford-upon-Avon     20,000  
Reading Repertory 
Theatre Reading     20,000  
The Arts Depot Trust London     20,000  
The Play House Birmingham     20,000  
Big Brum Theatre in 
Education Company Birmingham     20,000  
Brighton People’s 
Theatre Brighton     20,000  
Echo Echo Dance 
Theatre Company Londonderry     20,000  
London Mozart Players Croydon     20,000  
Visible Fictions Glasgow     20,000 

Commedia of Errors Belfast     20,000 
Drake Music Scotland Edinburgh     20,000 
Community Focus 
Inclusive Arts London     20,000 
Cove Park Argyll & Bute     20,000 
Déda Derby     20,000 
Lake District Music Kendal     20,000 
McNicol Ballet Collective Huddersfield     20,000 
UK Storyhouse Chester     20,000 
High Peak 
Community Arts High Peak     20,000 
Jelly Leg’d Chicken 
Arts Centre Reading     20,000 
Movema Liverpool     20,000 
Intermission Youth London     20,000 
Manchester Collective Manchester     20,000 
North Yorkshire Youth 
Music Action Zone York     20,000 
Soundabout Oxford     20,000 
The Creative Art House Wakefield     20,000 
Theatre Alibi Exeter     20,000 
Turf Projects Croydon     20,000 
York Citizens’ 
Theatre Trust York     20,000 
City Arts Nottingham     20,000 
Creative Futures London     20,000 
Musical Keys Norwich     20,000 
Music Action 
International Manchester     20,000 
Accessible Arts 
& Media York     20,000 
Ballet Lorent Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000 
Golden Thread Gallery Belfast     20,000 
Travelling Light 
Theatre Company Bristol     20,000 
Clonter Farm Music Trust Congleton     20,000 
All or Nothing Aerial 
Dance Theatre Edinburgh     20,000 
Artspace Lifespace Bristol     20,000 
Moving Parts Arts Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000 
Young At Art Belfast     20,000 
Arts Education Exchange Kent     20,000 
Chapel Arts Studios Andover     20,000 
Open Door People London     20,000 
Spid Theatre Company London     20,000 
Magic Me London     20,000 
The Spitz Charitable 
Trust London     20,000 
Arts Trust St Osyth     20,000 
Bruiser Theatre Company Belfast     20,000 
Centre for 
Contemporary Arts Derry–Londonderry     20,000 
Coda Dance Company Grays     20,000 
Kinetika Bloco London     20,000 
Strange Town Edinburgh     20,000 
True Colours Theatre Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000 
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The Pleasance Theatre 
Trust London     20,000  
Beee Creative CIO Maulden     20,000  
Manaton and East 
Dartmoor Theatre Buckfastleigh     20,000  
Milton Keynes IAC Milton Keynes     20,000  
Opera Holland Park London     20,000  
Mimosa House CIO London     20,000  
Artcore Derby     20,000  
Hastings Philharmonic 
Orchestra Hastings     20,000  
Scottish Youth Dance Glasgow     18,000  
Eco Drama Glasgow     15,000  
Stepping Out Theatre Milverton     15,000  
Manchester Craft 
& Design Manchester     15,000  
Montgomeryshire 
Youth Theatre Welshpool     15,000  
One Tenth Human Lancaster     15,000  
The Lettering and Commemorative 
Arts Trust Ipswich     15,000  
The Makers Guild 
in Wales Cardiff     15,000  
Theatre de Complicite 
Education London     15,000  
LUNG Productions Sheffield     15,000  
Soundcastle Hastings     15,000  
Ulster Youth Orchestra Belfast     15,000  
AWA Dance Birmingham     15,000  
DU Dance (NI) Belfast     15,000  
Glasgow East Arts 
Company Glasgow     15,000  
Wonder Arts St Helens     15,000  
Brighton Marina Studios Brighton     15,000  
Marlborough Theatre 
Productions Brighton     15,000  
Music Theatre Wales Cardiff     15,000  
The Merry Opera 
Company Edenbridge     15,000  
ZooNation: The Kate 
Prince Company London     15,000  
Sonic Bothy Glasgow     15,000  
Babbling Vagabonds Belper     15,000  
Improbable Edenbridge     15,000  
Teapot Trust Musselburgh     15,000  
The Grand At Clitheroe Clitheroe     15,000  
The Offshoot Foundation Sudbury     15,000  
Art Care Education Somerton     15,000  
Curious Arts Hartlepool     15,000  
‘Signals’ Essex 
Media Centre Colchester     15,000  
St David’s Brass Band Gorebridge     15,000  
Twocan Inclusive 
Theatre Company Gloucester     15,000 * 
Kantos Chamber Choir Stockport     15,000  
The Mill @ Coppermill London     15,000  
Total Insight Theatre Nottingham     15,000  
Milton Keynes 
Arts Centre Milton Keynes     15,000  
New Earth Theatre London     15,000  

The Garage Art Group Evesham     15,000  
Cascade Theatre 
Company Truro     15,000  
O-Bon on the Foyle 
Festival Group Derry     15,000  
Serendipity Artists 
Movement Leicester     15,000  
Slide Dance Croydon     15,000  
Soundlincs Lincoln     15,000  
The Bristol Ensemble Bristol     15,000  
UD Music Foundation London     15,000  
Angel Shed 
Theatre Company Islington     15,000  
Eleni St Asaph     15,000  
Lewisham Education 
Arts Network  London     15,000  
Wyldwood Arts Cinderford     15,000  
Zoo Co Creative London     15,000  
Collar and Tie Worcester     15,000  
Hand of Newcastle upon Tyne   15,000  
Kingston Theatre Trust Kingston 
 upon Thames     15,000  
Music in the Round Sheffield     15,000  
Savvy Theatre Company Croydon     10,000  
White City 
Theatre Project London     10,000  
Misfits Music Foundation Birmingham     10,000  
Scarabeus Theatre London     10,000  
Citadel Arts Group Edinburgh     10,000  
Motion Control Dance Barry     10,000  
The Inspire Arts Trust Thornbury     10,000  
Stills Edinburgh     10,000  
Ensemble Cymru Bangor     10,000  
Four Corners London     10,000  
Pimlico Musical 
Foundation London     10,000  
Skaped London     10,000  
Trust Music Bolton     10,000  
Unfolding Theatre Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000  
UPROAR Cowbridge     10,000  
Mitchell Memorial 
Youth Arts Centre Stoke-on-Trent     10,000  
Royal College of Music London     10,000  
Seaton Gateway 
Theatre Company Seaton     10,000  
Limelight Music Glasgow     10,000  
Nottingham Music 
Service Nottingham     10,000  
Tricky Hat Productions Glasgow     10,000  
Alina Orchestra Bedford     10,000  
Baseless Fabric Theatre London     10,000  
The Garage Trust Norwich     10,000  
Zest Theatre Lincoln     10,000  
Mercury Musical 
Developments Birmingham     10,000  
Paragon Ensemble Glasgow     10,000  
The Otakar Kraus 
Music Trust Hampton     10,000  
Comhaltas in Britain Liverpool     10,000  
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Southwark Playhouse 
Theatre Company London     10,000  
Wild Arts Colchester     10,000  
Scherzo Ensemble London     10,000  
Anjali Dance Company Derby     10,000  
Big Telly Theatre 
Company Portstewart     10,000  
Tangle Swindon     10,000  
Royal Opera House 
Covent Garden 
Foundation London        9,000  
TramShed Theatre 
Company Leigh        8,000  
Mirador Lytham St Annes        8,000  
Fool On Coatbridge        7,500  
Generation Arts Bathgate        7,500  
Shakespeare Link Llandrindod Wells        7,500  
Northern Heartlands Barnard Castle        6,500  
Arts Bridge Charity London        5,000  
Bingley Amateur 
Operatic Society Bingley        5,000  
National Youth Arts Trust London        5,000  
Clio’s Company London        5,000  
Komedia Productions Brighton        5,000  
Tetbury Rail Lands 
Regeneration Trust Tetbury        5,000  
An Talla Solais Ullapool        5,000  
Waterbaby Arts SCIO Innellan        4,000  
East Glasgow 
Music School Glasgow        4,000  
The Garstang and District 
Arts Society Preston        4,000  
Barnet Education 
Arts Trust London        3,000 * 
Distinctive Dance 
Academy Glasgow        3,000  
The Edinburgh 
Jam Group Newbridge        2,500  
Bute Arts Society Isle of Bute        2,500 * 

Total for Arts 2,835,000
(Total number of grants: 188)

Community  £
Access Dorset Bournemouth     20,000  
Berkshire County 
Blind Society Reading     20,000  
Beverley Community Lift Beverley     20,000  
Clipston Village Hall Market Harborough     20,000  
Streetbikes Huddersfield     20,000  
Ty Enfys Family Centre Llanelli     20,000  
Blyth Tall Ship Blyth     20,000  
Glass Community 
Association Glass     20,000  
St Patrick’s Parish, 
Castle Archdale Enniskillen     20,000  
The Kite Trust Ely     20,000  
Brighter Futures Rhyl     20,000  
Chilwell Memorial 
Hall and Institute Nottingham     20,000  

Friends of Spencer Park Coventry     20,000 *
Home-Start Clackmannanshire     20,000 
Tranmere Rovers in 
the Community Birkenhead     20,000 
Tytherton Village Hall Chippenham     20,000 
Hope Community Church Wigston     20,000 
Literature Works Exeter     20,000 
Pepper Johns Memorial Downpatrick     20,000 
Seachange Devon Budleigh Salterton     20,000 
St Agnes Miners & Mechanics 
Institute (2013) St Agnes     20,000 
The ITSA Digital Trust Cheltenham     20,000 
Speaking Up 
Speaking Out Macclesfield     20,000 
GATE Herts Cuffley     20,000 
Not A Phase London     20,000 
St Pancras 
Community Association London     20,000 
Dunfermline Regeneration 
Trust Dunfermline     20,000 *
Healthy and Active 
in East Kilbride East Kilbride     20,000 
Kennet Furniture Refurbiz Devizes     20,000 
The Bridge Community 
Project Livingston     20,000 
Three Trees Community 
Centre Birmingham     20,000 
CARESCO Sawtry     20,000 
Chulmleigh Playing Field Chulmleigh     20,000 
Friends of the Hailey 
Day Centre Sawbridgeworth     20,000 
Piddinghoe Village Hall Newhaven     20,000 
Southampton 
City Mission  Southampton     20,000 
O Ddrws i Ddrws Pwllheli     20,000 
Strand Community Trust Dawlish     20,000 
Long Sutton Village Hall 
and Recreation Ground Langport     20,000 *
Daventry Volunteer 
Centre Daventry     20,000 
The Scotter Village 
Hall Association Gainsborough     20,000 *
Bollington Community 
Association Bollington     20,000 
Motherwell North Parish 
Church of Scotland Motherwell     20,000 
The Alice Cross Centre Teignmouth     20,000 
Castleford Heritage Trust Castleford     20,000 
Badenoch and Strathspey 
Community ConnXions Aviemore     20,000 
Cambridgeshire Acre Ely     20,000 
North Bristol 
Advice Centre Bristol     20,000 
Trustees of Appin 
Village Hall Appin     20,000 *
Eyemouth Development 
Trust Eyemouth     20,000 
Filwood Hope Bristol     20,000 
Jamyang Buddhist Centre Leeds     20,000 
Kimberworth Park 
Community Partnership Rotherham     20,000 
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West Faversham 
Community Association Faversham     20,000  
The East Cowton New 
Village Hall Association East Cowton     20,000  
Volunteer Centre 
Kensington & Chelsea London     20,000  
Gatehouse Development 
Initiative Gatehouse of Fleet     20,000  
Asian Resource Centre 
of Croydon Croydon     20,000  
Excel Women’s 
Association London     20,000  
Forton Parish Room 
and Village Institute Newport     20,000  
Newbald Village Hall South Newbald     20,000  
Thornham Village Hall 
and Playing Field Thornham     20,000 * 
Angus Buchanan V C 
Recreation Ground Coleford     20,000  
Saint Cecilia’s Church 
of England School London     20,000 * 
Winsford Youth 
and Community Forum Cheshire     19,000  
The Beacon Centre Manchester     18,000  
Beloved Bristol     15,000  
Blackrod Sports 
and Community Centre Bolton     15,000  
SEAL Community 
Health Project Glasgow     15,000  
The Strathmore Rugby 
Club Community Trust Forfar     15,000  
Chabad-Lubavitch 
of Islington London     15,000  
Ingol and Tanterton 
Community Trust Preston     15,000  
Topsham Swimming 
Pool Association Exeter     15,000 * 
InCommon Foundation London     15,000  
Interfaith Glasgow Glasgow     15,000  
St Philip’s Centre Leicester     15,000  
Levens Playing Fields Kendal     15,000  
All Roads Lead 
to Whithorn Whithorn     15,000  
Star Neighbourhood 
Centre Belfast     15,000  
The Chilterns Dial-a-Ride Gerrards Cross     15,000  
Irish Community Care Liverpool     15,000  
West Bann Development Coleraine     15,000  
Yetton Together Huddersfield     15,000  
Creggan Country 
Park Enterprises Derry     15,000  
32nd Greenock & District 
Scout Group Greenock     15,000  
Bothwell Futures Glasgow     15,000  
The Gorran Haven 
Memorial Village Hall St Austell     15,000  
The Storehouse Project Wigan     15,000  
PCC of St James, 
Fletchamstead Coventry     15,000  
Chieveley Recreation 
Centre Chieveley     15,000  
Hull YFC Hull     15,000  

Swansea MAD Swansea     15,000  
Time Banks UK Stroud     15,000  
Worcester Snoezelen Worcester     15,000  
Island House 
Community Centre London     15,000  
Crossroads Youth & 
Community Association Glasgow     15,000  
Marsden Community
Trust Marsden     15,000  
WAVE Adventure Bolton     15,000  
Enviro Ability Ross-on-Wye     15,000  
ROKT Foundation Brighouse     15,000  
Stourton Caundle 
Village Hall Sturminster Newton     15,000  
Cottenham Community 
Centre Cambridge     14,000  
Uttlesford Community 
Travel Great Dunmow     12,000  
Trevone Village Hall Padstow     12,000  
Emmaus Suffolk Ipswich     10,000  
The Well Community 
Projects Retford     10,000  
Wealden Volunteering Uckfield     10,000  
Policy Centre 
for African Peoples Gillingham     10,000  
TLC Aberdeen City     10,000  
Crescent Food Bank Bolton     10,000 * 
Environmental & Management 
Solutions Hull     10,000  
Garthorpe Village Hall Scunthorpe     10,000 * 
Neuadd Llanddarog Hall Carmarthen     10,000  
St Cleer Memorial Hall Liskeard     10,000  
Totnes and Rural 
Community Transport Totnes     10,000  
YMCA Glenrothes Glenrothes     10,000 * 
South Bristol 
Advice Services Bristol     10,000  
The Ellen Hinde 
Memorial Hall Banbury     10,000  
The Harbury Village 
Library Harbury     10,000  
Peebles Bowling Club Peebles     10,000 * 
Al Ghazali 
Multi-cultural Centre Liverpool     10,000  
Barnet Churches Action Barnet     10,000  
Chandler’s Ford 
Methodist Church Eastleigh     10,000  
Gairloch Community 
Car Scheme Achnasheen     10,000  
Barney and Fulmodeston 
Playing Field Fakenham     10,000  
Lydney Dial-A-Ride and 
Community Transport Lydney     10,000  
Marine in the Community Liverpool     10,000  
Ruspidge Memorial Hall Cinderford     10,000  
Wigton Baths Trust Wigton     10,000  
Prestwich Methodist 
Youth Association Prestwich     10,000  
South Hams 
Community Action Totnes     10,000  
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Teeside Athletic 
Football Club Redcar     10,000 * 
All Arts & Media Manchester     10,000  
Champness Hall Trust Rochdale     10,000  
Orleton Recreation 
Association Orleton     10,000 * 
Deysbrook Village Centre Liverpool     10,000  
Kirkwhelpington 
Memorial Hall Kirkwhelpington     10,000  
The Stockwell 
Partnership London     10,000  
Elim Foursquare 
Gospel Alliance West Malvern     10,000  
Hemingford Peace 
Memorial Field St Ives     10,000  
Parkfields Community 
Centre Mold     10,000  
The Shrewsbury 
Furniture Scheme Shrewsbury     10,000  
Hill Street Youth 
& Community Centre Rugby     10,000  
Wyvern Community 
Transport Benfleet     10,000  
Lindum Sports 
Association Lincoln     10,000  
GJ Library Gateshead        8,000  
The Pennypit Community 
Development Trust Prestonpans        8,000  
The Meeting Room Fetcham        8,000  
The Great Yarmouth 
Pathway Great Yarmouth        8,000  
Women’s Institute Carterton        8,000  
The Gillingham Community 
and Leisure Trust Gillingham        8,000  
The Hepworth Silver 
Prize Band Holmfirth        8,000 * 
Mynydd Isa Butterflies 
Women’s Institute Mold        8,000  
Friends of Cotteridge 
Park Birmingham        8,000  
St Andrews Men’s Shed St Andrews        7,500  
Hesketh Bank 
Community Centre Preston        7,500  
Skye Camanachd Portree        7,500  
Leatherhead 
Community Hub Leatherhead        7,500  
Power To Inspire Cambridge        7,500  
The Horam Village 
Hall and Recreation 
Ground Charity Horam        7,500  
St Werburghs 
Community Association Bristol        7,500 * 
Aghalee Village Hall Craigavon        7,500  
Richard’s Castle 
Village Hall Ludlow        7,500  
The Christopher and 
Sarah Aldam Bowly’s 
Almshouse Charity Cirencester        7,500  
Storeroom2010 Cowes        7,000  
Carers Trust 
Heart of England Coventry        6,500  

Foresight 
(North East Lincolnshire) Grimsby        6,500 
Sub-Sahara 
Advisory Panel Cardiff        6,500 
The Yatton House Society Great Ayton        6,000 
Aberdeen Street Pastors Aberdeen        6,000 
Men up North Sheffield        5,000 
Bridgerule Village Hall Holsworthy        5,000 
Community Lives Matter Ormskirk        5,000 
Datchworth Village Hall Datchworth        5,000 
Elayos Birmingham        5,000 
Bardwell Playing 
Fields Association Bury St Edmunds        5,000 
Galloway Community 
Transport Castle Douglas        5,000 
Upper Wincobank Chapel/
Wincobank School Trust Sheffield        5,000 
Countrymen UK Sherborne        5,000 
Mursley Village Hall Milton Keynes        5,000 
Comrie Millennium 
Footpath Association Doune        5,000 
Grantown-on-Spey YMCA Grantown-on-Spey        5,000 
Hadlow Down Village Hall Uckfield        5,000 
East Harptree 
Playing Field Bristol        5,000 
Pulborough and District 
Community Care 
Association Pulborough        5,000 
Pallion Action Group Sunderland        5,000 
Ray Ceredigion Aberaeron        5,000 
Solihull Moors 
Foundation Solihull        5,000 
Swansea Community 
Farm Swansea        5,000 
The Hinge Centre Bridlington        5,000 
Brockworth Link Gloucester        5,000 
Cinderford Area 
Neighbourhood 
Development Initiative Cinderford        5,000 
Hindmarsh Village Hall Alnwick        5,000 
Stakeford and Bomarsund 
Miner’s Welfare Scheme Choppington        5,000 
Capel Community Trust Ipswich        5,000 *
The Little Aston 
Village Hall Sutton Coldfield        5,000 
Seething and Mundham 
Village Hall Norwich        5,000 *
Aston le Walls Village Hall Daventry        5,000 
Parish Room (Farnham) Farnham        5,000 
West Moors 
Memorial Hall Ferndown        5,000 
Cogenhoe & Whiston Village 
Hall & Playing Fields Northampton        5,000 
Lanark Men’s Shed Lanark        5,000 
Nordelph Village Hall Downham Market        5,000 
South Hylton 
Community Project Sunderland        5,000 
Templecombe 
Village Hall Templecombe        5,000 
The Horsley Village Hall Derby        5,000 
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Sunderland Community 
Transport Sunderland        5,000  
Thelbridge Parish Hall Crediton        5,000  
Shap Swimming Pool Penrith        5,000  
The Roseland Centre Truro        5,000  
CGYCC Swansea        5,000  
Wetherby St James Church 
Centre Trust Wetherby        5,000  
Wigmore Village 
Community Centre Wigmore        3,500  
Sidley Baptist Church Sidley        3,000  
Kilham Playing 
Field Association Driffield        3,000  
Offenham Village Hall Offenham        3,000  
Maryvale Community 
Project Birmingham        3,000  
Tyne and Wear Centre 
Against Unemployment Gateshead        3,000  
Eccles Community Hall 
Organisation Manchester        3,000  
Elstronwick and Danthorpe 
Community Charity
and Recreation Ground Hull        3,000  
Riverside Centre Melksham        3,000 * 
Dunsford Cross Community 
Resource Centre Dunsford        3,000  
Ballymoney, Finvoy 
& Rasharkin Parish 
Caring Association Ballymoney        3,000  
Denton West End 
Community Library Denton        3,000  
Felmingham Village Hall North Walsham        2,500  
Bures Village Cricket Club Bures        2,500 * 
Langford Parish Hall Salisbury        2,500  
Plymouth Street Pastors Plymouth        2,000  
Newton Village Hall Sudbury        2,000  
Newington Village Hall Folkestone        2,000  
Ynysdawley Playing 
Fields Association Neath        2,000  
The Curlew 
Community Centre Spalding        1,500  
Manton Village Hall Manton        1,500  

Total for Community 2,740,500
(Total number of grants: 233)

Education  £
Life Skills 
Education Charity Nottingham     20,000  
Next Step Foundation London     20,000  
David Lewis Alderley Edge     20,000  
Sculpt IARS Southwark     20,000  
Lifeskills Learning 
for Living Bristol     20,000  
Surrey Care Trust Guildford     20,000  
Wellgate Community 
Farm Romford     20,000  
The Bank of Dreams 
and Nightmares Bridport     20,000  

Diverse Voices 
Edutainment London     20,000  
Bower Grove School PFTA Maidstone     20,000 * 
TeenTech Charity London     20,000  
Uppingham Community 
College Rutland     20,000  
BeyondAutism London     20,000  
The St Marylebone 
CE School London     20,000 * 
Acorn Villages Mistley     20,000  
Bilston Resource Centre Bilston     20,000  
The Bridgewater 
School Association Berkhamsted     20,000  
Options In Life St Andrews     20,000  
The Hive Avon Bristol     20,000  
Fermanagh Rural 
Community Initiative Enniskillen     20,000  
Universify Education Oxford     20,000  
Community Interest Luton     20,000  
The Wells Cathedral 
Chorister Trust Wells     20,000  
The Citizenship 
Foundation London     20,000  
St Brides Major CW
Primary School St Brides Major     15,000  
T21 Easton on the Hill     15,000  
Friends of Castledon 
School Wickford     15,000  
My Life My Choice Oxford     15,000  
The Woodroffe School Lyme Regis     15,000  
Farlingaye High School Woodbridge     15,000  
Lighthouse on the Marsh New Romney     15,000  
Stepping Stones Norwich     15,000  
The Wyvern 
School Foundation Ashford     15,000  
Holt Pre-School 
Fundraising Committee Trowbridge     15,000 * 
The Guildford Institute Guildford     15,000  
Adult Literacy Trust London     15,000  
The Philosophy 
Foundation London     15,000  
Turtle CYP Bristol     15,000  
Idea Foundation London     10,000  
Oakleigh School PSA London     10,000  
The Japanese Garden 
at Cowden Castle Dollar     10,000 * 
Bishop Perowne 
C of E College Worcester     10,000  
Respected Bournemouth     10,000  
Turn Around Orpington     10,000  
Whitchurch-on-Thames  Whitchurch-
Pre-School on-Thames     10,000  
Romodels Caerdydd     10,000  
South East Cornwall 
Multi Academy 
Regional Trust Liskeard     10,000  
Run With It Hull     10,000  
Esolperth Perth     10,000  
Skills Exchange East Kilbride     10,000  
Inclusive Homework Club Glasgow        7,500  
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Freshford School PTA Bath        7,500  
The Green Corridor Hillingdon        7,500  
Bishopswood School 
Association Reading        7,500  
Ropsley School PTA Grantham        5,000  
Leadgate Primary School Consett        5,000 * 
Dyslexia Association 
of Staffordshire Stoke-on-Trent        5,000  
The Colleton School 
Association Reading        5,000  
The Rowdown Inspire 
to Aspire Foundation New Addington        5,000  
St Mary & St John 
Church of England 
Primary School Oxford        5,000  
Worthwhile Occupational 
and Recreational Krafts Sheffield        5,000  
LSE London        5,000  
Nurture Steps Cupar        5,000  
Caedmon Primary School Middlesbrough        5,000 * 
Sladewood Academy Stroud        5,000  
Manor Primary School Reading        5,000 * 
Future Skills Training London        5,000  
Longcause Community 
Special School Plymouth        5,000  
Premier Learning Sheffield        5,000  
Nene Valley 
Primary School Peterborough        5,000 * 
The Abbey School Farnham        5,000  
Adamsrill Primary School London        5,000 * 
Just Kidz London        5,000  
Parents of Wellstead 
School Association Hedge End        4,000  
Friends of St Nicholas 
School Blundellsands Liverpool        3,500  
Friends of Hexham 
Priory School Hexham        3,000  
Uniformed London        3,000  
Ready Steady Read Hull        3,000  
Wealdstone FC 
Foundation Ruislip        3,000  
Friends of Sutton-in-the-Isle 
School Ely        2,000  
The Friends of 
Westwood Primary Leeds        2,000  
Friends of Newlands Spring 
County Primary School Chelmsford        2,000  
Friends of St Luke’s, 
Redbourn St Albans        2,000 

Total for Education 962,500
(Total number of grants: 83)

Environment  £
Isle of Gigha 
Heritage Trust Isle of Gigha     20,000  
Staffordshire 
Wildlife Trust Stafford     20,000  
Epping Forest 
Centenary Trust Loughton     20,000  
Mammal Society Dorset     20,000 

Marine Research and 
Conservation Foundation Lydeard St Lawrence    20,000 
Amphibian & Reptile 
Groups of the UK Oxford     20,000 
Coetir Anian Aberystwyth     20,000 
Morecambe Bay 
Partnership Kendal     20,000 
East Ayrshire Coalfield 
Environment Initiative Kilmarnock     20,000 *
Friends of Trent Vale Trail Newark     20,000 
Cumbria Action 
for Sustainability Penrith     20,000 
Community Land 
Outer Hebrides Isle of Lewis     20,000 
Lower Ure 
Conservation Trust Ripon     20,000 
North Dorset Beekeepers 
Association Blandford Forum     20,000 
Walworth Garden London     20,000 
The Green Team Goole     20,000 
Kingswood Trust Wolverhampton     20,000 
Forest Recycling Project London     20,000 
Broadford and Strath 
Community Company Broadford     15,000 
Water of Leith 
Conservation Trust Edinburgh     15,000 
The Magdalen 
Environmental Trust Winsham     15,000 
Woodland Heritage Hereford     15,000 
Songbird Survival Diss     15,000 
2050 Climate Group Edinburgh     15,000 
Earth Action North Devon Braunton     15,000 
Loch Ken Trust Castle Douglas     12,000 
Cetacean Research 
& Rescue Unit Banff     10,000 
InterClimate Trust London     10,000 
Haygrove Community 
Gardens Ledbury     10,000 
Stroud Valleys Project Stroud     10,000 
London Waterkeeper London     10,000 
Bright Green Nature Edinburgh        8,000 
Martineau Gardens Birmingham        6,500 
Bradford Organic 
Communities Service Bradford        6,500 
Students Organising 
for Sustainability Macclesfield        6,500 
Welsh Dee Trust Llangollen        6,500 
People’s Trust for 
Endangered Species London        6,000 
Environmental Arts 
and Action Caldercruix        5,000 
Friends of Ham Hill Stoke-sub-Hamdon        5,000 *
Berry Hill Social 
Welfare Centre Mansfield        5,000 *
CROW – Coventry 
Recycling of Waste Coventry        5,000 
Nature’s SAFE Whitchurch        5,000 
EMERGE 3Rs Manchester        5,000 
Sussex Green Living Billingshurst        5,000 
Clean Planet Middlesbrough        5,000 
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Skye Environmental 
Centre Isle of Skye        5,000  
The Outer Hebrides 
Fisheries Trust Isle of Lewis        4,000  
Eyam CE Primary 
School PTFA Eyam        2,500 * 

Total for Environment 618,500
(Total number of grants: 48)

Faith  £
Godmanchester 
Baptist Church Godmanchester     20,000  
Ribbesford with Bewdley 
and Dowles PCC Bewdley     20,000  
St Mary-at-Finchley 
Parish Church London     20,000  
Dersingham PCC Dersingham     20,000  
Killymurris Congregation 
of the Presbyterian 
Church in Ireland Ballymena     20,000 * 
St Barnabas PCC Sutton     20,000 * 
St Mary’s Church, 
Great Sankey Warrington     20,000  
St Mary’s Parish Church, 
Minera Wrexham     20,000 * 
St Peter’s Church, 
Church Knowle Wareham     20,000  
Tees Valley 
Community Church Stockton-on-Tees     20,000  
PCC of St Peter’s Church Stockton-on-Tees     20,000  
St Andrew’s Church Compton Dundon     20,000 * 
All Saints Church Stanton     20,000  
Orchards London     20,000  
St James the 
Apostle Church Bonsall     20,000  
St Luke’s Church, 
Farnworth Widnes     20,000  
St Peter’s Church Aylesham     20,000  
Stratton St Margaret PCC Swindon     20,000  
Equipping Pastors 
Worldwide Swindon     20,000  
Sydling St Nicholas PCC Dorchester     20,000 * 
PCC of Christ Church
Aughton Ormskirk     20,000  
All Saints’ Church Berkhamsted     20,000  
Holy Trinity 
Episcopal Church Dalgety     20,000  
St Andrews Church, 
Marks Tey Colchester     20,000  
Dagenham Christians 
Together Dagenham     20,000  
St Bernards Catholic 
Church Lingfield     20,000  
The Church of St Nicholas 
and the Virgin Mary, 
Stowey Bristol     20,000  
PCC of St Sepulchre 
Without Newgate London     20,000 * 
Kilhorne Parish Church Annalong     20,000  
St Swithun’s Church Bridport     20,000  

Christ Church, Willaston Neston     20,000  
St Andrew’s URC Cheltenham     20,000  
St Cleer Parish Church Liskeard     20,000  
PCC of Hitchin, St Mary Hitchin     20,000  
Willowfield Parish 
Church Belfast     20,000  
Netherlorn 
(Church of Scotland) Oban     20,000 * 
St John the Evangelist
Church, Moulsham Chelmsford     20,000  
St John’s Church Read     20,000 * 
St Stephen’s Church, 
Lindley Huddersfield     20,000  
Open Door Church St Neots     20,000  
St Mary’s Church, Hook Goole     20,000  
Hull Community Church Hull     20,000  
St John the Baptist 
Church Erith     20,000  
Tabernacl 
Penrhyndeudraeth Penrhyndeudraeth     20,000  
Oasis Church Birmingham     20,000  
St Silas with All Saints 
Church, Pentonville London     20,000  
Kilmaronock Old 
Kirk Trust Alexandria     20,000  
Kirkcudbright Parish 
Church Of Scotland Kirkcudbright     20,000  
St Catherine’s Church, 
Ludham Great Yarmouth     20,000  
PCC of Holy Trinity, 
Horwich Bolton     20,000  
PCC of Ottery St Mary Ottery St Mary     20,000  
PCC of St Barnabas, 
Clapham Common London     20,000  
Christ Church Kensington London     20,000  
Stocksfield Baptist 
Church Stocksfield     20,000 * 
York City Church York     20,000  
Sheffield Triratna 
Buddhist Community Sheffield     20,000 * 
East London Tabernacle 
Baptist Church London     20,000  
PCC of St Mary Beverley     20,000  
PCC of St Margaret Topsham     20,000  
St Georges Church
 Fatfield PCC Washington     20,000  
All Saints Church, 
Theydon Garnon Epping     15,000  
St Andrew’s Church Blandford Forum     15,000  
Teen Action London     15,000  
PCC of Holy Trinity 
Attleborough Nuneaton     15,000  
PCC of St Luke 
and St Peter Portsmouth     15,000  
Christ Church Nailsea     15,000  
Herringthorpe URC Rotherham     15,000  
Holy Trinity 
& St Barnabas Paisley     15,000 * 
North Area Partnership Rochdale     15,000  
St Mary’s Church, 
Swilland PCC Ipswich     15,000  
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St Nicholas’ Church, 
Chiswick London     15,000  
St Nicholas’ Church, 
Bishop’s Sutton Alresford     15,000  
PCC of Danehill Haywards Heath     15,000  
PCC of Lavenham Lavenham     15,000 * 
PCC of St John the Divine, 
Thorpe Edge Bradford     15,000  
All Saints’ Church, 
Dunton Bassett Lutterworth     15,000  
Quorn Baptist Church Quorn     15,000  
Trinity St Andrews 
Methodist and URC Skipton     15,000  
Crosby on Eden PCC Carlisle     15,000  
St Helen’s Church, 
Stillingfleet York     15,000 * 
Spital Street 
Methodist Church Dartford     15,000  
St Andrew with St Luke Church, 
Stoke Damerel Plymouth     15,000  
St Barnabas’ Church, 
Alwoodley Leeds     15,000  
St Michael and All Angels, 
Mottram-in-Longdendale Hyde     15,000  
St Matthew’s PCC 
Netley Marsh Southampton     15,000  
St John the Baptist 
Church Chirton     15,000  
St Mildred’s Church, 
Addiscombe Croydon     15,000  
St Mary’s Church, 
Ovington Sudbury     15,000 * 
St Andrew’s Church, 
South Otterington Northallerton     15,000  
St James Church, 
New Brighton Wallasey     15,000  
Sri Guru Singh Sabha Southall     15,000  
Leyland Baptist Church Leyland     15,000 * 
St Guaire’s Parish 
Church Coleraine     15,000  
Friends of Lanteglos 
Church Topsham     15,000  
St Jude’s Parish Church, 
Ormeau Belfast     15,000  
St Thomas Church, 
Old Charlton London     15,000  
PCC of Worplesdon Guildford     15,000  
Biggar Parish 
Church of Scotland Biggar     15,000  
Church of St Mary the Virgin, 
Layer Marney Colchester     15,000  
St Lawrence’s Church, 
Revesby Boston     15,000  
Buckley and Deeside 
Methodist Circuit Mold     15,000  
Cemetery Road 
Baptist Church Sheffield     15,000  
St Botolph’s Church, 
Helpston Peterborough     15,000  
The Souster Youth Trust Thrapston     15,000  

St Michael & All Angels Church, 
South Hykeham Lincoln     15,000 *
Living Hope Charity Belfast     15,000 
Society of Friends 
of Dunblane Cathedral Dunblane     15,000 
St Mary’s Church, 
Lower Dunsforth York     15,000 
St Nicholas Church, 
Vale of Glamorgan Cardiff     15,000 
PCC of St Andrew, 
Longton Preston     15,000 
Holy Trinity Church Uffington     15,000 *
St John the Baptist 
Church Hatherleigh     15,000 *
Wetherby Methodist 
Church Wetherby     15,000 *
Christ Church, Kilndown Cranbrook     15,000 
Largo Parish Church Leven     15,000 *
St Edward’s Church Cardiff     15,000 
St Ladoca Church Ladock     15,000 
Holy Trinity Drayton Parslow     12,000 
PCC of St Peter’s,
Broadwater Stevenage     12,000 
St Clement’s Church, 
King Square London     10,000 
PCC of All Saints’,
Staplehurst Tonbridge     10,000 
Willington Methodist 
Church Willington     10,000 
Herringswell PCC Bury St Edmunds     10,000 
PCC of St Paul’s Letchworth     10,000 
St Mary Magdalene PCC Cobham     10,000 
St Philip & St James 
Church, Hallow Worcester     10,000 
PCC of St Mary the Virgin Bexley     10,000 
eXp - Experiencing 
Faith in Cowal Tighnabruaich     10,000 
Richmond with 
Hudswell PCC Richmond     10,000 
St Marys Church, 
East Claydon Buckingham     10,000 
St Peter’s Church, Upwell Wisbech     10,000 
PCC of St John 
the Baptist Westbourne     10,000 
PCC of St Thomas’s Church,
Melbury Abbas Shaftesbury     10,000 
St George’s Church, 
Shimplingthorne Bury St Edmunds     10,000 
All Saints Church, 
Wistow Selby     10,000 
St Andrew’s Church, 
Northborough Peterborough     10,000 
St David’s Church, 
Holmbridge Holmfirth     10,000 
St Michael and All Angels
Church, Cowesby Thirsk     10,000 
St Peter’s Church, Ireleth Askam-in-Furness     10,000 
Tullanisken Parish 
Church Dungannon     10,000 
All Saints’ Church West Haddon     10,000 
All Saints’ Church, 
Roe Green Sandon     10,000 *
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PCC of Bishopston 
and St Andrews Bristol     10,000  
Southend Vineyard Southend-on-Sea     10,000  
St Eustace Church, 
Ibberton Blandford Forum     10,000  
St Mary’s Church, Badby Daventry     10,000  
St Mary’s Church, 
Roxby-cum-Risby Scunthorpe     10,000  
All Saints’ Church, 
Horsford Norwich     10,000  
Pickering and Hull Area 
Quaker Meeting Hull     10,000  
Southcourt Baptist 
Church Trust Aylesbury     10,000  
St Margarets Church, 
Brotton Saltburn     10,000  
St Mary the Virgin 
Stapleford Abbotts Romford     10,000  
Victory Church Cwmbran     10,000  
All Saints Church, 
Runhall Norwich     10,000  
North End Baptist Church Portsmouth     10,000  
St George’s Church Great Bromley     10,000  
St Michael’s Church, 
Owermoigne Dorchester     10,000  
St Stephens Parochial 
Church, Carlby Stamford     10,000  
St John’s Church, 
Thornham Middleton     10,000 * 
Central Methodist 
Church Helston     10,000  
Christ Church, Ore Hastings     10,000  
St Mary’s Church Stoke-by-Nayland     10,000  
St Peters Church, Bentley Doncaster     10,000  
Reach Church Stalybridge     10,000  
St Mary’s Church Towyn     10,000  
Blackhill and Shotley 
Bridge URC Consett     10,000  
St Barnabas Church Morecambe     10,000  
PCC of Christ Church with 
All Saints Spitalfields London     10,000  
The Methodist Church 
– Manchester Circuit Manchester     10,000 * 
Holy Trinity
Parish Church Kinawley     10,000  
St Mary’s Church Hay-on-Wye     10,000 * 
St Margarets Church Coventry     10,000 * 
The Pushkin Trust Newtownstewart     10,000  
PCC of Christ Church, 
Pennington Leigh     10,000  
PCC of St Aldhelm, 
Purbeck Langton Matravers     10,000  
St John the Baptist 
Church, Spetisbury Blandford Forum     10,000  
St Mary & Corpus Christi 
Church, Down Hatherley Gloucester     10,000  
PCC of Sandford & Upton Crediton     10,000  
PCC of The Church 
of the Martyrs Leicester     10,000  
The Church of the 
Blessed Virgin Mary, 
Nempnett Thrubwell Chew Stoke        8,000  

All Saints Church, 
Child’s Hill London        8,000 * 
Brixham Fore Street 
Methodist Church Brixham        8,000  
St Winnow Parish Church Lostwithiel        8,000  
Ecclesiastical Parish 
of Shirley Solihull        8,000  
PCC of Shrivenham with 
Watchfield & Bourton Swindon        8,000  
PCC of St Peter, Filton Bristol        8,000 * 
St Mary & St Martin’s 
Church, Blyth Worksop        7,500  
St Leonard’s PCC Watlington        7,500 * 
Teme Valley North PCC Kidderminster        7,500  
Ecclesiastical Parish of 
Fordingbridge and Hyde 
and Breamore and Hale 
with Woodgreen Fordingbridge        7,500  
All Saints Church, Kilham Driffield        7,500  
St John the Baptist Church, 
Bishops Tawton Barnstaple        7,500  
All Saints Church, Hethel Norwich        7,500  
St Mary’s, Harrington Spilsby        7,500  
PCC of Uley with 
Owlpen & Nympsfield Dursley        7,500  
The United Benefice of 
Yalding and Laddingford 
with Collier Street Yalding        7,500  
PCC of St John the Baptist 
and St Luke the Evangelist,
Clay Hill Enfield        7,500  
PCC of the Church of the Holy 
Nativity, Chapel House Newcastle upon Tyne     7,500  
Amberley Chapel Hereford        7,500  
Adeyfield Free Church Hemel Hempstead        7,500  
St Peter Mancroft Norwich        7,500  
PCC of St John’s, 
Ben Rhydding Ilkley        7,500  
Great Waltham: 
St Mary & St Lawrence Chelmsford        7,500 * 
St Werburgh’s New Church, 
Warburton Lymm        7,500  
All Saints Church Little Melton        7,500  
All Saints Church, 
Southill Biggleswade        7,000  
Shelley, All Saints Ipswich        7,000  
Warwick Methodist 
Church Warwick        7,000  
St Mark’s Church of Ireland, 
Portadown Co Armagh        6,000  
Bath Road Methodist 
Church Swindon        5,000  
St Mary the Virgin, 
Denby Ripley        5,000  
St Andrew’s Church, 
Penrice Swansea        5,000  
St Margarets Church PCC, 
Huttoft Alford        5,000  
The Community Church, 
Burton & District Burton upon Trent        5,000  
Emmanuel Christian 
Ministries Glasgow        5,000  

74  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2025



Friends of St Botolph’s 
Church, Grimston King’s Lynn        5,000  
St Johns in the 
Fields Church St Ives        5,000  
St Michael & All Angels, 
Ashton on Ribble Preston        5,000  
All Saints Church Okehampton        5,000  
Mount Pleasant 
Baptist Church Northampton        5,000  
PCC of St Clement 
and All Saints Hastings        5,000  
St Bartholomew’s 
Moreton Corbet Shrewsbury        5,000  
St Peters Church, 
Tilton on the Hill Leicester        5,000  
Aldwick Baptist Church Bognor Regis        5,000  
Brome and Oakley PCC Diss        5,000  
St Eadmers, Bleasdale Preston        5,000  
St Wilfrid’s Church, 
Langton on Swale Northallerton        5,000  
All Saints Church, 
Mollington Banbury        5,000  
Tabernacle Baptist 
Church Penarth        5,000  
Parish Church of 
St Giles, Graffham Petworth        5,000  
St Michael & All Angels 
Church, Cathays Cardiff        5,000  
PCC of All Saints’, 
Thelwall Warrington        5,000 * 
St Andrews Church, 
Alderton Woodbridge        5,000  
St Mary’s Church, Chirk Wrexham        5,000  
All Saints’ Church, 
Penyfai Bridgend        5,000  
Church of the Cross, 
Thamesmead London        5,000  
Siri Guru Singh 
Sabha Gurdwara Reading        5,000  
St John the Divine Church, 
Elmswell Bury St Edmunds        5,000  
St John’s Church, 
Kensal Green London        5,000  
St Mary the Virgin Church Stratfield Saye        5,000  
St Mary’s Church, 
Walberton Arundel        5,000  
St Peter’s Church, 
Bramerton Norwich        5,000 * 
Church Stretton URC Church Stretton        5,000 * 
St Lawrence’s 
Church PCC Kineton        5,000 * 
St John the Baptist Alnmouth        5,000  
St Luke’s Church 
and Campbell Community 
Hall, Huntington Chester        5,000  
Parish of St Paul’s 
Howell Hill with 
St Barnabas Cheam        5,000  
PCC of Amberley 
with North Stoke Arundel        5,000  
Huntingdonshire Community 
Church Huntingdon        5,000  
Mint Methodist Church Exeter        5,000  

RCCG King of Glory Edinburgh        5,000 
St Hilda’s Church, 
Cross Green Leeds        5,000 
Holy Cross Church, 
Tetcott Holsworthy        5,000 
Sharon Full 
Gospel Church Pontypool        5,000 
Hope Church Cadoxton Barry        5,000 
Shoeburyness & Thorpe Bay 
Baptist Church Southend-on-Sea        5,000 
St James the Great, Salt Stafford        5,000 
PCC of Folkestone, 
St John the Baptist Folkestone        5,000 
St Augustine’s Church Westbury        5,000 *
Life Church Warrington Warrington        5,000 
St Peter’s Church Grandborough        5,000 
Torbay Methodist Circuit Torquay        5,000 
PCC of Christ Church with 
St Mary Magdalen and 
St Peter and St Paul  St Leonards-on-Sea       5,000 *
St James’ Chuch Alderholt        5,000 
St Catherine’s, Sacombe Ware        5,000 
St Andrews Church 
Layham Ipswich        5,000 
St Peter & St Paul’s Church, 
Market Overton Oakham        5,000 
St Michael’s Church, 
Munslow Craven Arms        5,000 
St James’ Church, Lode Cambridge        4,000 *
St Lawrence Church, 
Bradfield Manningtree        4,000 
St Margaret’s Church, 
Owthorpe Nottingham        4,000 
All Saints’ Church, 
Down Ampney Cirencester        4,000 
All Saints Church, 
Gimingham Norwich        4,000 
Barton, Brigg 
and Wolds Circuit Brigg        4,000 
St Margaret and St Catherine, 
Aldham Parish Church Colchester        3,500 
Church of St John the Evangelist, 
Kingston Park Newcastle upon Tyne     3,500 
Diocese of St Edmundsbury 
& Ipswich Ipswich        3,000 *
PCC of St Paul’s, 
Scotforth Lancaster        3,000 
Barwick in Elmet 
Methodist Church Leeds        3,000 
Brunswick Methodist 
Church Newcastle upon Tyne     3,000 
Church on the Street 
Ministries Burnley        3,000 
St Andrews Church, 
Lammas Norwich        3,000 
All Saints Church, 
Barnby-in-the-Willows Newark        3,000 
Newquay Evangelical 
Church Newquay        3,000 
St John the Evangelist Church, 
Pendlebury Manchester        3,000 
St Anne’s Church, Clifton Manchester        3,000 
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PCC of Holy Trinity 
and St Stephen’s Bristol        3,000  
St Michael’s Church, 
Hernhill Faversham        3,000  
Parish of Earlsfield 
St Mary with St George Prescot        3,000  
St Mark’s Parish Church Augher        3,000  
St Leonards Church, 
Wixoe Sudbury        3,000  
Town Pastors Bury St Edmunds        3,000  
All Saints Malvern 
Wells & Wyche Malvern        3,000 * 
All Saints Church, 
Kirk Deighton Wetherby        3,000  
St Helen’s Church Ipswich        3,000  
St John the Baptist 
Church, Penmaen Swansea        3,000  
St Peter’s PCC Rugby        2,500  
St Margaret’s Church, 
Spaxton Bridgwater        2,500  
St Andrew’s Church, 
Stokeinteignhead Newton Abbot        2,500 * 
PCC of St Mary’s 
North Mymms Hatfield        2,500  
PCC of St Aidan 
and St Columba Hartlepool        2,500  
St Nicholas Church, 
Elm Park Hornchurch        2,500  
St James’ Church, 
Clapton-on-the-Hill Cheltenham        2,500  
St Peter’s Church Neatishead        2,500  
St Bartholomews 
Church, Finningham Stowmarket        2,500 * 
St James the Great 
Talaton Exeter        2,000  
Blackwood Methodist 
Church Sutton Coldfield        2,000  
St John’s Church 
Whorlton Newcastle upon Tyne     2,000  
St Peter & Paul Church 
Mautby Great Yarmouth        2,000  
All Saints Church, 
Turkdean Cheltenham        2,000  
St Bartholomew’s Church Kirkwhelpington        2,000  
St Andrew’s Church, 
Oddington Kidlington        2,000  
All Saints Church, 
Hunmanby Filey        2,000  
PCC of St Andrew 
and St Bartholomew Churchdown        2,000  
St Mary’s Church, 
Stratford St Mary Colchester        2,000  
Holy Cross Church, 
Goodnestone Canterbury        2,000  
St John the Baptist 
Church Corby        2,000  
St Bartholomew’s 
Church, Sproxton Melton Mowbray        2,000  
PCC Upton upon Severn Upton upon Severn        1,675  
The Scottish Episcopal Church 
of St James the Great Stonehaven        1,500  
Woore Methodist Church Crewe        1,500  

St Helens Plungar        1,500  
Borley Church Sudbury        1,500  
St Gwenllwyfos Church Amlwch        1,000  
St Paul’s Church, Healey Ripon        1,000  

Total for Faith 3,348,675
(Total number of grants: 325)

Health  £
Passion 4 Fusion Edinburgh     20,000  
Prostate Cancer 
Research London     20,000  
Portadown Wellness 
Centre Portadown     20,000  
The Brain Injury 
Foundation Newry     20,000  
Attend London     20,000  
Bury Hospice Greater Manchester     20,000*
MindOut Brighton     20,000  
North Glasgow Community 
Food Initiative Glasgow     20,000  
Sight Advice South Lakes Kendal     20,000  
South Manchester Down Syndrome 
Support Group Manchester     20,000  
The Burrough 
Harmony Centre Bridport     20,000  
The Pear Tree Fund Halesworth     20,000  
Mindfulness in 
Schools Project Tonbridge     20,000  
St Luke’s Hospital Oxford     20,000  
Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg Mind Merthyr Tydfil     20,000  
Dyslexia Sparks Hessle     20,000  
Escapeline Taunton     20,000  
Home-Start 
Bradford District Bradford     20,000  
MHIST Bolton     20,000  
Mind in Haringey London     20,000  
Parenting Mental Health Birmingham     20,000  
Reminiscence Learning Wellington     20,000  
Vision Support 
Barrow & District Barrow-in-Furness     20,000  
Bright Shadow Herne Bay     20,000  
Endike Community 
Care Association Hull     20,000  
Mind in Harrow Harrow     20,000  
Waddington Street 
Centre Durham     20,000  
Anaphylaxis UK Farnborough     20,000  
Chilterns Neuro Centre Aylesbury     20,000  
Dorset Mind Bournemouth     20,000  
My Black Dog London     20,000  
Poetsin Peterborough     20,000  
The Child Accident 
Prevention Trust London     20,000  
The Food Chain London     20,000  
Pilton Community 
Health Project Edinburgh     20,000  
The PSP Association Milton Keynes     20,000  
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Calderdale Wellbeing Halifax     20,000  
Creative Living Centre Prestwich     20,000  
The Anchor Greenock     20,000  
Brecon and District Mind Brecon     20,000  
Call Plus Manchester     20,000  
Suicide Prevention UK Bristol     20,000  
The Blackthorn Trust Barming     20,000  
Ty Hafan Sully     20,000  
Windmill Hill City Farm Bristol     20,000  
The Neurofibromatosis 
Association London     20,000  
Huntington’s Disease Association 
Northern Ireland Belfast     20,000  
The Linda Tremble 
Foundation Edinburgh     20,000  
Headway Essex Colchester     20,000  
Men Matter Scotland Glasgow     20,000  
Mentell Stockport     20,000  
The Downright 
Special Network Hull     20,000  
Pioneer Projects High Bentham     20,000  
Samson Centre for 
Multiple Sclerosis Guildford     20,000  
The Pituitary Foundation Bristol     20,000  
uHub Therapy Centre Bangor     18,000  
Western Isles Association 
for Mental Health Stornoway     16,000  
Dementia Active Banbury     15,000  
The Sandcastle Trust Chelwood Gate     15,000  
Been There Beaconsfield     15,000  
The Leanne Fund Isle of Lewis     15,000  
Action on Postpartum 
Psychosis Swansea     15,000  
Cornwall Mind Bodmin     15,000  
OJ’s Sensory 
Interaction Trust Poulton-le-Fylde     15,000  
Asbestos Support 
Central England Birmingham     15,000  
DorPIP Poole     15,000  
GamLEARN London     15,000  
George’s Rockstars Fareham     15,000  
The Theodora 
Children’s Charity London     15,000  
Fife Society for the Blind Glenrothes     15,000  
Support for Families Stirling     15,000  
BYHP  Banbury     15,000  
Frazzled Cafe London     15,000  
Kirkwood Hospice Huddersfield     15,000  
SignHealth London     15,000  
SWAN Women’s Centre Liverpool     15,000  
Action East Devon Ottery St Mary     15,000  
Kent Multiple Sclerosis 
Therapy Centre Canterbury     15,000  
Swindon Therapy Centre 
for Multiple Sclerosis Swindon     15,000  
Batley Sporting 
Foundation Mirfield     15,000  
Headway Portsmouth and 
South-East Hampshire Portsmouth     15,000  

Sutton Vision Sutton     15,000 
Northumberland County 
Blind Association Morpeth     15,000 
S.H.E. UK Mansfield     15,000 
Stuart Low Trust London     15,000 
Eating Disorder Support Plymouth     15,000 
Project Food Axminster     15,000 
Trekstock London     15,000 
Wiltshire Mind Trowbridge     15,000 
Acts Fast Dorset     15,000 
Battle Scars Leeds     15,000 
Birmingham Centre 
for Arts Therapies Redditch     15,000 
Hope 4 UR Life Belfast     15,000 
No Panic Telford     15,000 
Supportive Approachable 
Friendly Environment Lancaster     15,000 
Tinylife Belfast     15,000 
The Wren Project Devizes     15,000 
Suffolk Oxygen 
Therapy Centre lpswich     15,000 
Teens Unite Broxbourne     15,000 
Better Communities Bradford     15,000 
Downright Excellent London     15,000 
Southampton Society 
for the Blind Southampton     15,000 
The Braveheart 
Association Falkirk     15,000 
Likewise Community London     15,000 
RT Community Projects Durham     12,000 
IMO Charity Blackburn     12,000 
Deaf Unity London     10,000 
The Phoenix Group 
for Deaf Children 
and Young Adults Stevenage     10,000 
Connects & Co Norwich     10,000 
The Grow Project Brighton     10,000 
The Robert Jones and 
Agnes Hunt Orthopaedic 
Hospital Charitable Fund Oswestry     10,000 
Assist Trust Norwich     10,000 
New Note Projects Brighton     10,000 
Headway Nottingham Nottingham     10,000 
TastelifeUK Kenilworth     10,000 
Lochaber Hope Fort William     10,000 
Retina UK Buckingham     10,000 
Adullam Programme Lancaster     10,000 
Association for Rehabilitation 
of Communication and 
Oral Skills Malvern     10,000 
Forest Farm Peace 
Garden Ilford     10,000 
Holding Space Eastbourne     10,000 
You Raise Me Up Polegate     10,000 
Eating Distress 
North East Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000 
First Class Foundation Birmingham     10,000 
Sound Minds London     10,000 
Wishing Well 
Music for Health East Chiltington     10,000 
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Camperdown Growing 
Collective Dundee     10,000  
Cianna’s Smile Reading     10,000  
Herts Musical Memories Bushey     10,000  
Mummy’s Star Glossop     10,000  
Something in Kent Maidstone     10,000  
Tunbridge Wells Mental 
Health Resource Tunbridge Wells     10,000  
Keeping Abreast Norwich     10,000  
Spencer Dayman 
Meningitis Research Bristol     10,000  
The Kelly Foundation Swindon     10,000  
Merton Centre for 
Independent Living London     10,000  
Plasma of Hope Walsall     10,000  
Sightline Vision 
(North West) Preston     10,000  
Astriid Wash Water     10,000  
Befrienders Highland Inverness     10,000  
Keep Talking Services Herne Bay     10,000  
Mustard Seed 
Autism Trust Farnborough     10,000  
Osprey’s Wheelchair 
Rugby Swansea        8,000  
Zachary Geddis Break 
the Silence Trust Coleraine        8,000  
St Luke’s Hospice Sheffield        7,500  
Say Aphasia Brighton        7,500  
Newleaf Foundation Manchester        7,500  
Bless Community 
Support Hemsworth        7,500  
Norwich Men’s Shed Norwich        7,500  
Eating Distress 
North East Newcastle upon Tyne     6,500  
Battle Scars Leeds        6,500  
Corinne Burton 
Memorial Trust London        5,500  
The 267 Project St Albans        5,000  
Arts for Recovery 
in the Community Stockport        5,000  
Ponthafren Newtown        5,000  
Shropshire Mental 
Health Support Shrewsbury        5,000  
Contact Morpeth Mental 
Health Group Morpeth        5,000  
Audacious Foundation Manchester        5,000  
Buckinghamshire 
Disability Service Gerrards Cross        5,000  
Hounslow Borough Respiratory 
Support Group Hounslow        5,000  
Spinal Injuries Scotland Glasgow        5,000  
Talk Club Bristol        5,000  
The Patchworking 
Garden Project Dorking        5,000  
Cycall Worthing        5,000  
Lifecraft Cambridge        5,000  
BreatheEasy Eastbourne Willingdon        4,000  
50 Million Voices Kingston 
 upon Thames        3,000  
Deafway Preston        3,000  

The Croydon Association 
for Pastoral Care 
in Mental Health Addiscombe        3,000  
Sexpression:UK London        2,500  

Total for Health 2,375,500
(Total number of grants: 170)

Museums & Heritage  £
The Peace Museum Bradford     20,000  
Timespan – Helmsdale 
Heritage and Arts Society Helmsdale     20,000  
Buxton Crescent 
Heritage Trust Buxton     20,000  
Nene Valley Railway Peterborough     20,000  
Canterbury Archaeological 
Trust Canterbury     20,000  
Moseley Railway Trust Newcastle- 
 under-Lyme     20,000  
The Town Mill Trust Lyme Regis     20,000  
West Somerset 
Railway Association Taunton     20,000  
National Coal 
Mining Museum Overton     20,000  
Woodhorn Charitable 
Trust Ashington     20,000  
The Whithorn Trust Whithorn     20,000  
Birse Community Trust Banchory     20,000  
The River Stour Trust Sudbury     15,000  
Frinton and Walton 
Heritage Trust Frinton     15,000  
The Nautical 
Archaeology Society Portsmouth     15,000  
Erasmus Darwin 
Foundation Lichfield     15,000  
Ipswich Transport 
Museum Ipswich     15,000  
The Heritage Group Bellingham     15,000  
Carpet Museum Trust Kidderminster     15,000  
Ryedale Folk Museum Hutton le Hole     15,000  
Mercian Regiment 
Museum Worcester     15,000  
Arundel Museum Society Arundel     10,000  
The British Museum London     10,000  
The Wisbech and 
Fenland Museum Wisbech     10,000  
The Soldiers of 
Gloucestershire Museum Gloucester     10,000  
The Argyll and 
Sutherland Highlanders 
Museum Trust Stirling     10,000  
The Portsmouth D-Day 
Museum Trust Portsmouth     10,000  
Arnside Sailing Club Carnforth     10,000  
Ferryhill Railway 
Heritage Trust Aberdeen        8,000  
Lichfield Waterworks 
Trust Lichfield        7,500  
Banff Castle Community 
Association Banff        7,500 
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Birmingham Pen Trade 
Heritage Association Birmingham        7,000  
Buxton Civic Association Buxton        6,500  
Sir Joseph Banks Society Horncastle        5,000  
Dornoch Heritage Dornoch        5,000  
Isle of Wight Bus 
& Coach Museum Ryde        2,500  

Total for Museums & Heritage 494,000
(Total number of grants: 36)

Welfare  £
Age UK Rotherham Rotherham     20,000  
Ilkley and District 
Good Neighbours Ilkley     20,000  
Only Connect London     20,000  
South Cheshire CLASP Crewe     20,000  
Tumble Family Centre Llanelli     20,000  
Hope and Vision 
Communities Hare Hatch     20,000  
Mearns and Coastal 
Healthy Living Network Laurencekirk     20,000  
Solihull Action 
through Advocacy Solihull     20,000  
Spoons Manchester     20,000  
Active Independence Doncaster     20,000  
Bromley Brighter 
Beginnings London     20,000  
Feeding Liverpool Liverpool     20,000  
Home-Start High Peak Whaley Bridge     20,000  
Home-Start Wyre Forest Kidderminster     20,000  
Rape and Sexual Abuse 
Centre, Perth & Kinross Perth     20,000  
Rosalie Ryrie Foundation Wakefield     20,000  
The Frankie 
Howerd OBE Trust Axbridge     20,000 * 
The Hope Hub Camberley     20,000  
Veterans into Logistics Rochdale     20,000  
We Are Family London     20,000  
Bangladeshi Youth 
Organisation Bradford     20,000  
Church House, Bridgeton Glasgow     20,000  
Furnishing Futures London     20,000  
Homeless Oxfordshire Oxford     20,000  
International Community 
Organisation of 
Sunderland Sunderland     20,000  
Refuweegee Glasgow     20,000  
Standing Tall Birmingham     20,000  
The Toy Library Nottingham     20,000  
Transform Drug 
Policy Foundation Bristol     20,000  
Woody’s Lodge Barry     20,000  
Home-Start 
Berkshire East Slough     20,000  
Home-Start 
Renfrewshire & Inverclyde Paisley     20,000  
Cambridge Women’s 
Resources Centre Cambridge     20,000 

First Step Community 
Project Musselburgh     20,000 
Harrow Carers London     20,000 
Home-Start 
Dover District Dover     20,000 
My Life Ipswich     20,000 
New Futures Project Leicester     20,000 
Open Hands Trust Leicester     20,000 
Resolven Building Blocks Neath     20,000 
Sal’s Shoes Oxted     20,000 
The Nancy Oldfield Trust Norwich     20,000 
Where Next Association Redditch     20,000 
Afro Innovation Group Leicester     20,000 
Family Friends London     20,000 
Home-Start 
Ashford & District Ashford     20,000 
Oasis Community 
Hub: Hobmoor Birmingham     20,000 
Veterans Outdoors Ivybridge     20,000 
Refugee Women Connect Liverpool     20,000 
Skills for People Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000 
Aylesbury Women’s Aid Aylesbury     20,000 
Home-Start 
Chichester & District Chichester     20,000 
Multi-Cultural 
Family Base Edinburgh     20,000 
Rees Foundation Droitwich     20,000 
The Bus Shelter Dorset Dorchester     20,000 
Home-Start Richmond,  Richmond
Kingston & Hounslow upon Thames     20,000 
Sussex Community 
Development Association Newhaven     20,000 
Kingsbridge Area 
FoodBank Kingsbridge     20,000 
Knight Support Brighton     20,000 
New Forest Mencap New Milton     20,000 
Sarac Burton upon Trent     20,000 
Teesdale Day Clubs Barnard Castle     20,000 
York Road Project Woking     20,000 
Music of Life Foundation London     20,000 
Abingdon Carousel Abingdon     20,000 
Bench Outreach London     20,000 
Caring Breaks Belfast     20,000 
Circles South East Didcot     20,000 
Citizens UK Charity London     20,000 
Connors Toy Libraries Portsmouth     20,000 
Cornwall Refuge Trust Truro     20,000 
Growing Together 
Levenshulme Manchester     20,000 
Home-Start Flintshire Mold     20,000 
Home-Start IOW Newport     20,000 
Hope for the Young London     20,000 
Kent Refugee 
Action Network Canterbury     20,000 
Shelter Belfast     20,000 
Spark Burntwood     20,000 
Steps to Hope Uphall     20,000 
Tower Hamlets 
Parents Centre London     20,000 
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YMCA Edinburgh Edinburgh     20,000
Home-Start 
North West Hampshire Basingstoke     20,000 
Us in a Bus Redhill     20,000  
Abbey Community Centre London     20,000  
Bramber Bakehouse Eastbourne     20,000  
Carer Support Wiltshire Trowbridge     20,000  
Homeless Action 
in Barnet London     20,000  
Homeless Support 
Project Leigh     20,000  
Home-Start Butser Petersfield     20,000  
Leicester LGBTQ+ Centre Leicester     20,000  
Port Talbot and Afan 
Womens Aid Port Talbot     20,000  
Wellspring Family Centre Dereham     20,000  
Women Connect First Cardiff     20,000  
Yateley Industries 
for the Disabled Yateley     20,000  
Bridges for Communities Bristol     20,000  
Cheshire Carers Trust Northwich     20,000  
Croxteth Gems 
Community Association Warrington     20,000  
Cumbria Addictions 
Advice and Solutions Carlisle     20,000  
Muslim Educational 
Consultative Committee Birmingham     20,000  
Norton Hall Children 
and Family Centre Birmingham     20,000  
Pendower Good Neighbour 
House Project Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000  
Springwell Village 
Community Venue Tyne and Wear     20,000  
Strength & Stem London     20,000  
The Literacy Hubs Portsmouth     20,000  
Burmantofts Community 
Projects Leeds     20,000  
Carers in Bedfordshire Bedford     20,000  
Family Service 
Unit Scotland Edinburgh     20,000  
Get2gether Edinburgh     20,000  
Granby Somali 
Women’s Group Liverpool     20,000  
Limehouse Project London     20,000  
Memories Are Golden Haverhill     20,000  
Ottery Feoffee Charity Bude     20,000  
Sibs Oxenhope     20,000  
Accuro (Care Services) Bishops Stortford     20,000  
ACE IT Scotland Edinburgh     20,000  
Bury St Edmunds 
Women’s Aid Centre Bury St Edmunds     20,000  
Edinburgh Old Town 
Development Trust Edinburgh     20,000  
Elders’ Voice London     20,000  
Home-Start Aberdeen Aberdeen     20,000  
Home-Start 
Newry & Mourne Newry     20,000  
HostNation London     20,000  
Ipswich Furniture Project Ipswich     20,000  
Play for Progress Camberley     20,000  

Sunlight Development 
Trust Gillingham     20,000  
The Carroll Centre Winchester     20,000  
The Wingate Special 
Childrens Trust Nantwich     20,000  
Feeny Community 
Association Feeny     20,000  
Transition Town Totnes     20,000  
The Scottish Pantry 
Network Glasgow     20,000  
Bridge Mentoring 
Plus Scheme Bridgend     20,000  
Compass Collective London     20,000  
Families Together Suffolk Eye     20,000  
Forthspring Inter 
Community Group Belfast     20,000  
Kyra - Women’s Project York     20,000  
Love4Life Fareham     20,000  
Refugee Support Devon Exeter     20,000  
Safety4sisters 
North West Manchester     20,000  
St Paul’s Family Centre Llanelli     20,000  
Survivors West Yorkshire Keighley     20,000  
Vision Care for 
Homeless People London     20,000  
Wirral Mencap Birkenhead     20,000  
Purple Patch Arts Leeds     20,000  
Age UK 
South Gloucestershire Bristol     20,000  
KirrieConnections Kirriemuir     20,000  
Home-Start Lorn Oban     20,000  
The John McNeill 
Opportunity Centre Salisbury     20,000  
Birmingham Crisis Centre Birmingham     20,000  
Community Resources 
for Change Dagenham     20,000  
Manor Gardens 
Welfare Trust London     20,000  
Alternatives Trust 
East London London     20,000  
Asha North Staffordshire Stoke-on-Trent     20,000  
Carers in Hertfordshire Hertford     20,000  
City of Sanctuary 
Sheffield Sheffield     20,000  
The Race Equality Centre Leicester     20,000  
Abergele Community 
Action Abergele Pensarn     20,000  
Age Concern Solihull Solihull     20,000  
Asylum and Refugee 
Community Blackburn     20,000
Cambridge Cyrenians Cambridge 20,000  
Home-Start 
Birmingham North West Birmingham     20,000  
Peasholme Charity York     20,000  
River Kids Broxburn     20,000  
Springfield Domestic 
Abuse Support Kendal     20,000  
Womens Enterprising 
Breakthrough Birkenhead     20,000  
Activate Rawmarsh Rotherham     15,000  
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Carmarthen Family 
Centres Carmarthenshire     15,000  
Domestic Abuse Safety 
Unit North Wales Shotton     15,000  
Healthy Generations London     15,000  
Home-Start Birmingham 
Central South West Birmingham     15,000  
LEVEL Centre Rowsley     15,000  
Refugee Futures Stockton     15,000  
Epic Partners Nottingham     15,000  
Gloucester City Mission Gloucester     15,000  
Oasis Community 
Partnerships London     15,000  
Raven House Trust Newport     15,000  
Rutherglen Community 
Carers Rutherglen     15,000  
Basingstoke Mencap Basingstoke     15,000  
Celf o Gwmpas Llandrindod Wells     15,000  
Gilgal Birmingham Birmingham     15,000  
Greenwich Mencap Woolwich     15,000  
Trigger Blagdon     15,000  
Water Lily Project Christchurch     15,000  
YMCA Walsall Walsall     15,000  
Autistic Minds Pontypridd     15,000  
Local Welcome Bury St Edmunds     15,000  
North United 
Communities Glasgow     15,000  
Tectona Trust Plymouth     15,000  
The Destitution Project Bolton     15,000  
The Springfield Project Birmingham     15,000  
All Hallows Church, Bow London     15,000  
French-African 
Welfare Association London     15,000  
People First Merseyside  Bootle     15,000  
Re-Instate Erith     15,000  
Thomas Doran 
Parkanaur Trust Dungannon     15,000  
Barnet Community 
Projects Barnet     15,000  
Derry Well Women Derry     15,000  
Lewes District 
Churches Homelink Lewes     15,000  
Aspire Creating 
Communities Huddersfield     15,000  
Burgess Sports London     15,000  
East Sussex 
Recovery Alliance Hastings     15,000  
Home-Start Reading Reading     15,000  
Slough Crossroads 
Caring for Carers Slough     15,000  
Stroud Women’s Refuge Stroud     15,000  
Triangular CIO Gateshead     15,000  
Age Concern Merstham, 
Redhill & Reigate Merstham     15,000  
Age Concern 
Wigan Borough Wigan     15,000  
BritSom London     15,000  
Connecting Carers Dingwall     15,000  
Age UK Lindsey Horncastle     15,000  
Beyond Limits Butterknowle     15,000  

Birmingham Care Group Birmingham     15,000 
Darnall Well Being Sheffield     15,000 
The Lucy Faithfull 
Foundation Bromsgrove     15,000 
The Lunch Club London     15,000 
100 & First Foundation Elland     15,000 
Compass Advocacy 
Network Ballymoney     15,000 
Help in the Community Strood     15,000 
Home-Start Ealing London     15,000 
Just Bee Productions Dundee     15,000 
North Argyll Eventide 
Home Association Oban     15,000 
OPAL Services Whitchurch     15,000 
Penrose Options London     15,000 
Voices of Hope Kingston 
 upon Thames     15,000 
Beresford Street Kitchen Jersey     15,000 
Beyond Detention Bedford     15,000 
Faith in Action Merton 
Homelessness Project London     15,000 
Family Friends Wrexham     15,000 
Helping Hands Community 
Outreach Project Portadown     15,000 
Sheffield Mencap Sheffield     15,000 
Archway Foundation Oxford     15,000 
Arkwright Meadows 
Community Gardens Nottingham     15,000 
Rainham Foodbank Rainham     15,000 
The Oasis Centre St Columb     15,000 
Charity Mentors 
Kent and Medway Smarden     15,000 
Friends of 
Scottish Settlers Falkirk     15,000 
Gifted Women Plymouth     15,000 
Seven Up Charity Birmingham     15,000 
The Edward Hain Centre St Ives     15,000 
The Hope Foundation Liverpool     15,000 
Waltham Forest Churches 
Night Shelter London     15,000 
Carrickfergus and Larne 
Child Contact Centre Carrickfergus     15,000 
Ease Hanwell     15,000 
Engage Trust UK Wolverhampton     15,000 
Families First St Andrews     15,000 
Home-Start Cotswolds Cirencester     15,000 
Liberty Christian Family 
Centre Trust Thetford     15,000 
Pembrokeshire 
People First Haverfordwest     15,000 
Queensferry Churches 
Care in the Community Queensferry     15,000 
REACT Armagh     15,000 
Tavistock Area 
Support Services Tavistock     15,000 
Uppertunity Dundee     15,000 
Whitburn and District Community 
Development Trust Whitburn     15,000 
Welcome to the UK Southend-on-Sea     15,000
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Calthorpe Community 
Garden London     15,000 
Extra – Support 
for Families Jaywick     15,000 
Maa Shanti London     15,000 
Women’s Inclusive Team London     15,000  
Learning Library Spennymoor     15,000  
Project Buzz Sheffield     15,000  
Queens Crescent 
Community Association London     15,000  
Chapter2 Reading     10,000  
Mammakind London     10,000  
Mearns Kirk 
Helping Hands Newton Mearns     10,000  
Norfolk and Norwich 
SEND Association Norwich     10,000  
People Matter Eastbourne     10,000  
Age UK Bexley Belvedere     10,000  
Dates-n-Mates Glasgow     10,000  
Home-Start Conwy Colwyn Bay     10,000  
Home-Start Horizons Leicester     10,000  
It’s Your Life London     10,000  
O40 Cookstown Cookstown     10,000  
Phab Wimbledon     10,000  
Refugee Advocacy, 
Information and Support Lancaster     10,000  
Wainman Trust Long Eaton     10,000  
Yesu Sheringham     10,000  
NeighbourCare Basingstoke     10,000  
Bristol Parent Carers Bristol     10,000  
Improving Lives Plymouth     10,000  
Kindred Advocacy Edinburgh     10,000  
Oakfield (Easton Maudit) Northampton     10,000 * 
Possability People Brighton     10,000  
Snap Specialist Play Haverfordwest     10,000  
Splice Child 
and Family Project Bridgend     10,000  
Storm Family Centre London     10,000  
Terry’s Place Chichester     10,000  
The Edge Ministries Staveley     10,000  
Xenia London     10,000  
SHAPE Birmingham     10,000  
Bahja Initiative Accrington     10,000  
Ferriers Barn BURES     10,000  
Nettleham Community 
Hub Nettleham     10,000  
Oasis Community 
Hub, Warndon Worcester     10,000  
St Luke’s Blackburn Blackburn     10,000  
Tikva London     10,000  
Baby Necessities 
Southampton Romsey     10,000  
Burry Port Plant Dewi Burry Port     10,000  
Llanddulas Youth Club Abergele     10,000  
MRS Independent Living London     10,000  
Pathways 4 All Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000  
The Life Project (Bath) Bath     10,000  
Families in Care Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000  

Azad Kashmir 
Welfare Association Birmingham     10,000  
Beamstaffs Stafford     10,000  
Shine (East Norfolk) Great Yarmouth     10,000  
Sing Inside London     10,000  
South Brent 
& District Caring South Brent     10,000  
Age Concern Sturminster
Newton and North Dorset Sturminster Newton     10,000  
Alumah Brandon     10,000  
Hodan Somali 
Community London     10,000  
Warwickshire Wheelchair 
Basketball Academy Solihull     10,000  
Cumbernauld 
and Kilsyth Care Glasgow     10,000  
Age Concern Mole Valley Dorking     10,000  
Bassuah Legacy 
Foundation London     10,000  
Bengali Workers’ 
Association London     10,000  
Cornelly Development 
Trust Bridgend     10,000  
Justice is Now Chester     10,000  
Refugee Support Group Reading     10,000  
Ten Little Toes 
Baby Bank Cowfold     10,000  
The Community Council 
for Somerset Taunton     10,000  
The Faith Hope 
& Enterprise Company Derby     10,000  
Our Community Kitchen East Lothian     10,000  
Blackburn with Darwen 
Healthy Living Blackburn     10,000  
Oxford Churches 
Debt Centre Oxford     10,000  
Red Shed Project Hitchin     10,000  
Zero Limits WAP Gateshead     10,000  
All Saints Community 
Project Trust Chatham     10,000  
HMPasties Foundation Oldham     10,000  
Layole Walsall     10,000  
Radford Care Group Nottingham     10,000  
River Thames 
Boat Project Teddington     10,000  
Teams and Bensham 
Community Care Gateshead     10,000  
Watford and Three Rivers 
Refugee Partnership Watford     10,000  
Finding Rainbows Ashton-under-Lyne     10,000  
Home-Start Lakeland Enniskillen     10,000  
Isle of Wight 
Street Pastors Newport     10,000  
Jem Derby     10,000  
Lifeshare Manchester     10,000  
Afghan Association 
Paiwand Edgware     10,000  
Encompass Southwest Barnstaple     10,000  
High Hopes 
for Halliwell-being Bolton     10,000  
Home-Start Cole Valley Birmingham     10,000  

82  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2025



Interloch Transport Dunoon     10,000  
Kate’s Kitchen Annan     10,000  
Prodigal Arts Bristol     10,000  
Titans Community 
Foundation Rotherham     10,000  
Kirkcaldy Foodbank Kirkcaldy     10,000  
Renewal North West Stockport     10,000  
Riana Development 
Network London     10,000  
Skills & Volunteering 
Cymru Cardiff     10,000  
The Tin Hat Centre Selston     10,000  
The Wiggly Worm Gloucester     10,000  
Llanybydder 
Family Centre Llanybydder     10,000  
Rhayader and District 
Community Suppor Rhayader     10,000  
Herefordshire 
Growing Point Hereford     10,000  
London Wheelchair 
Rugby Club Maldon     10,000  
Menself + Glasgow     10,000  
Angels Support 
Group Hitchin Letchworth     10,000  
BEACON Bradford     10,000  
C-Change West London Hounslow     10,000  
Colne Citadel Colne     10,000  
Disability 
Nottinghamshire Mansfield Woodhouse 10,000  
Horizon Life Training Harrogate     10,000  
Migrant Support Service Portadown     10,000  
Moray Food Plus Elgin     10,000  
Toryglen Community 
Base Glasgow     10,000  
Achievement Bute Isle of Bute     10,000  
Bosnia and Herzegovina 
UK Network Birmingham     10,000  
Core Nottingham     10,000  
Les Alden Foundation Lancing     10,000  
One to One (Enfield) London     10,000  
Power 2 Connect London     10,000  
Richmond Hill 
Elderly Action Leeds     10,000  
Voluntary Action Stratford-upon-Avon     10,000  
Kinship Carers UK Worcester        8,000  
Selsey Community Forum Selsey        8,000  
Refugee Radio Brighton        8,000  
Toxteth Women’s Centre Liverpool        8,000  
Ammanford Foodbank Ammanford        8,000  
Southbourne and District 
Age Concern Southbourne        8,000  
Golden Centre 
of Opportunities Manchester        8,000  
Bellsbank Project Dalmellington        8,000  
Canterbury District 
Volunteer Centre Herne Bay        7,500  
CHIPS Guildford Ash        7,500  
The Women and Families 
Resource Centre Wolverhampton        7,500  

Aylesbury Vineyard 
Church Aylesbury        7,500 
The La Di Da Society Portslade        7,500 
Enrych Oxfordshire Winslow        7,500 
Nature Warriors Nelson        7,500 
Welcome All Hub Carstairs Junction        7,500 
Age UK Isle of Wight Newport        7,500 
Home-Start Dunfermline Dunfermline        7,500 
The Princess Project Maidstone        7,500 
Nourish Community 
Foodbank Tunbridge Wells        7,500 
Doddridge Centre Northamptonshire        6,500 
The Peter Pan Centre Newcastle-under-Lyme  6,500 
Caring and Sharing Rochdale        6,500 
Community Solutions 
North West Accrington        6,500 
Handcrafted Projects Durham        6,500 
Lincolnshire Action Trust Lincoln        6,500 
Accommodation Concern Kettering        6,500 
Sanctuary Trust Rochdale        6,500 
Veterans in Communities Rossendale        6,500 
Hope Housing Bradford        6,500 
West Norfolk Befriending King’s Lynn        6,000 
Levenshulme Good 
Neighbours Manchester        6,000 
Betws Family Centre Ammanford        5,000 
Re:Charge R&R Maidenhead        5,000 
Suvai Deaf East 
Community Ilford        5,000 
Enrych Buckinghamshire Aylesbury        5,000 
Restoration Shack Stoke-on-Trent        5,000 
Social Square (UK) London        5,000 
Think18 Shillinglee        5,000 
Choices Islington London        5,000 
Early Essentials UK Manchester        5,000 
Birmingham Children’s 
Community Venture Birmingham        5,000 
Littlehampton Foodbank Littlehampton        5,000 
NSAAA Stoke-on-Trent        5,000 
Trimsaran Family Centre Kidwelly        5,000 
Benbradagh Community 
Support Dungiven        5,000 
Disabled Persons 
Housing Service Aberdeen        5,000 
Newport Yemeni 
Community Association Newport        5,000 
Community Works Thirsk        5,000 
Murray Hall 
Community Trust Tipton        5,000 
Project Buzz Sheffield        5,000 
St Chad’s Sanctuary Birmingham        5,000 
Teesside Ability 
Support Centre Teesside        5,000 
Welsh Refugee Council Cardiff        5,000 
Lighthouse London        5,000 
Farnham Assist Farnham        5,000 
Hilton Family Support Inverness        5,000 
Rainbow Home 
North East England Newcastle upon Tyne     5,000 
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Trinity Methodist Church Barton-upon-Humber     5,000 
Shopmobility York York        5,000 
Space Aylesbury        5,000 
Chichester Heart 
for Homeless Chichester        5,000 
Child’s Vision Maidstone        5,000 
DIAL South Essex Grays        5,000  
English for All Newcastle upon Tyne     5,000  
OIKOS-Brigg Brigg        5,000  
Stronger Together for Autism 
and Neurodivergence Haddington        5,000  
Menstrie Community 
Action Group Menstrie        5,000  
St Matthews Childrens 
Action Group Leicester        5,000  
Melin Community Trust Neath        5,000  
Money Advice St Neots St Neots        5,000  
Waste Not Want Not Chippenham        5,000  
Friends Without Borders Portsmouth        5,000  
Faversham Assistance 
Centre Faversham        5,000  
Pendle New Neighbours Nelson        5,000  
Conversation Club Leeds        5,000  
Dumfries and Galloway 
Hard of Hearing Group Dumfries        5,000  
Westwood 2015 Sheffield        5,000  
The Yardley Great 
Trust Group Birmingham        4,000  
The Autumn Centre Brightlingsea        4,000  
Free Food in Sandown 
and the Isle of Wight Sandown        3,000  
Portobello Older 
Peoples Project Edinburgh        3,000  
Ipswich Opportunity 
Group Ipswich        3,000  
PCC of St Peter’s 
Halliwell Bolton        3,000  
Friendship Link 
& Action Group Bedford        3,000  
The Contact Zone 
– Child Contact Centre Bridgend        3,000  
Bold Vision London        3,000  
Nidderdale and Pateley Bridge 
Men’s Shed Harrogate        2,000  
Embassy Manchester        2,000  
Bridge Child 
Contact Centre Beverley        2,000  

Total for Welfare 6,326,000
(Total number of grants: 462)

Youth  £
Bridges Project Musselburgh     20,000  
Newton Boys 
and Girls Clubs Newton-le-Willows     20,000  
Pelton Community Centre Chester-le-Street     20,000  
Action for Kids 
Charitable Trust London     20,000  
Big Leaf Foundation Woking     20,000  
Create Paisley Paisley     20,000  

Shackles Off Youth 
and Community Project Seascale     20,000  
SELFA Skipton     20,000  
Success Club London     20,000  
The Violence 
Intervention Project London     20,000  
First Give London     20,000  
The Ideas Foundation Bristol     20,000  
Capital Kids Cricket London     20,000  
Excelsior Trust King’s Lynn     20,000  
Kidz Klub 
Brighton & Hove Brighton     20,000  
N-Gage Manchester     20,000  
SNAP Development 
Project Derbyshire     20,000  
The Earls Court 
Youth Club London     20,000  
RJ Working Redruth     20,000  
Visible Ministries Manchester     20,000  
Access Sport London     20,000  
All Saints Community 
Projects Birmingham     20,000  
Central Eltham 
Youth Project London     20,000  
Grace House North East Sunderland     20,000  
Methilhill Community 
Children’s Initiative Methihill     20,000  
West View Project Hartlepool     20,000  
Renfrew YMCA Renfrew     20,000  
Young Womens 
Outreach Project Gateshead     20,000  
Blaze Arts Burnley     20,000  
Bradby Club 
for Young People Rugby     20,000  
Alyth Youth Partnership Alyth     20,000  
Dumfries YMCA Dumfries     20,000  
Embrace Child 
Victims of Crime Peterborough     20,000  
Horbling & Billingborough 
Scout Group Sleaford     20,000  
Hornimans Adventure 
Playground London     20,000  
Proton Foundation Hinckley     20,000  
STEP Swindon     20,000  
Tweeddale Youth Action Peebles     20,000  
Horbury Churches 
Together Wakefield     20,000  
Achieve More! Scotland East Kilbride     20,000  
BCT Aspire Billingham     20,000  
Friends for Leisure Congleton     20,000  
South Central Youth London     20,000  
Children’s Respite Trust Uckfield     20,000  
Common Wheel Glasgow     20,000  
Football Journeys London     20,000  
St Mary-Le-Bow Young 
Homeless Project London     20,000  
The Place Alness     20,000  
Arran Youth Foundations Brodick     20,000  
Just Drop-In Youth 
Info & Advice Macclesfield     20,000  
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SiMY Community 
Development Glasgow     20,000 
SNAP Special Needs 
Action Project Inverness     20,000  
The Ben Kinsella Trust London     20,000  
You Can Flourish Leamington Spa     20,000  
Be Free Young Carers Didcot     20,000  
ELHAP Woodford Bridge     20,000  
Make Some Noise Stafford     20,000  
Muirhouse Youth 
Development Group Edinburgh     20,000  
Oldham Greenhill Community 
Sports & Recreation Club Oldham     20,000  
The Youth Association Wakefield     20,000  
Waves Music Therapy East Preston     20,000  
Ayr Ark Ayr     20,000  
Track Academy London     20,000  
Back on the Map Sunderland     20,000  
Leatherhead Youth 
Project Leatherhead     20,000  
Get Set Girls London     20,000  
Creations of Cymru 
Film and Media Tredegar     20,000  
The Triangle Adventure 
Playground Association London     20,000  
Urban Circle Newport Newport     20,000  
South Ayrshire 
Befriending Project Ayr     18,000  
Centre 63 Liverpool     15,000  
Partick Thistle 
Charitable Trust Glasgow     15,000  
Totnes Rural Area Youth 
Engagement Project Totnes     15,000  
KYTHE Kinross     15,000  
Stepping Stones DS Fleet     15,000  
KidsBank Chester Chester     15,000  
The Wheels Project Bristol     15,000  
Learn & Thrive Gillingham     15,000  
Connect Alloa Alloa     15,000  
Tarbert Youth Group Tarbert     15,000  
2nd Mortlake 
Scout Group London     15,000  
Ignite Life Kingswood     15,000  
The Shed Project Isle of Lewis     15,000  
Ekota Academy Ilford     15,000  
Horizons Plymouth     15,000  
Rising Stars Young 
People Service Birmingham     15,000  
URBOND Portsmouth     15,000  
Wordsmith Awards Manchester     15,000  
Fishwick Rangers Youth 
and Community 
Development Scheme Preston     15,000  
Lord’s Taverners London     15,000  
ADDNI Carryduff     15,000  
Mid Argyll Youth 
Development Services Lochgilphead     15,000  
Billy Youth 
Engagement Project London     15,000  

Bromsgrove Youth 
and Community Hub Bromsgrove     15,000
Jack Kane Centre 
Community Wing Edinburgh     15,000 
Shadow to Shine London     15,000 
The Pearl Exchange Bude     15,000 
2BU Somerset Taunton     15,000 
Hillingdon Refugee 
Support Organisation West Drayton     15,000 
The Phoenix 
Youth Project Cleator Moor     15,000 
Orpington Football Club Chislehurst     15,000 
South Wight Area 
Youth Partnership Newport     15,000 
The Mullany Fund Swansea     15,000 
Befriend A Child Aberdeen     15,000 
Carers First Strood     15,000 
The Phoenix Detached 
Youth Project North Shields     15,000 
East Cleveland Youth 
Housing Trust Skelton-in-Cleveland     15,000 
Coventry Rugby 
Community Foundation Coventry     15,000 
Livewire Youth Project Saltash     15,000 
Wilmslow Youth Wilmslow     15,000 
Urban Uprising Edinburgh     13,000 
Embracing Arts Faversham     10,000 
Howgill Centre Cleator Moor     10,000 
Youth Initiatives Scotland Glasgow     10,000 
Norwich International 
Youth Project Norwich     10,000 
Nottingham CYF Project Nottingham     10,000 
Rotherham Blackburn 
Club for Young People Rotherham     10,000 
Shalom Youth Project Grimsby     10,000 
Bluebells Community 
Club Prestwich     10,000 
Parallel Youth Enterprise Crowborough     10,000 
Urban Promise UK Romford     10,000 
Noddfa Community 
Centre Port Talbot     10,000 
Sea Cadet Corps Ayr Unit Ayr     10,000 
Southside Young 
Leaders Academy London     10,000 
Building 4 Hope Birmingham     10,000 
Harborough Youth 
and Community Trust Market Harborough     10,000 
InterAct Chelmsford Chelmsford     10,000 
The Speech Language 
Communication Company Dundee     10,000 
The Westside 
Community Foundation London     10,000 
The Oldham 
Enterprise Trust Oldham     10,000 
Read For Good Nailsworth     10,000 
Ukrainian St Mary’s Trust London     10,000 
Young Speakers Scotland Edinburgh     10,000 
Maxability London     10,000 
Our Youth Matter Edgware     10,000 
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Urmston Division Girl 
Guides Association Manchester     10,000
Braintree Youth 
Project Charity Braintree     10,000 
Connected Lives London     10,000 
Houghton Boxing Club Sunderland     10,000 
Aspire Oxfordshire 
Community Enterprise Oxford     10,000  
Newsham and New Delaval 
Youth Forum Blyth     10,000  
Ride2Success Preston     10,000  
Square Peg Activities Sutton Coldfield     10,000  
Sensory People Stourbridge        9,000  
St Cyril’s Children 
& Youth Project Liverpool        8,000  
Toryglen Community Hall Glasgow        7,500  
Wigton Youth Station Wigton        7,500  
The Young Women’s 
Film Academy Newcastle upon Tyne     7,500  
Leeds Rowing Club Leeds        7,500  
The Bank Youth Project Ashburton        7,500  
FUTUREhope 
Hertford and Ware Hertford        7,500  
The Bluevale 
Community Club Glasgow        7,000  
Fumble Sheffield        6,500  
Luton Unit 226 
of the Sea Cadet Corps Luton        6,000  
Sudden Productions Birmingham        5,000  
Wealden Works Heathfield        5,000  
1st Brechin Scout Group Brechin        5,000  
1st Albrighton 
Scout Group Wolverhampton        5,000  
Durham Area Disabled 
Leisure Group Durham        5,000  
Thirsk Youth Club Thirsk        5,000  
Drop Zone Youth Projects Barrow-in-Furness        5,000  
Growth Path Services Birmingham        5,000  
Meanwood Valley 
Urban Farm Leeds        5,000  
Special Needs 
& Parent Support Leeds        5,000  
The Souster Youth Trust Thrapston        5,000  
Youth Leads UK Salford        5,000
The Harrington 
Youth Club Harrington        5,000  

W4 Youth London        5,000  
Youth Music Centre London        5,000  
Fleet Phoenix Fleet        5,000  
Stratford-upon-Avon 
Narrowboat Trust Stratford-upon-Avon        5,000  
DBC Club for 
Young People Tamworth        5,000  
393 Club Sheffield        5,000  
White Star FC London        5,000  
SEN-FSG Manchester        4,000  
Newburn Sea Cadets Newcastle upon Tyne     3,000  
4th East Grinstead 
(St Lukes) Scout Group East Grinstead        3,000  
Leeds Christian 
Community Trust Garforth        2,500  
Brighton Unit 55 
of the Sea Cadet Corps Brighton        2,500  
Winchester Vineyard 
Christian Fellowship Winchester        2,000  
Farringdon Detached Youth 
and Community Club Sunderland        2,000  
Killinchy Community 
Youth Association Killinchy        2,000  
Clapton and Hackney Unit 
of the Sea Cadet Corps Hackney        2,000  
Chesham Youth Centre Chesham        2,000  
Kilkeel Sea Cadets Kilkeel        2,000  

Total for Youth 2,539,500
(Total number of grants: 185)

Other
Erme Valley Riding 
for the Disabled Bittaford        2,000 

Total for Other 2,000
(Total number of grants: 1)

Total grants of £20,000 and less £22,242,175
Total grants over £20,000 £107,109,500

Total grants  £129,351,675
Total number of grants: 2,967
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